Notice of Meeting

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

The legal status, role and detail about the governance of the Health & Wellbeing Board can be found in Part B
Article 5 of the Council Constitution. Full terms of reference for the Board can be found in Part C, Section D.
More information about the work of the Board is listed on the Council’'s website www.lbbd.gov.uk

B“gr“klﬁﬁ &Dagenham

Tuesday, 17 June 2014 - 6:00 pm

Venue: Conference Room, Barking Learning Centre
2 Town Square, Barking, IG11 7NB

Date of publication: 9 June 2014 Graham Farrant
Chief Executive

Contact: | Tina Robinson, Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: | 020 8227 3285 | E-mail: | tina.robinson@lbbd.gov.uk

Membership for 2013/14:

Clir (LBBD) Subiject to appointment by LBBD Annual Assembly

(Chair)

Dr W Mohi (Barking & Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group)

(Deputy Chair)

Clir (LBBD) Subiject to appointment by LBBD Annual Assembly

Clir (LBBD) Subiject to appointment by LBBD Annual Assembly

Clir (LBBD) Subiject to appointment by LBBD Annual Assembly

Anne Bristow (LBBD)

Helen Jenner (LBBD)

Matthew Cole (LBBD)

Frances Carroll (Healthwatch Barking & Dagenham)

Dr J John (Barking & Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group)

Conor Burke (Barking & Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group)

Martin Munro (North East London NHS Foundation Trust)

Stephen Burgess (Barking Havering & Redbridge University NHS Hospitals
Trust)

Chief Supt. Andy Ewing  (Metropolitan Police)

John Atherton (NHS England)

(Non-voting member)




Barking and Dagenham’s Vision

London Borough of

Barking&Dagenham

Encourage growth and unlock the potential of Barking
and Dagenham and its residents.

Priorities

To achieve the vision for Barking and Dagenham there are five priorities that underpin its
delivery:

1. Ensure every child is valued so that they can succeed

Ensure children and young people are safe, healthy and well educated

¢ Improve support and fully integrate services for vulnerable children, young people and
families

e Challenge child poverty and narrow the gap in attainment and aspiration

2. Reduce crime and the fear of crime

e Tackle crime priorities set via engagement and the annual strategic assessment
e Build community cohesion
e Increase confidence in the community safety services provided

3. Improve health and wellbeing through all stages of life

¢ Improving care and support for local people including acute services
e Protecting and safeguarding local people from ill health and disease
e Preventing future disease and ill health

4. Create thriving communities by maintaining and investing in new and high
quality homes

Invest in Council housing to meet need
Widen the housing choice
Invest in new and innovative ways to deliver affordable housing

5. Maximise growth opportunities and increase the household income of borough
residents

e Attract Investment
¢ Build business
e Create a higher skilled workforce




AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence

Declaration of Interests

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members of the Board are asked
to declare any interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered
at this meeting.

Minutes - 11 February 2014 and 25 March 2014 (Pages 1 - 11)

To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2014 and
to note the 25 March 2014 meeting was inquorate.

BUSINESS ITEMS

4,

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

The Health & Wellbeing Board as a Committee of the Council (Page 13)

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham Annual Report 2013/14 (Pages 15 -
72)

BHRUT Improvement Programme (Pages 73 - 135)

Joint Assessment and Discharge Service (Pages 137 - 140)

Addressing Variation in Primary Care Performance (Pages 141 - 171)

Mental Health Tariff (Pages 173 - 176)

Annual Health Protection Profile (Pages 177 - 186)

Transforming Services, Changing Lives in East London (Pages 187 - 192)

Developing the Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 193 - 196)

Waiver of Contract Rules: Public Health Chlamydia Testing Contract
Extension (Pages 197 - 200)

Urgent Action: Implementation of Matters Scheduled for Consideration by
the Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014 (Pages 201 - 204)



STANDING ITEMS

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Sub-Groups Reports (Pages 205 - 212)

Chair's Report (Pages 213 - 217)

Forward Plan (Pages 219 - 229)

Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent

To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to
exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to
the nature of the business to be transacted.

Private Business

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the
Health and Wellbeing Board, except where business is confidential or certain other
sensitive information is to be discussed. The list below shows why items are in the
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the relevant
paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as
amended). There are no such items at the time of preparing this agenda.

Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are
urgent



85.

86.

87.

AGENDA ITEM 3

MINUTES OF
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Tuesday, 11 February 2014
(6:00 -8:30 pm)

Present: Councillor M M Worby (Chair), Councillor J L Alexander, Matthew Cole,
Councillor L A Reason, Anne Bristow, Helen Jenner, Stephen Burgess, Martin
Munro, Dr Waseem Mohi (Deputy Chair), Conor Burke and John Atherton

Apologies: Councillor J R White and Chief Superintendant Andy Ewing
Declaration of Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

Minutes - 10 December 2013

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2013 were confirmed as correct.

CCG Commissioning Plans

Sharon Morrow (Chief Operating Officer, B&D CCG) introduced the report to the
Board. It was noted that:

e The CCG’s commissioning plans are intrinsically linked to the Better Care
Fund plan. The CCG will submit its Operating Plan with the Better Care
Fund Plan to NHS England on 4 April 2014.

e There has been discussion on the CCG’s commissioning priorities across
the Health and Wellbeing Board sub-groups

o The two year Operating Plan is being used as an opportunity to take
forward primary care improvements

¢ Quality of care issues arising from the Francis Report are picked up in the
commissioning plans.

o The Operating Plan reflects the CCG’s financial position. The Board noted
that the CCG must deliver savings of £10 million in 2014/15.

Clir Worby (Chair of the Board) wanted to see more detail about the Operating
Plan at this stage of the process and requested that the draft plan is shared with
Board Members in advance of the 25 March meeting, or informal meetings
between the CCG and partner organisations are arranged to give early sight of the
content of the Plan. Having only been given the priorities to consider the CCG
cannot expect Board Members to have confidence in the quality of the plan or that
the detail within it has regard for the wider partnership’s objectives.

John Atherton (Head of Assurance, NHS England) advised the Board that NHS
England is working to bring together specialist, primary care, and CCG-led
commissioning to make commissioning seamless and ensure that there are no
gaps in care pathways or service provision.

Anne Bristow (Corporate Director, Adult and Community Services) commented
that the planning process is very NHS-centric. It is challenging to develop truly

Page 1



88.

local plans when NHS England sets very rigid specifications for the CCG’s
Commissioning Plans. Anne Bristow was sympathetic to the timescales and
process to which the CCG is bound. Anne Bristow asked that the CCG remembers
to consult thoroughly with partners on its plans before submitting them to NHS
England otherwise there is a risk that partners will feel unable to influence the
content of the plans.

Conor Burke stated that the CCG is still in its infancy an organisation making it
hard to develop its plans in a way that is fully aligned with those of the Council.
This is compounded by having to operate in a complex commissioning framework
where responsibilities for certain areas rest with different organisations or at
different levels within the NHS. The CCG aims to get to a position where its plans
will feel more local and aligned to the strategic objectives of the borough. As
governance develops and the health and social care economy integrates further,
shared decision-making and shared ownership of issues will follow.

Marie Kearns (Healthwatch) updated the Board on engagement work done by
Healthwatch on the CCG'’s priorities. Residents highlighted access to GPs, access
to urgent care, early detection of cancer, and developing pharmacy services as
their priorities for the CCG.

The Board agreed to:

1. Note the briefing on the strategic and operational planning process for
2014/15 to 2018/19

2. Comment on the issues being addressed within the Operating Plan and in
particular the emerging priorities that have been identified

3. Receive the full draft of the Operating Plan at its meeting of 25 March.

Better Care Fund Draft Plan

Further to the report, Bruce Morris (Divisional Director, Adult Social Care) and
Sharon Morrow (Chief Operating Officer, B&D CCG) gave a presentation to the
Board, following which the points or issues below were raised:

e The Better Care Fund (BCF) plan for Barking and Dagenham will be aligned
to the BCF plans for Redbridge and Havering also. The three BCF plans will
dovetail the CCG’s broader strategic plans which itself will have regard to
the plans and strategies of each of the local authorities.

e 25% of BCF funds are performance related. There is a lack of guidance on
the performance related elements of the BCF so it is difficult to know what
would happen if the borough failed to meet is performance targets. It is
doubtful that BCF funding would be withheld, further action plans to bring up
performance is a more likely intervention.

e The situation at BHRUT is a significant risk to meeting the performance
targets attached to the BCF. Hospital admissions and delayed discharges of
care will need to be reduced to mitigate risk. The BCF plan is reliant on
BHRUT’s improvement plan being successful and has been designed to
support the recovery of BHRUT.

e The Board wished for commissioning organisations to consult early with
partners on de-commissioning intentions and set out alternative plans for
service provision at the earliest opportunity. Members of the Board from
provider NHS trusts felt that the stability of a 24 month planning cycle would

Page 2



89.

help their medium and long term planning.

e Consideration needs to be given about how Disabled Facilities Grants and
money from the Troubled Families agenda is included within the BCF. It will
be necessary to give more thought about how children’s health and
wellbeing outcomes are incorporated as more funding streams are rolled
into the BCF.

¢ A recent event hosted by Healthwatch gathered feedback from residents
about the content of the BCF plan. Generally residents were supportive of
the vision. There was consensus among the Board that further engagement
is needed in the future.

e Board Members noted the scale of savings required of the CCG and the
Council over the next five years and recognised the challenge of further
integration and pooling of monies for partnership working in this context.

Clir Worby (Chair of the Board) felt that the draft plan was a good submission
putting the borough in a strong position to submit a high quality final plan. Clir
Worby felt that a lack of guidance from the Department of Health was problematic
for developing BCF plans.

The Board agreed the Better Care Fund Draft Plan (Appendix 1), allowing Barking
and Dagenham to meet the national deadline for submission on 14 February 2014.

Public Health Commissioning Plan 2014/15

Matthew Cole (Director, Public Health) introduced the report, in doing so the Board
noted the following key points:

e Partner organisations commission public health initiatives too, therefore
discussion is needed to align plans. Key to this will be more effective
delivery of the prevention agenda through General Practice and Primary
Care.

e A funding gap is forecast for 2015/16 as it not yet confirmed what the
borough’s Public Health Grant settlement will be. Furthermore, Public
Health does not know what Health Premium the borough will receive or
what funding is attached to health visiting responsibilities.

¢ Public Health is looking to experiment with different models of service
delivery to create behaviour change among residents. There will also be
greater emphasis on prevention especially with regard to smoking and
obesity.

Conor Burke (Accountable Officer, B&D CCGQG) identified early intervention in
cancer as an area not addressed by the Public Health Commissioning Plan. It was
noted that there is a high level of cancer diagnosis in A&E which needs to be
addressed.

The Board discussed Public Health Grant spend on children’s health and early

year interventions. Matthew Cole advised that public health spend on children’s
initiatives will go up in 2015/16 as more resource is invested in sexual health,

Page 3



90.

school nursing and health visiting. Because there is uncertainty over the funding
arrangements for health visiting Public Health has been prudent to set aside
monies should funding not come with commissioning responsibility.

Mr Nicholas Hurst (a member of the public) raised concern that sexual health
services were not well signposted, as such service users are being referred
incorrectly. Matthew Cole supported the view that there is a problem with access
to sexual health services. Although the service is integrated across the three
boroughs (Barking and Dagenham, Redbridge, and Havering) the information
about the services and how they can be accessed needs to be improved; it was
suggested a directory of some kind would be useful.

Ms Christine Brand (a member of the public) suggested that commissioning plans
should give greater emphasis to wellbeing and to make it more meaningful and
embedded within commissioning plans. Ms Brand also suggested that there
should be more balance between health outcomes and wellbeing outcomes in
those plans.

Clir Worby (Chair of the Board) highlighted a correction to table 1 (page 81 of the
agenda pack). It was confirmed that the leisure offer for older people is for ages 60
years and over. Board Members were asked to disregard the misprint on the
explanatory notes for that entry in the table.

The Board agreed to:

1. Consider the resources allocated to the delivery of the 9 priorities agreed
within the strategic framework for commissioning public health programmes
for 2014/15 and 2015/16.

2. Endorse the commissioning intentions in this paper to ensure that service
delivery continues to improve Public Health outcome indicators as outlined in
the Public Health Outcome Framework and the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

End of Life Care Position Statement and Recommendations for Future Focus

Sharon Morrow (Chief Operating Officer, B&D CCG) introduced the report to the
Board.

Helen Jenner (Corporate Director, Children’s Services) reminded the Board of the
importance of end of life care (EoLC) provision for children and requested that
children’s needs are considered when developing the EoLC offer locally. It was
suggested that demand for hospices is outstripping capacity. Sharon Morrow
confirmed that the Integrated Care Group will include children’s EoLC needs within
its scope of work.

Clir Alexander (Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities) asked if the
EoLC pathway and advanced care plans are sensitive to cultural wishes and
requests, and to what degree families are involved with developing end of life
options.

Anne Bristow (Corporate Director,) advised the Board that EoLC needs to

recognise the difference between unexpected deaths of younger adults and death
in old age, as the reaction and needs of the family will depend on the

Page 4



91.

circumstances in which the person died.

Clir Reason (Cabinet Member for Adult Services and HR) asked if the Personal
Assistant and Carer training provided by West and Coe Funeral Directors would be
delivered on a larger scale. Bruce Morris (Divisional Director, Adult Social Care)
confirmed there are plans to roll out the training. Anne Bristow suggested that local
undertakers and the community and voluntary sector are given a more prominent
role in developing the local EoLC offer.

Dr Mohi (Chair, B&D CCG) highlighted that end of life plans are sometimes not
followed and there is a need to address the practical reasons why this happens.
Sharing the end of life plan with family members is a key issue as sometimes a
person’s wishes are forgotten in emotionally fraught situations or moments of
crisis. The use of ‘Do not admit’ cards was suggested along with messages in
bottles as ways to raise awareness that a person has an end of life plan.

It was noted that the NHS system can sometimes work against EoLC plans as by
nature people tend to seek medical intervention to preserve life, overriding
previously laid plans; cultural change is therefore needed.

The Board is agreed to:

1. Note the position statement and approve the next steps for end of life care
as identified throughout the body of the report (listed in Appendix 3).

2. Request that the Integrated Care Group develops an action plan to bring
back to the Board in June 2014

Further to the recommendations in the report the Board agreed to:

3. Establish a working group, with participation from front line practitioners, to
drive forward the EoLC agenda and address the practical issues that can
affect EoLC plans not being followed.

Summary of the New Ofsted Single Inspection of Services for Children

Meena Kishinani (Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning and Safeguarding)
gave a presentation to the Board. The presentation covered:

e The inspection process and the areas that are under assessment

e How the new framework differs from previous frameworks and issues
arising for Barking and Dagenham

e The scope of the inspections and who will required to participate or be
interviewed

e The implications of the inspection framework for the Local Children’s
Safeguarding Board

¢ Risks within the new inspection framework

Arising from the report and presentation the following issues and comments were
made by Board Members:

¢ A disproportionate number of children enter social services through police
protection. This is potentially high risk for the Borough’s inspection result as
well as distressing for the child.

¢ It will be important that children get their health assessment within the

Page 5



specified 28 day timescale

The borough will need to improve educational attainment for looked after
children

Underlying problems which result in social services intervention such as
poverty, security of housing tenure, and domestic violence will need to be
addressed

GP attendance at Child Protection Conferences is poor. This is a risk
because under the new framework the borough will need to demonstrate its
multi-agency approach.

Record keeping will need to be tighter to show inspectors that decision-
making and case management is robust.

A peer review is scheduled for May 2014 to test the system and test the
frontline of children’s services. This will be a useful stocktake and identify
issues to be addressed before Barking and Dagenham'’s first inspection
under the new framework.

The Health and Wellbeing Board will need to explore ways in which it can
link with the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board as the inspectors will
expect to find a strong relationship and coherence around work. Joint
planning between the H&WBB and LSCB might be worth consideration.
Inspections will have a greater focus on observing social care practice.

If an inspection reveals an issue of concern it could trigger a further
inspection of that agency or area. Partners should therefore be mindful that
at all times during the inspection all areas of the system are under scrutiny.
Children’s Services are under pressure due to rising demand. Health
services will need to respond to this and in particular may need to put more
resources into psychological therapies.

Early intervention through Health Visiting or School Nurses will be integral
to robustness of safeguarding. Uncertainty over Health Visiting
arrangements which are in transition is a risk.

Conor Burke (Accountable Officer, B&D CCG) suggested that it would be
helpful for NHS colleagues to understand the profile of need for children
known to social services. This will help GPs and other health professionals
to support and take forward the agenda for looked after children and
safeguarding as the responsibilities of the NHS become more embedded in
these areas.

Dr Mohi (Chair, B&D CCG) added that it would be helpful to know also the
numbers of children within the social care system. Meena Kishinani advised
that at any given time Children’s Services is working with 2,200 children, of
these roughly 450 are looked after and a further 250 are on a child
protection plan.

The Board agreed to:

1.

Note the content and scope of Ofsted’s new single inspection of services for
children in need, looked after children, care leavers and the new Local
Children’s Safeguarding Board (LSCB) reviews and provide comments as
appropriate.

Note the CQC health programme of reviews on safeguarding and looked
after children running from September 2013 and April 2015.

Page 6



92.

93.

CQC Inspection of BHRUT

Stephen Burgess (Medical Director, BHRUT) updated the Board on actions taken
by BHRUT since its inspection report was by the CQC. The Board noted the
appointment of Steve Russell (Improvement Director), progress in developing an
improvement plan, and some of the positive findings of the CQC.

Stephen Burgess drew the Board’s attention to the difficulty the Trust faces in
appointing clinical staff for the Emergency Department and how the special
measures status has compounded this problem. To address this problem BHRUT
is seeking to partner with Barts Health to attract applicants.

Helen Jenner (Corporate Director, Children’s Services) offered support to BHRUT
on behalf of the Local Children’s Safeguarding Board. Objective scrutiny from
partner agencies and bodies will assist with BHRUT’s recovery programme. Helen
Jenner felt it is important the Trust does not withdraw from partnership activities
and keeps partner agencies involved throughout the recovery period, drawing in
expertise and input where appropriate. It was noted that the Integrated Care
Coalition has been involved in developing the Improvement Plan. The Trust
welcomes support from partner agencies and views the plan as a shared
document.

Clir Worby (Chair of the Board) commented that the response from partners has
been strong but wanted to see evidence of the Trust tackling its problems and
sustaining improvement on longstanding quality issues. Clir Worby also highlighted
the finances of BHRUT as an intractable issue and suggested that BHRUT need to
work closely with commissioners to provide its services in a way that supports the
CCG to deliver system-wide changes to improve the health and social care
economy.

The Board agreed to invite Steve Russell to present the Improvement Plan and
progress against delivery.

The Francis Report

Conor Burke (Accountable Officer, B&D CCGQG) introduced the report to the Board.
It was noted that the task and finish group’s work is drawing to a close. The group
will report its progress publicly and agree the next phases of taking forward the
Francis Report recommendations. Key tasks include establishing how the
partnership can develop assurance mechanisms to detect shortcomings in the
quality of care, and deciding what will be the ongoing response to the Francis
Report once the task and finish work is completed.

The Board asked if the Action Plan has been reviewed since BHRUT has been
placed on special measures by the NHS Trust Development Authority. Conor
Burke advised that the CCG has been well sighted on the findings of CQC and as
such the special measures status and other judgments of the CQC has had little
bearing on the content of the Action Plan which is comprehensive and takes
account of BHRUT quality issues.

Anne Bristow (Corporate Director, Adult and Community Services) highlighted
discussion which took place at the Health and Adult Services Select Committee
about taking individual responsibility and positive action to challenge bad practice
when encountered. Conor Burke agreed that the task and finish group will need to

Page 7



94.

reflect on how individuals can be empowered and how to create genuine collective
responsibility in health and social care post-Francis.

Conor Burke asserted that BHRUT was not comparable to Mid-Staffordshire as the
system as a whole is much stronger. BHRUT is distinct from Mid-Staffordshire
because the collective governance of the health and social care economy is more
robust and there is a greater level of focus and scrutiny on quality of care.

The Board agreed to:

1. Consider the report noting the progress made to date and the commitment
of the task and finish group members to ensure recommendations are
implemented and embedded

2. Discuss the implications for Barking and Dagenham and propose any
further actions the Board agrees are required.

Progress on Winterbourne View Concordat

Stephan Brusch (NHS England) updated the Board on London-wide progress in
implementing the Winterbourne View Concordat. The Board was given assurances
that placements and care plans are being scrutinised and people are being moved
into a community setting, where it is appropriate to do so without disruption or
upheaval. Where people are being cared for in an inpatient setting those
individuals are receiving support. This work is being overseen at a national level by
an Enhanced Quality Team of NHS England.

The Board noted the establishment by NHS England of a Specialist
Commissioning Unit to give support to London boroughs. An event has been held
to tease out local barriers to implementing the Concordat and feedback from
stakeholders is being used to inform the London action plan.

Stephan Brusch commented that Barking and Dagenham’s response to
Winterbourne View has been strong. When the self-assessment framework was
reviewed by NHS England Barking and Dagenham showed a good focus on health
outcomes. Stephan Brusch encouraged the borough to show progress against
integration outcomes in order to take delivery of the Concordat to the next level.

Anne Bristow (Corporate Director Adult and Community Services) highlighted the
challenge of meeting a large spectrum of need for roughly 160 people. Specialist
need cannot be wholly met using borough resources; partnership working is
therefore required within the sector and North East London region to deliver parts
of the Concordat. Other challenges the Board noted were developing pooled
budgets through section 75 agreements and that the Council has recently replaced
its commissioning officer responsible for overseeing the Concordat.

Anne Bristow confirmed to the Board that the small number of inpatient
placements for Barking and Dagenham have been reviewed by the Divisional
Director of Adult Social Care and the Chief Operating Officer of the CCG. The
Joint Strategic Plan, when presented to the Board in March, will give further detail
and assurance as to the borough’s position. It was noted that the timescales for
delivering the Concordat are challenging but work is well advanced and it is
expected that the local plan will be robust and credible having undergone a quality
assurance process through NHS England.

Page 8



The Board agreed to:

1.

Note the progress that the Borough has made in achieving the actions set
out in the Winterbourne View Concordat since it last briefing.

Note the Winterbourne View ‘stocktake’ document which has been
produced for the Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme.

Note the identified risks and mitigation plans.

95. Obesity Summit

Matthew Cole (Director, Public Health) introduced the report to the Board and
confirmed that the Public Health Team has commenced work to deliver the actions
outlined in the report.

The Board commented on the success of the event, and following its outcomes
agreed to:

1.

Engage at least 4000 inactive residents physically active enough to meet the
minimum recommended weekly physical activity target using the message
that ‘fit and overweight’ is acceptable, rather than focusing on ‘how to lose
weight’.

Offer incentives on an industrial scale to motivate groups of people to meet
activity targets use incentives that focus on local charities or causes that will
engage large numbers of people.

Engage with all GP practices in developing chronic disease pathways that
have a physical activity component that is integral to delivery of care, and in
actively referring every patient who is overweight/obese and/or has a chronic
illness to one of our lifestyles prevention programmes.

Make use of more effective marketing, with borough straplines (eg ‘Do it for
Dagenham’) and positive images that engage people, and to target
specifically those communities that do not access our current programmes,
e.g. men accessing weight loss programmes.

More assertive promotion aimed at increasing the communities use of green
spaces, and continue our local planning regime to improve the health
promoting environment.

96. Waiver of Standing Orders for Public Health Contracts

The Board agreed to:

1.

Waive the requirement of the Council Contract Rules that requires LBBD to
conduct a procurement exercise for contract in the excess of £50,000.00.
In accordance with contract rules 6.6.8 Public Health believe that there are
exceptional circumstances why a procurement exercise cannot be
undertaken at this stage.

Authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services to award
the Public Health Contracts on the advice of the Director of Public Health
listed in Appendix 1 to each of the current providers under the same terms
and conditions as the current contract and for the duration detailed in
Appendix 1.

Page 9



97.

98.

99.

Sub-Group Reports

The Board noted that the Mental Health Sub-group now has ongoing participation
from a GP. The group is now pursuing NHS England representation. John
Atherton (Head of Assurance, NHS England) offered to assist with this process.
In response to the matter escalated by the Learning Disability Partnership Board,
the Chair resolved to write to the Job Centre Plus about the support it gives to
people with learning disabilities as it is likely that these issues are not uniquely
local to Barking and Dagenham.

The Children and Maternity Sub-group highlighted that clarity is needed on the
performance framework for the sub-groups. Also the group is confused as to the
funding arrangements for Health Visitors having received conflicting information
from different parts of the system. It was suggested that the Board writes to NHS
England to have the funding arrangements explained.

The Board noted the Sub-group reports (Appendices 1 - 5).

Chair's Report

The Board noted the report.

Forward Plan

The Board noted the report.

Page 10



MINUTES OF
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Tuesday, 25 March 2014
(6:00 -6:02 pm)

Present: Councillor M M Worby (Chair), Stephen Burgess, Matthew Cole, Anne
Bristow, Frances Carroll, Martin Munro, Dr Waseem Mohi (Deputy Chair) and
Conor Burke

Apologies: Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor L A Reason, Councillor J R
White, Helen Jenner, Dr John, Chief Superintendant Andy Ewing and John
Atherton

100. Apologies for Absence

In accordance with the Council Constitution (Part B, Article 5, paragraph 4) the
meeting was declared inquorate, at which point the meeting was closed.

Decisions required of this meeting, as listed in the reports, will be passed to the
Chief Executive of the Council in order that the ‘Urgent Action’ provisions of the
Council Constitution (Part B, Article 1, paragraph 17) can be enacted.

The Board Members in attendance discussed the agenda items informally.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 June 2014

Title: | The Health and Wellbeing Board as a Committee of the Council

Report of the Chief Executive

Open For Information

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Contact Details:

John Dawe, Group Manager, Democratic Telephone: 020 8227 2135
Services E-mail: john.dawe@Ibbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Summary:

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 conferred a range of statutory powers and
functions on the Health and Wellbeing Board forming an integral part of the Council’s
overall political structure. This means that all Board meetings are conducted in
accordance with the Council’'s Constitution and that, by and large, Board Members share
a similar status with Councillors and Co-opted Members of the Authority, and are
therefore bound by certain codes and protocols.

In order for Members of the Board to understand what that status means in practical
terms and learn more about the governance arrangements and meetings procedure,
John Dawe (Group Manager, Democratic Services) will give a brief introduction to the
Council’s political structure, the governance of the Board, and explain the standing
orders that underpin the mechanics of Board meetings.

This presentation is supplemented by a welcome pack so that Board Members have this
information for future reference. Much of the information being presented can be found
in the Council’'s Constitution which can be found here.

http://www.lbbd.gov.uk/CouncilandDemocracy/EthicalGovernance/Documents/Const-
full. pdf

Recommendation(s)
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

¢ note the status of the Board as a statutory Committee of the Council with the
authority to take executive decisions

¢ note that meetings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with the Council’'s
Constitution

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



AGENDA ITEM 5

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Healthwatch Annual Report 2013/14

Report of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham

Open Report For Information
Wards Affected: NONE Key Decision: NO
Report Author: Contact Details:

. . ) Tel: 020 8526 8200
Marie Kearns, Chief Executive,
Harmony House E-mail: mkearns@harmonyhousedagenham.org.uk

Sponsor:
Frances Carroll, Chair of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham

Summary:
This report is for Members to see the progress of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham.

This paper is a summary of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham Annual Report. It
outlines the work that has been undertaken by the Healthwatch team this year,
highlighting achievements and challenges.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:
(i) Consider the report noting the progress made in the last year.

(i) Discuss the difficulties that Healthwatch have experienced in receiving
feedback/communications from Member organisations as discussed in Section 4 of
the report

Reason(s)

To bring to the attention of the Board trends in public opinion with regard to health and
social care services of Barking and Dagenham. To advise the Board of any identified
gaps in service provision and to be able to influence commissioning in a timely way.

Page 15



1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

2.2.

2.3.

Background and Introduction

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham has been in place since the 1st April 2013.
Although it is an independent organisation, it is delivered through the general
governance arrangements of Harmony House Community Interest Company. This
has allowed Healthwatch to develop faster than other local Healthwatch
organisations.

One of the first local Healthwatch organisations in London to do so, Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham had its professional launch in May 2013 which was
attended by Patrick Vernon OBE from Healthwatch England. Healthwatch have
regularly taken our seat at the Health and \Wellbeing Board and being represented
at all of the Board sub-groups.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham has used a hub and spoke model as a way
of engaging the community in the management and delivery processes. Local
groups can become Healthwatch Associates. Currently there are 20 associate
groups covering a wide range of interests.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham is governed by an Executive Board
comprising of a chair, four executive directors and two associate directors.

Healthwatch has, throughout the year, set up opportunities to listen to views from
local people and organisations by hosting public consultation events. As part of
this Healthwatch has undertaken surveys around specific needs and service
provision, as well as carrying out enter and view visits in both hospital and
residential care settings. This has provided Healthwatch with invaluable
intelligence and helped it to highlight local trends.

Positive outcomes from Healthwatch's representation have included carers being
able to go into hospital to provide care, 0844 phone numbers no longer being used
by GP surgeries and recommendations from Healthwatch's Dental Report
regarding children's dental health being incorporated into the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy. Healthwatch has also experienced several challenges throughout the
year.

Public Consultation

. Healthwatch had a public launch and two public events. All three were a success

and over 600 people were engaged in total. We have had 20 outreach stands in
various places across the borough including libraries, supermarkets, health
centres, Children’s Centres and Youth Club provision. This has ensured that the
local community’s views on the services they access have been captured.

From ‘your voice’ cards and other communication many people were keen to tell
Healthwatch about their experiences of using local health and social care services.
Over 50 % wanted to tell Healthwatch about their GP service. Over half of these
had negative experiences. There was over 35% who shared their experience of
hospital services. Over half of which were negative. We had a small number of
individuals who shared their experiences of social services and the feedback also
shows that over 60% of those had a negative experience.

Healthwatch has taken 105 calls and emails from the public requesting advice and
signposting. The calls consisted of individuals wanting to know how to make a

Page 16



2.4.

2.5.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

complaint, where to go for benefit advice, issues relating to GP practices, and
other signposting requests.

Healthwatch consulted with 200 people on the closure of Broad Street Walk-in
Centre. The majority of patients said they would rather see their GP than visit a
walk-in centre. However these patients attend walk-in centres because they are
unable to get a timely appointment with their GP. The response from Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham and others to the Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG)
consultation on the proposed changes to urgent care services resulted in change.
The CCG ran a pilot offering 25,000 extra urgent care appointments as part of a
new way to provide urgent care by family doctors.

Healthwatch has a website and continues to use Facebook, Twitter and Streetlife
as a means of communicating with the public.

Progress against workplan

. This year Healthwatch has undertaken five Enter and View Visits and trained seven

representatives.

The first visit was to Sunrise Wards A&B at Queen’s Hospital, Romford. Our report
made nine recommendations which were all accepted by the hospital. Examples;
patients have emergency call buzzers positioned where they can be reached.
Patients with personal budgets are now able to use their home care staff in the
hospital setting.

Three social care visits were undertaken. One was announced and two were
unannounced. These were at Darcy House, Cloud House and Look Ahead. One of
the visits resulted in a safeguarding alert being made. Healthwatch is continuing to
have discussions with one provider about their catering service as they feel that food
is not part of health or social care but as part of tenancy agreement.

Healthwatch undertook a project on the experiences of young people accessing
dental services. The dental report found that there is still much work to be done in
getting the 40% of all of the borough’s young people, who do not attend the dentist,
to understand the importance of regular dental care. The report was presented to the
Public Health Programmes Board who accepted the recommendations which are
included in the next iteration of the Public Health Commissioning Strategy.

At the request of the Health and Adult Social Services Select Committee,
Healthwatch looked at the support needs of young diabetics. Overall the findings
showed that the experience of services was generally good, however changes need
to be made so that information on diabetes is tailored appropriately to that age group.
The findings also showed that 38% of the respondents never had their weight
checked.

Healthwatch also looked at the how young adults with type 2 diabetes could be
supported in the borough. Overall the responses showed that the experience of
services was good. However areas of improvement included the promotion of
available courses to diabetic patients. There is also the need to revisit the Council’s
exercise programme and reconsider the times sessions are held to enable individuals
to fit the programme around their working life.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham undertook a survey at two care homes and a
health care department to find how easy it is for staff to raise concerns and “whistle
blow” when the behaviour of colleagues is observed to be inappropriate and where
the basic principles of care do not conform to an acceptable standard. This project is

Page 17



still ongoing as there has been difficulty getting surveys back from the 200
employees who were invited to respond.

3.8. The Special Educational Need project did not go ahead as this would have duplicated
the consultation that the Council were undertaking on the local offer.

3.9. The personal budget survey was undertaken due to public consultation. The findings,
in the format of a final report, will be going to the Learning Disability Partnership
Board for the September 2014 meeting.

3.10. Due to Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust (BHRUT)
placing new discharge policies and processes in place, the Healthwatch Board felt
the project on elderly discharge should discontinue as it would not be possible to see
the real impact of the new service until it has had time to settle.

3.11. Healthwatch wanted to find out the views and experiences of local people who had
been discharged from the stroke service. Information gathered so far shows a wide
disparity in the service provided. This work will continue in 2014/15.

3.12.In addition to the work plan we undertook three further areas of work.

3.13. Healthwatch organised workshops focused on the Community Treatment Teams and
the Better Care Fund. Over 70 people attended the event. North East London
Foundation Trust (NELFT) and the CCG have taken into account the issues raised
during the workshops. One aspect was the publicity of the new services. Information
leaflets have been developed for patients explaining the new services and how they
work.

3.14. 1t came to our attention that at least 9 GP practices were still using 0844 numbers.
The cost of using the 0844 numbers is high compared to using local telephone
numbers and disadvantaged many low income patients. Healthwatch Barking and
Dagenham highlighted the issue to the CCG. This has resulted in GP practices
dropping the 0844 number in favour of the cheaper local telephone numbers.

3.15. The pilot surge appointments were designed to offer 25,000 extra urgent
appointments through local GP practices. Information gathered so far shows that
16,548 appointments have been offered so far. However Healthwatch requested
information under Freedom of Information Act and only 17 GP practices have
complied with our request for information. This has been one of Healthwatch’s
challenges.

4. Challenges

4.1. Originally Healthwatch wrote to the 39 GP practices who were part of the surge
urgent care appointments system. Only two replied. All practices were contacted
again but the response was still poor. A Freedom of Information request was then
sent to all the 41 practices, the response was still extremely slow and to date we
have only received 17 responses. Healthwatch is now pursuing this matter further.

4.2. In order to identify patients being discharged through the stroke service,
Healthwatch asked NELFT and BHRUT to contact patients on our behalf. This has
resulted in NELFT saying it would have to be referred to their governance
committee. The last communication with them was on the 20 November 2013,
there has been no correspondence since. BHRUT were waiting for a new member
of staff to be recruited and could not help at the time. Healthwatch has had no
communication with BHRUT since then. This has resulted in writing to Matthew
Hopkins, the newly appointed Chief Executive, for his help in this matter.

Page 18



4.3.

5.2.

5.3.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

Healthwatch will continue to pursue this matter further.

There have been challenges with the care providers, in particular Darcy House,
where it has been difficult to find out who is responsible for providing the residents
with food. It transpired that it was part of the resident’s tenancy agreement. As a
result neither the social care provider or the landlord felt it was their responsibility
and therefore thought it should not be part of the enter and view report. Despite
this, Healthwatch have pursued the matter as not all residents were happy with the
standard of food.

Networks and Partnerships

. During the year Healthwatch staff and volunteers have represented local people’s

voices on various statutory committees as well as the Health and Wellbeing Board
and have facilitated events supporting the CCG and NELFT.

We have a seat on the Safeguarding Adults Board and have been asked to work
in partnership with the Board next year to engage with the local community to find
out if residents know how to recognise and raise a safeguarding concern.

The team has attended over 300 meetings between them.
Mandatory Implications
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

When developing our work stream Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham has been
mindful of the content and data in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).
In particular the work to be completed on the care of Stroke sufferers reflects the
high priority and inequalities associated with this condition for people in Barking
and Dagenham. The findings of the dental report have also been similar to the
JSNA findings.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The topics that were chosen for the Healthwatch work plan all fell within the four
priority themes of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy as highlighted when the
work plan was first presented to the Board.

Integration

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham is particularly interested in helping to
promote integrated working between health and social care services. This is
reflected in many of the topics which were chosen for the 2013/14work plan such
as stroke services and diabetes services for children and younger adults.

Financial Implications

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham is commissioned by the Local Authority and
is funded until March 1015.

Implications completed by Marie Kearns Contract Manager for Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham

Legal Implications

Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham has
the power to undertake announced or unannounced ‘enter and view’ visits to health
and social care services.

Page 19



6.6.

6.7.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

Implications completed by Marie Kearns Contract Manager for Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham

Risk Management

All those undertaking Enter and View visits are approved representatives who
have undertaken training.

Patient/Service User Impact

The Healthwatch work programme is designed to reflect the views of service user
experience of the health and social care services in Barking and Dagenham. By
reporting back the views of the public to this and other relevant Boards
Healthwatch can ensure that the consumer is at the heart of all decisions that are
made about their health and wellbeing.

Non-mandatory Implications

. Safeguarding

All staff and volunteers of the Healthwatch team are given awareness training on
safeguarding issues. A Healthwatch representative sits on the Safeguarding
Adults Board. Through one of the enter and view Visits a safeguarding alert was
made.

Property/Assets

The board of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham has chosen not to take on a
permanent property from which to deliver the service. It was felt that having
Healthwatch stands would allow more flexibility in the way we access all sections
of the community.

Contractual Issues

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham is commissioned by the Local Authority and
is funded until March 2015.

Implications completed by: Marie Kearns Contract Manager for Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham

Background Papers Used in Preparation of the Report:
None

List of Appendices

— Appendix 1: Healthwatch Annual Report 2013/14

Page 20



Grateful today,

powerful
tomorrow

=
.,—-'-—‘.} ‘{‘
\

healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham

Page 21




Our Achievements

Broad Street Walk in Centre

200 people consulted on the closure of
Broad Street Walk In Centre.

Majority of patients said they would
rather go to their GP then a Walk In
Centre but are unable to get an
appointment.

The response from Healthwatch Barking
and Dagenham and others to the CCG
consultation on the proposed changes to
urgent care services resulted in change.

The CCG offered to make a minimum of
25,000 extra urgent appointments
available later in the year, as part of a
new way to provide urgent care by
family doctors.

5 Enter and View visits
conducted this year!

Sunrise A and B Frail and Elderly Enter
and View Visit:

As a result of the recommendations
patients have emergency call buzzers
positioned where they can be reached,
be consulted on who helps them with
their personal hygiene needs and have
changes to their health and treatment

explained to them more clearly by

medical staff.

Patients with personal budgets that
provide staff to assist them at home will
now be able to have those staff more
closely involved in their hospital care.

Dental Report

Our dental report found that there is still much work to be done in getting the 40% of all
of the borough’s young people, who do not attend the dentist, to understand the
importance of regular dental care.

From the findings 3, recommendations were made. One of the recommendations was
“To encourage regular brushing of teeth at an early age, all B&D Children aged
between 3 and 5years are given a free toothbrush, with a written reminder to parents
to take their children to the dentist every 6 months whether they need it or not.”

The report and findings were presented to the Public Health Programmes Board. The
Public Health Programmes Board agreed that the recommendations would be included
as part of the Public Health Strategy.




Our Achievements

Workshops on the Community Treatment Teams
and the Better Care Fund.

Over 70 people attend event commissioned the CCG .

Workshops took place at the event which gave local people a chance to understand what
the Better Care Fund is and what the Community Treatment Teams mean for the local
community. NELFT and the CCG have taken into account the issues raised during the

workshops and now have taken steps to improve some of the aspects that were
discussed.

One of aspects was marketing and communication of the new services. Information
leaflets have been developed for patients explaining the new services and how they
work. These are available at community rehabilitation units, hospitals and are handed
to patients.

084 GP telephone numbers

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham was alerted by a number of concerns raised by
local people about the cost of using 084 pre-fixed telephone numbers when needing to
contact their GP practices.

The concerns raised by local people about this issue have been addressed by
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham through working with the Clinical Commissioning
Group to bring about change in the way this service is delivered by some local GP
practices.

Providers of GP telephone systems have moved GPs to geographic-rate 01, 02 or 03
numbers.

Barking & Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group (B & D CCG) acknowledged patients’
concerns in response to Healthwatch raising this issue with them.




© Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham 2013

The text of this document (this excludes, where present, the Royal Arms and all departmental
and agency logos) may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium providing that
it is reproduced accurately and not in a misleading context.

The material must be acknowledged as Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham copyright and the
document title specified. Where third party material has been identified, permission from the
respective copyright holder must be sought.

Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at
Info@healthwatchbarkinganddagenham.co.uk

You can download this publication from www.healthwatchbarkinganddagenham.co.uk

Page 24



Contents

Setting the scene

Foreword 2
About us

Healthwatch Network 5
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham 6
Healthwatch powers 7
Our structure 8
Our projects

Children's dental health 13
Diabetes project 14
Consultation on closure of Broad Street and the Surge Scheme 16
GP Practices Use of 084 Telephone Numbers 18
NELFT Quality Accounts 19
Barking Havering Redbridge Trust Quality Accounts 20
Care Closer to Home 22
CCG priorities and The Better Care Fund 23
Duty of Candour 24
Stroke Discharge 25
Personal Budget Project 26
Reports and Recommendations 26
Freedom of Information Requests 27
Enter and View

What is Enter and View 29
Authorised Representatives 30
Visits undertaken 31
Volunteering 35
Out and About, Communication and Engagement

Communication 37
Out and about in Barking and Dagenham 38
Networks and Partnerships 42
Income and Expenditure 44
Looking forward 45

Page 25



Setting the scene

Foreword

Frances Carroll

Welcome to the first annual report of
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham .

We are pleased to be able to highlight
both the successes and challenges
Healthwatch has experienced in its
first year here in Barking and
Dagenham.

A vital part of Healthwatch's role is

representing the views of people who
use health and social care services to
commissioners and service providers.

Healthwatch has, throughout the
year, set up opportunities to listen to
views from local people and
organisations by hosting public
consultation events, undertaking
surveys regarding specific needs and
service provision, as well as carrying
out enter and view visits in both
hospital and residential care.

This has provided Healthwatch with

Chair
Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham

local intelligence highlighting trends
and evidence gained from local people
and organisations. The information
has enabled us to focus our work plans
on the issues of concern, which are
referred to in this report.

This intelligence also enables
Healthwatch to present feedback to
commissioners of local services and
influence future planning, giving local
people a voice in their futures,
particularly at a time of rapid change
within the NHS and social care.

During the year Healthwatch staff and
volunteers have represented local
people’s voices on various statutory
committees as well as the Health and
Wellbeing Board and have facilitated
events supporting the Barking and
Dagenham Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) and North East London
Foundation Trust (NELFT).

Page 26



This has given Healthwatch the
opportunity to become established as
representing local people's voice and
influencing statutory decision making.

Positive outcomes from Healthwatch's
representation have included carers
being able to go into hospital to
provide care, 0844 phone numbers no
longer being used by GP surgeries and
recommendations from Healthwatch's
Dental Report regarding children's
dental health being accepted.

Healthwatch has also experienced its
challenges throughout the year which
are referred to in the report, not
withstanding difficulties with
accessing information and there
remains barriers to overcome in the
coming year.

Barking and Dagenham Healthwatch's
engagement throughout the year with
local service users, as well as local

organisations, has helped us to focus
our work plans for the coming year.

We look forward to continuing with
these work plans in the year ahead
and working with the local
community, commissioners and
service providers to ensure
responsive and effective health and
social care for our community in
Barking and Dagenham.

Page 27



e Page 28



Healthwatch
Network

Healthwatch Barking and
Dagenham is a local
organisation within a
national Healthwatch
England framework.

We champion the views of
local people on health and
social care services.

Healthwatch England is nationally
focused. There are 152 community
focused local Healthwatch
organisations. Barking and Dagenham
is one of these.

Together we form the Healthwatch
network, working closely to ensure
consumers’ views are represented
nationally and locally.

Healthwatch England

Healthwatch England gives a national
voice to the key issues that affect

children, young people and adults who
use health and social care services.

Healthwatch England gathers
intelligence of trends and consumer
experiences at a national level, based
on evidence gained from people who
use the services nationally and locally,
information shared by local
Healthwatch and evidence gathered
from other partners.

All of this evidence is used to highlight
major issues and seek change in the
policy, regulation and delivery of
health and social care services.

Where very important issues arise,
they are raised with the Secretary of
State for Health, the Care Quality
Commission, the NHS Commissioning
Board, Monitor or local authorities in
England. By law they have to respond
to what Healthwatch England has to
say.

Page 29



Healthwatch
Barking and
Dagenham

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham is
all about local voices being able to
influence the delivery, quality and
standard of local health and social
care services. We believe that every
voice counts when it comes to Shaping
services for today and improving them
for the future.

We:

Are inclusive and reflect the diversity
of the community it serves.

Alert Healthwatch England to
concerns about specific care
providers, who can recommend
further action from the Care Quality
Commission (CQC).

Listen to people who have concerns or
who want to complain about NHS
services or other health and social
care provision.

Provide authoritative, evidence based
feedback to organisations responsible
for commissioning or delivering local
health and social care services.

Have a seat on the Barking and
Dagenham Health and Wellbeing
Board, ensuring that the views and

experiences of patients, carers and
other people, who access services, are
taken into account when local needs
assessments and strategies are
prepared.

(Health and Wellbeing Boards bring
together the NHS, Public Health,
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCGs)
Adult and Children’s Services,
councillors and local Healthwatch, to
improve and plan how to best meet
the health and wellbeing needs of the
local community and reduce
inequalities.

Provide people with information about
their choices and what to do when
things go wrong.

Enable people to share their views and
concerns about local health and social
care services such as GPs, dentists,
hospitals, day care services and care
homes.

Provide Barking and Dagenham
Clinical Commissioning Group with
information and recommendations
about services.

WE believe that
people using the
services are best
placed to tell us and
share

Page 30



Healthwatch
Powers

Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham have the powers and functions below :

By law service providers and commissioners must
respond to requests of information in 20 working days.

By law service providers and commissioners must
respond to any recommendations we make within 20 working days.

Service providers must allow entry to
Authorised Healthwatch Representatives to conduct
announced or unannounced ‘enter and view’ visits to assess services.

A seat on the Health and Wellbeing Board, to
promote health improvements and tackle health
inequalities.

Page 31 7



Overview

Harmony House CIC, won the tender
for Healthwath Barking and
Dagenham.The policies and
procedures of Harmony House have
been adopted by Healthwatch Barking
and Dagenham. This includes the
confidentiality policy,equal
opportunities and volunteering

policy.

Our Structure
Hub and spoke model

One of the requirements within the
tender process was to have a Hub and
Spoke Model.

Healthwatch is the HUB and the
associates and local community are
the spokes, telling us their views on
health and social care services.

Associates

To ensure that the voices of the local
community are heard we have
Healthwatch Associates.

Associates are well established
interest groups that have formed
around their member’s common bond
as service users of either health or
social care services. We keep our
associates up to date with local and
national news who then disseminate
this information to their service users.

Some of our Associates hold databases
on other organisations and service
users. This enables Healthwatch to
reach a good diversity of the
community.

Participants

We do not have a membership for
individuals, however we do have a
participants list. This is a database of
the local people who have attended a
Healthwatch event, spoke to us at one
of our stands or contacted us in one
way or another. We send them regular
emails with updates and information
on forthcoming events if they choose
to stay involved.

Page 32



Our Associates

Page 33 a




Executive Board,staff
and volunteers

Our structure looks to
ensure that local residents
and stakeholders can
influence how decisions
are made and what
priorities are taken
forward.

The Board takes the strategic lead in
developing priorities of Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham ensuring the
views of the community are listened
to.

The Executive Board is set up with 8
seats. Membership is broken down into
two main areas to ensure broad
representation. This includes the
Chair, Executive Directors and
Associates.

Executive Directors

There are 4 seats for Executive
Directors. These seats are open only
to individuals and not organisations or
groups.

Each Director represents one of the
areas below:

« Health

« Social Care

« Children and Young People

« Older people

Associates

There are 3 seats for Associates.
These seats are for organisations or
groups representing a particular
health/social care issue.

Staff

The Chief Executive of Harmony
House is the Contract Manager for
Healthwatch.

We have two staff members who are
Healthwatch Officers.

Page 34



The Board

e
*"'1& i
.HK‘#&
Frances Carroll Barbara Sawyer Grace Kuku Lorraine
Goldberg
Chair Executive Associate
Director Associate

Adults and Older
Peoples
Representative

Becoming a Board member .
We are currently recruiting for
Executive Board Members .
Contact us for more information.

Meet the Staff

Marie Kearns Manisha Modhvadia Richard Vann
Contract Manager Healthwatch Officer Healthwatch Officer

Page 35 a



Our Projects

e Page 36



Chi[dren & you ng One of the recommendations was

peoples “To encourage regular brushing of

Dental Health teeth at an early age, all B&D
Children aged between 3 and 5years
Our recommendations were are given a free toothbrush, with a
taken into account and are written reminder to parents to take
now part of the Public Health their children to the dentist every 6

Strategy! months whether they need it or not.”
The report and findings were presented

We found that statistics reflected there to the Public Health Programmes Board.

was a constant 60% of children and
young people who access dental services
in Barking and Dagenham.

The Public Health Programmes Board
agreed that the recommendations
would be included as part of the Public
Health Strategy.

We undertook a survey of 157 local
young people to discover their views on
going to the dentist and better
understand why 40% do not attend at all.
We looked at the general dental health
of children and young people in the
borough and what their views are of the
dental services available. Young people
who went to the dentist found the
service to be easy to access and the
practitioners friendly and reassuring.

We found however, that there is still
much work to be done in getting the 40%
of all of the borough’s young people,
who do not attend the dentist, to
understand the importance of regular
dental care.

From the findings 3, recommendations
were made.

Page 37



Our Projects

Diabetes Project

At the request of the Health and Adult
Social Services Select Committee,
Healthwatch undertook two projects.

The first project was to look at how
young people with diabetes could be
supported in the borough.

The second project was to look at how
young adults with type 2 diabetes
could be supported in the borough.

Children and young
people

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
has undertaken a survey of children up
to the ages of 16 to find out what
their experience has been like whilst
accessing diabetes services and what
their support needs are.

Healthwatch worked with the
Diabetes Paediatric Service at BHRUT
and sent out the questionnaire to the
90 registered service users. All 90 live
in Barking and Dagenham.

Overall the findings showed that the
experience of services was generally
good.

However there are some areas which
could be improved to meet the needs
of young people and children.

Young people felt that information
about diabetes needed to be tailored
around their age group.

The findings showed that 38% of the
respondents never had their weight
checked. Services for children need to
ensure that all checks are carried out.
If patients are not checked,
complications will be difficult to
prevent.

Page 38



Young adults

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
undertook this project to provide
information about the support needs
of younger adults and their
experiences of diabetic services.

Overall, the responses showed that
the experience of services was pretty
good.

However there were areas of
improvement around the support
needs of diabetic patients.

Taking into account the feedback
from respondents, Healthwatch made
the following points to be considered:

Promotion of available courses needs
to reach all diabetic patients and they
need to be given the opportunity to
attend.

Individuals would like an online
forum where they can share their
issues, exchange information,
provide advice, receive advice and
meet others who also suffer from
type 2 diabetes.

Commissioners need to relook at the
council’s exercise programme and
reconsider the times to enable
individuals to fit the programme
around their working life.

The findings have been incorporated
within the Health and Adult Social
Services Select Committee summary
which will be presented to the

Health and Wellbeing Board.
Decisions will be made on the
necessary actions that need to be
taken. At the time of writing this
report, no decisions had been taken.

Challenges

This project was specific to a target
audience, for this reason we tried a
number of times to get GP practices
on board so that Healthwatch could
send the surveys to their diabetic
patients, however the GPs did not
respond.

Healthwatch had asked GP practices
via the CCG, to send surveys out to
diabetic patients. Stamps and
envelopes were being provided, and a
member of staff would have been
available to assist if GP practices did
not have the staff to undertake the
mail out.

However only 2 GPs responded and
worked with Healthwatch to send the
surveys out to their diabetic patients.

Healthwatch had asked the CCG to
send out reminders to other GP
practices and still we had no
response from the GP practices.

We hope that GP practices will
consider and look into why this
happened and work with Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham in the future,
to ensure that patients can have their
say on health and social care services.

Page 39



Our Projects

Consultation on the

Closure of
Broad Street Walk In

Centre

Healthwatch undertook a survey with
200 members of the public to seek
public opinion on the proposed closure
of Broad Street Walk In Centre.

The majority of the 200 people
consulted said they would rather see
their own doctor for urgent care if
they could get an appointment in a
timely way. As most believed this was
not going to happen, they wanted
Broad Street to remain open.

There was also a clear message that
the public is confused about the
variety of terminology used to describe
urgent care settings and when it is
appropriate to attend which setting.
This report was sent directly to the
CCG and copies given to the Health
and Well Being Board and the Health
and Adult Services Select Committee
(HASSC).

The response from Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham and
others to the CCG consultation
on the proposed changes to
urgent care services resulted
in change.

The CCG offered to make a
minimum of 25,000 extra
urgent appointments

available later in the year, as
part of a new way to

provide urgent care by family
doctors.

GP Urgent Care -
SURGE Scheme

From October 2013 To March 2014, the
clinical commissioning group
commissioned GP practices in the
borough to undertake a pilot scheme
to provide 25,000 urgent care
appointments in addition to the
services they already provide.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
first wrote to participating GP services
on the 9™ December 2013, asking for
responses to specific questions relating
to the scheme referred to as ‘surge’.
Healthwatch received 2 responses to
this request.

The Healthwatch Board decided that
this was not an adequate response and
so a formal request under the Freedom
of Information Act (FOIA) was sent to
all GP practices in the borough on the
17" March 2014 - whether participating
in the scheme or not. GP practices
were set the date for information to be
returned by 21°* April 2014.

Page 40



Healthwatch asked for the following
information:

. How many additional urgent care
appointments is your surgery
providing on average each day?

. Is your practice providing urgent
care appointments in the
evenings and at weekends?

. Who at your surgery decides
what an urgent appointment is?

. What other services do you refer
patients to as part of your urgent
care pathway?

. Has your practice set waiting
times for urgent care
appointments and if so, how long
are patients expected to wait to
get an appointment?

. Can patients drop in at any time
to your surgery and be seen as an
urgent care patient?

. Is there an established Patient
Participation Group at your
surgery - if so, who is the lead
person at your practice for this?

In response, Healthwatch received 17
written replies from the 41 Freedom
of Information requests that were sent
out. The level of response is not
satisfactory.

From the responses received so far
and based on the information
provided by practices, Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham estimates that
the pilot scheme has yielded 16,548
appointments. It is not clear whether
these appointments are in addition to
the usual appointments the practices
provide.

The pilot scheme has been extended
until the 30 June 2014.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
will continue to work with the Clinical
Commissioning Group and the General
Practices to obtain the information
that represents and informs the public
interest through the changes to urgent
care services being provided at GP
surgeries.

Page 41




Our Projects

GP Practices in
Barking & Dagenham
Use of 084

Patient Contact
Telephone Numbers

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
was alerted by a number of concerns
raised by local people about the cost
of using 084 pre-fixed telephone
numbers when needing to contact
their GP practices.

The concerns raised by local people
about this issue have been
addressed by Healthwatch Barking
and Dagenham through working with
the Clinical Commissioning Group to
bring about change in the way this

service is delivered by some local GP

practices.

In Barking and Dagenham, local

Healthwatch found that 9 of the 40 GP

practices in the borough (22.5%) were
using 084 numbers for patients to
contact them.

NHS England advised that they would
contact the GP practices still using

084 numbers (8% Nationally) - via their
Local Area Teams - to remind them
that they would be in breach of
contract if they ‘do not take all
reasonable steps’ to stop using
premium rate telephone numbers.

Providers of GP telephone systems
have agreed to move GPs to
geographic-rate 01, 02 or 03 numbers.

Barking & Dagenham Clinical
Commissioning Group (B & D CCG)
acknowledged patients’ concerns in
response to Healthwatch raising this
issue with them.

Page 42



North East London
Foundation Trust
Quality Accounts

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham sent
a response on 15" May 2013.

As Healthwatch was a new organisation,
we were not in a position to respond to
the request for a retrospective view ;
however we raised the following:

“Looking forward, we are particularly
interested to know what the Trust’s
strategy is concerning the engagement of
the public and local community in
Barking & Dagenham.

The single paragraph in the report about
engagement doesn’t give us much to go
on; it would be very useful to have a
‘bigger picture’ on the Trust’s
commitment to this and how this will be
achieved. Working with patients and
other stakeholders; what are the Trust’s
proposals to ensure that processes are
fully inclusive to everyone in the
community?”

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham are
represented on the mental health

sub- group of the Health and Wellbeing
Board. Going forward, Healthwatch will
be looking for opportunities where
individuals who have experience of using
local mental health services can
represent and influence future mental
health strategies and policies that could
affect services for local people.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham were
not provided with any response to the
points raised about the trusts forward
plan.

Page 43




Our Projects

Barking Havering
Redbridge Trust
Quality Accounts

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
were asked to feed into and
provide a response to the trust
quality account 2012/13. As a new
organisation, Healthwatch could
not provide a retrospective view on
the services provided, however on
the trust proposals for their
forward plan, the following
observations and comments were
put forward:

Emergency and Urgent Care

“Does the 4 hour target for A&E
include both sites across the Trust as
they are presently, or is this only
applied to Queens Hospital?”

“What steps will the Trust take to
publicise the increase in use of the
Urgent Care Centre? How will this
information reach the community
from Barking and Dagenham?”

“Does this include collaborating with
the local Clinical Commissioning Group
on proposals they may have for local
urgent care pathways?”

“The proposal to reduce the length of
stay in hospital beds; does this include
commissioned bed services in local
areas too e.g. Grays Court in Barking
& Dagenham? If so, is there likely to
be an estimate of how this will affect
local social care services in Barking &
Dagenham?”

“Does the discharge policy include
weekends and if so, would more
patient transport services be available
at these times? How will this change
in services be communicated in a way
that patients will understand?”

Quality, Effectiveness and Safety
Trigger Tool

“This is a positive move towards
measuring and monitoring the quality
of services; will this include measuring
standards as well and how will this be
communicated to patients so that
they can understand?”

Page 44



Friends and Family Test

“How is the Trust intending to
communicate the outcomes from this
to patients so that they will know how
the test is working for them?”

Emergency Surgical Access

“The move towards 7 day working
rotas for Doctors and Consultants; will
the staff providing the extra time for
services be employed by the Trust or
will the Trust have to consider using
bank or agency staff to cover this?”

Infection Prevention and Control

“The Trust target of MRSA zero
tolerance against the backdrop of 95%
control for elective and emergency

patients; what measures and steps
would the Trust intend to take to deal
with the 5% that are not screened and
could present a risk?”

“ANTT - what does this mean to
patients and how will the Trust
communicate what this means? Is it a
measure that would be included in
their care plan?”

“We look forward to your comments
concerning the issues raised and that
you give them due consideration when
finalising your report.”

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham

were not provided with any response
to the points raised about the trusts

forward plan.

Page 45



Our Projects

Care Closer to Home

We were commissioned by Barking and
Dagenham Clinical Commissioning
Group to run two workshops, which
were on :

1.  The two new pilot services. The
Community Treatment Team and
The Intensive Rehabilitation
Service.

2. CCG commissioning priorities for
the next two years and the
Better Care Fund.

The first workshop gave local people
and organisations a chance to
understand the new services that are
being piloted, share their views and
any concerns.

The event was well attended by over
70 local residents and organisations.

A presentation was delivered by
Caroline White (Director of Adult
services for NELFT). This was followed
by a question and answer session
allowing participants to ask specific
questions.

Healthwatch then facilitated
workshops to discuss specific
questions.

From the discussions many valuable
comments were received.

Some of the themes that emerged are
listed below:

e The importance of team working
and the good communication
between stakeholders including
the voluntary sector.

e Quick response times for service
users.

e a greater emphasis on effective
and clear communication and
involvement with informal and
formal carers.

NELFT have responded to some of the
queries that were asked at the event,
they have produced a “you said and
we did sheet”, which highlights the
steps they have taken, Some of these
included:

o Developed information leaflets for
patients explaining the new
services and how they work. These
are available at community
rehabilitation units, hospitals and
are handed to patients.

» Patients are triaged through the
community treatment team, which
makes sure patients go to the
service that best meets their needs.

» Working with social care staff to
trial different approaches to make
sure social care needs, as well as
physical and mental health needs,
are met.

Page 46



CCG priorities and
The Better Care
Fund

The second workshop gave the CCG an
opportunity to:

o Update participants on progress the
CCG have made in their first year

o Set out the key commissioning
priorities for the next 2 years

o Get feedback on their plans and
areas where the CCG need to
improve services.

o Explain about the Better Care Fund
and the views of this.

A presentation was delivered by
Doctor John, on the priorities that
have been set by the CCG.

Glynis Joffe from London Borough
Barking and Dagenham also delivered
a presentation on what the Better
Care Fund is and the update so far.

A question and answer session took
place after each presentation allowing
the participants to ask questions to
Sharon Morrow, Doctor John and
Glynis.

Healthwatch also facilitated
workshops and from these we found
that the majority of participants did
not have issues with the priorities that

have been set. There were concerns
about the implementation of these.

A number of themes occurred from
the discussions these included:

Difficulty in booking GP appointments
having an impact on diagnosis certain
health and issues and referrals to
services.

The need of services to work
together including community and
voluntary groups to ensure that
patients are signposted to support
services to enable them to take more
responsibility of their health.

More information as to how funds are
going to be spent and what services
will be cut or reduced.

The findings from this event
supported the CCG to better
understand the concerns of the local
community. Furthermore it was an
opportunity to explain what the
Better Care Fund is and how it will be
funded.

Page 47



Our Projects

Duty of Candour

The Francis report into Mid-
Staffordshire Foundation Trust and
investigation into abuse at
Winterbourne View raised many
concerns from service users and their
families, relating to systemic failures
in some health and social care
services.

As part of a wider enquiry for work
being undertaken by Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham, a survey was
undertaken at two care homes and a
health care department to find out
and begin to understand how easy and
open it is for staff to raise concerns
and “whistle blow” when the
behaviour of colleagues is observed to
be inappropriate and where the basic
principles of care are not being
performed to an acceptable standard.

The following summary refers to
feedback that Healthwatch has
received so far:

5 (14%) of the respondents said there
were no policies for staff to complain
about bad practice or unacceptable
behaviour by a colleague at work.

Of those that said they knew about
their employer’s “whistle blowing”
policy; 20 (57%) said they found out
about it either through face to face or
computer based training.

6 (17%) people said they had used
their work’s policy - of these, 4

(11.5%) said investigations had been
carried out and followed up; 1 (3%)

said it was confidential and 1 (3%)
wasn’t told what the outcome was.

2 (6%) people said they wished they
had used the policy but didn’t due to
concerns and fears of being penalised
or sacked at work.

When asked about ways to raise
difficult matters with their managers,
18 (51%) said that their managers had
an “open door” policy - other
responses included using a suggestion
box; staff questionnaire and feedback
via email.

Of the responses Healthwatch
received, 10 (28.5%) said that their
manager had spoken with them about
the questionnaire, before they
completed it.

Healthwatch will continue to work
with various Health and Social Care
providers during 2014/15 to find out
more about the extent of “whistle
blowing” policies across services and
providers that serve the borough.

Page 48



Stroke Discharge

Healthwatch wanted to find out the
views and experiences of people
from Barking and Dagenham who had
used the stroke service discharging
process.

With input from the Stroke
Association, Healthwatch developed
a questionnaire to gather peoples’
experiences of the service.

Healthwatch visited the stroke
service at Grays Court in Dagenham
and Parkside Stroke Club in Barking.
We met with 30 patients and some of
their carers.

Healthwatch received 6 responses to
the survey.

Barriers to achieving more responses
from other stroke patients have
occurred due to accessing patient
contact information from North East
London Foundation Trust (NELFT) and

.

Barking, Havering and Redbridge
University Trust (BHRUT) under the
terms of the Data Protection Act.
Some key points that have emerged
so far:

Working with health service partners
to reach greater numbers of stroke
patients from the borough to
participate in the survey, is an
ongoing challenge.

Barking and Dagenham has no funded
presence in the borough that gives
ongoing support and information to
stroke patients and their carers,
once discharged from services.

Patient experience of the discharge
processes vary from a comprehensive
care plan to none at all.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
will continue to develop the work
undertaken with this project over the
next year.

Page 49



Our Projects

Personal Budget Projects

One of the last pieces of work that Healthwatch undertook this year was on personal
budgets.

A survey has been produced and distributed out to find out the experiences of individuals who
have a personal budget. The project is still ongoing and will continue next year, however So
far the feedback we have received shows:

50% of respondents felt that having a personal budget has improved their relationship with
friends and family, that they are able to go out more, they can choose where they want to

go.

60% of respondents felt that their personal budget gives them choice and more power about
how they want to receive their care and from who.

Respondents feel that their needs to more information about what services they can access
using their personal budget.

Reports and Recommendations

Reports and recommendations made during this year to commissioners are listed below:

Dental Report: This report went to the Public Health Programmes Board and The Health and
Wellbeing Board as part of the Public Health Strategy.

Report on 0844 GP telephone lines: This report was sent to the CCG.

Diabetes report: This project was requested by HASSAC. The report has been sent to the
HASSAC and is due to go the Health and Wellbeing Board and the CCG for consideration as
part of the summary produced by the HASSAC.

Sunrise A and B Ward Enter and View report: This report was presented at the Integrated
Care Sub Group and the HASSAC.

e Page 50



Freedom of Information Requests

| Reason

Date: 22nd August 2013

| Response

| Outcome

Healthwatch were

The information was

regarding GP urgent
care appointments
from 41 GPs in the
borough.

access their GP for
urgent appointments.

Healthwatch wanted to
find out what
appointments

systems are in place at
the practices within the
borough.

report.

Healthwatch A response was
requested undergoing a Dental received within the | used to compare data
information project and needed to | timeframe. to see if there has
regarding young know how many been a change in the
people and the children and young number of children
access to dental people were accessing accessing dental
services. dental services within services.

Barking and Dagenham.
Date: 17th March 2014
Healthwatch Service users informed Not all GPs had This project will
requested the Healthwatch that responded at the continue next year,
information they were unable to time of writing this | there are no

outcomes to report on
as of yet.

Page 51




Enter and Views

e Page 52



What is Enter and
View

Healthwatch can enter certain health
and social care premises to view the
care being provided. This includes
premises such as hospitals, care
homes and doctors surgeries etc.

Healthwatch compiles a report from
what service users have said at the
visits and make recommendations or
suggestions for improvements and also
highlight what is working well.

The Enter and View programme is an
important part of the Healthwatch
activity and the law enables
Healthwatch to undertake these
visits.

Visits can be unannounced or
announced.

Healthwatch recruited and trained 7
Authorised Enter and View
Representatives this year. However
one left due other commitments.

At the time of writing this report
another four volunteers were
recruited and booked to have their
training.

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
trained all the individuals according to
guidelines provided by Healthwatch
England.

The training programme ensured that
representatives were given a full
understanding of the process and their
duties in carrying out this role.

Five visits were undertaken over the
course of the year. The visits
undertaken were

1)Queens Hospital

2)(follow up visit) to Queens Hospital
3)Cloud House

4)Look Ahead

5)Darcy House

Reports on the visits were sent to the
service providers for comments .Once
a response had been received from
the service provider the reports were
then made public documents.

The reports were then sent to the
commissioners of the services, Care
Quality Commission and other
relevant stakeholders. Copies of the
reports are also available on our
website.

Page 53



Enter and View

Meet our Authorised
Enter and View Representatives

Barbara Sawyer Frances Carroll Val Shaw

e Page 54



Director of Nursing Flo Panel -Coates
commented,

“| feel that the report is a fair
reflection of activity and patient care on the wards
and would like to thank you and your team for their
time and helpful comments”

Visit to Sunrise Wards A & B

Visit to Sunshine Wards A&B at the
Queen’s Hospital Romford. On the
wards, which care for frail and elderly
patients, our volunteers asked
patients and their visitors for their
experiences of hospital life.

Healthwatch choose three topics to
ask patients from Barking and
Dagenham about.

eMeal times: was their food tasty,
were they given time and help to eat
it.

*How were they helped to wash and
bathe: was there sufficient help and
was it offered in a dignified manner.

eHow did the staff interact with them:
were they friendly, professional and
did they have time for them.

There were nine recommendations

made and BHRUT fully accepted all
the recommendations for improving
the stay of patients in their care.

As a result of the recommendations
patients will have emergency call
buzzers positioned where they can
be reached, be consulted on who

helps them with their personal
hygiene needs and have changes to
their health and treatment
explained to them more clearly by
medical staff.

Patients with personal budgets that
provide staff to assist them at home
will now be able to have those staff
more closely involved in their
hospital care.

These are among the nine
recommendations fully accepted by
the hospital.

An action plan was developed by the
trust in response to the
recommendations made.

A follow up visit was undertaken to
gather the views and experiences
about the services being provided to
them after the implementation of
changes made by the Trust in response
to recommendations made from
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham.

A follow up visit has been conducted.
However at the time of producing this
report an official response has not
been received and therefore
Healthwatch is unable to comment on
this.

Page 55



Enter and View

The three social care Enter and Views were done in a series.

Representatives from Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham wanted to speak
with residents from the borough that were using the services at Darcy House,
Cloud House and Look Ahead to gather and record their views on 6 areas of

enquiry. These were:

Nutrition

Personal Hygiene

Social Activities and Hobbies
Family Contact

Clothing

Staff interaction

* & & & o o

A summary of the findings can be found on the following pages.

Darcy House

Darcy House extra care housing is
provided through the council and in
partnership with Hanover Housing
Association.

The extra care scheme is staffed 24
hours in shifts: 7.30am to 1 pm, 4
staff are on duty including the
Manager. From 1pm to 7.30am there
are two members of staff who are on
duty. There is a buzzer system
available in all the flats and
bungalows.

There is a site manager who is on duty
from 9 -5, employed by Hanover
Housing.

49 residents are currently resident at
Darcy House. 31 of these receive care.

Overall from the visit and from what
residents told us, it has come across
that Darcy House is a comfortable
home where individuals are receiving
a good standard of care.

The residents seem to be generally
happy with the services that are being

provided and are very much aware
that this is a independent living
setting and they are happy to be
independent but with the staff there
if they need to call upon them.

Healthwatches Enter and view report
highlighted that although patients
were happy with the staff and the
service they receive, there were
concerns relating to the temperature
of food when served and residents
feeling that they are having to wait
for longer then they should for carers
when buzzed. There were also some
concerns raised about the repairs of
showers when they were out of order.

TLC care services did respond and are
working with the resident to explain
not only how the buzzer system works
but have recently TLC had recently
in March taken the action to
minimise the concern over the
buzzer issue by providing
additional care staff in the
morning because this is usually
when the demand is really high
(7.30 - 13.30 now making it 5 care
staffs in the morning).

Page 56




Cloud House

Cloud House is a small care home that
has been open for 2 years; it is owned
by Delrose House Limited. It is
situated on a residential estate and is
near to some local shops and a GP
practice.

The home provides residential support
and care for male individuals with
Mental Health conditions and/or
Learning Disabilities. The Lead
Representative was advised that
residents currently living in the home
are settled and stable in the home;
any new referrals are carefully
assessed prior to being accepted.

The home is advertised as providing
services for 10 residents, each with
access to their own rooms with
en-suite WC facilities.

Mary Chander, the care home
manager, oversees the running of
another care home in Ilford. Mary
advised that she works up to 5pm at
Cloud House, although she is on call
out of hours when needed.

The home is staffed 24 hours in shifts:
7.30am to 5 pm, 3 staff are on duty
including the Manager; 5pm to 9pm, 2
staff on duty; 9pm to 7.30am there is
1 ‘awakening’ member of staff on
duty.

Healthwatch representatives felt this
was a positive visit and that the

standard and quality of care observed
was meeting the needs of residents,
based on the feedback received.

There were four areas raised by
Healthwatch representatives, of these
two of the recommendations were:

. The care home staff should ask
each resident if they have had
enough to eat at mealtimes and
to ensure that they each have an
equal say in the choice of the
food on the menu for the
following week.

. The home has a no smoking
policy; residents are allowed to
smoke in the garden.
Consideration should be given for
the provision of a shelter
outside, for residents that
smoke.

Page 57



Enter and View

Look Ahead

Look Ahead (Ford Road) is supported
living accommodation for individuals
who have Learning Disabilities.

This service is commissioned by.
London Borough of Barking and
Dagenham (LBBD).

Look Ahead (Ford Road)
accommodates seven residents in
single occupancy bedrooms and has a
communal kitchen and dining room.
The units are not ensuite but have
basins in rooms with shared bathroom.

Residents have personal budgets that
they use to pay for toiletries,
activities, food, clothing etc

Overall from the visit and from what
residents told us, it has come across
that Look Ahead supported living is a
comfortable place where individuals
are receiving a good standard of
support that they need to live
independent lives.

The residents seemed to be happy
with the services that are being
provided; however for Healthwatch
Representatives felt that more could
be done to encourage group outings if
the residents wanted this.

Page 58



Volunteer for Healthwatch!

Healthwatch is keen to recruit volunteers who have an interest in health
and social care. The work of our volunteers will be essential in developing
the work of Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham.

There are a number of different ways in which you can get involved:

Enter and View Representative: These volunteers will be authorised
representatives. Their role will be to observe how local health and social
care services are being provided. Representatives will need to interact
with service users and providers. They will need to identify examples of
both good practice and where improvements need to be made. The
information will be collated in a report and sent to the service

provider for a response.

Outreach Volunteers: Helping to man information stalls at community
events and various health and social care settings. This area consists of a
variety of roles including promoting Healthwatch, having stands at events,
consulting with people, having a display at health and social care settings.
Advising individuals of certain health and social care services, including
advocacy services

All volunteers will be given the necessary training, support
and expenses!

If you are interested please contact
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
on 0208 526 8200 or

email us Info@healthwatchbarkinganddagenham.co.uk

Page 59



Out and About
Communication &
Engagement

e Page 60



Communication

We want to ensure that we
are communicating widely
with the local community to
ensure their voices are
captured and heard, keep
them up to date with what
is happening nationally and
locally with health and social
care services and inform
them of opportunities to
influence services.

There are are number of ways
we do this:

Website
A website has been developed to
promote the work that we do.

National and local health and social
care news and events are uploaded on
the website giving people the option
of keeping up to date and get
involved.

There is also a section on local
services that individuals can access.

Social Networking Sites

We have a Facebook and Twitter
account to promote the activities of
Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
and a Streetlife account. The
networking sites enable us to inform a
number of individuals from all walks
of life.

Leaflets

We have produced a leaflet which has
been distributed out to all the
GPs,Care homes, Pharmacies, the
leaflets are also available in easy
read.

Media

We have promoted news through
Barking and Dagenham Post, sharing
the outcomes of the work that has
been undertaken, we advertise events
and keep local people involved in
health and social care issues.

Associates

We distributes information via our
associates to their service users, this
gives us the opportunity to connect
with some individuals who we not be
able to speak with.

Page 61



Out and About In
Barking and
Dagenham

Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
carry out outreach stands across the
borough to ensure that we capture the
local communities views on the
services they access.

By finding out and understanding the
needs of services users, we are able to
work with services and commissioners
to towards designing services which
met the needs of local people.

This year we have had 20 stands in
various places across the borough
including libraries, supermarkets,
health centres, Children’s Centres and
Youth Club provision.

The outreach stands also gives
volunteers and staff the chance to
approach a wide range of individuals
to let them know who we are what
and we do. The stands also gives
service users the chance to share their
experience directly with us.

We have also attended various events
across the Borough.

We also had a public launch: an all
day event at Vicarage field. Over 300
people were spoken to and given
information about Healthwatch.

On this occasion the majority of
people were concerned about the
closure of Broad Street Walk in
Centre.

A local pharmacist provided health
checks for 100 people that included
BMI assessments and blood pressure
checks. Examples of other locally
available activities, which boost
health and wellbeing, were available
such as a Yoga and Belly dancing
demonstrations and head and hand
massages.

Another two public events took place
one in Barking one in Dagenham. The
event in Dagenham took place in
Kingsley Hall and was focused
particularly for older people. There
were local organisations who attended
such as DABD Uk and Carers of Barking
and Dagenham. Demonstrations and
head and hand massages and nail
painting were also available.

All three were a success and we
engaged with over 600 people in total.

Healthwatch has taken 105 calls and
emails from the public requesting
advice and signposting. The calls
consisted of individuals wanting to
know how to make a complaint about,
where to go for benefit advice, issues
at the GP practice and other
signposting requests.

Page 62



Comments from local people

“GP is good, quite like them but long wait for blood test.”

“Mother needs social care but
cannot get it. Has heart problems.”

“l pay for care out of my personal budget money. | have a
live in carer but feel my life is being dictated by the Social
Worker and the carers they want to provide my care.
| feel bullied and harassed that my wishes are not
respected.”

Page 63



Communication and Engagement

Out and About In
Barking and
Dagenham -

what the public told
us

Throughout the year Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham has engaged
with the public through a number of
public events and site visits to various
locations around the borough
including at the premises of some of
the providers from outside the
borough, that serve local people.

From meeting people, 189 were keen
to tell us about their experiences of
using local Health and social care
services... These are the issues that
mattered most to people

101 people (53.4%) wanted to tell us
about their GP service. Of these, 47
(46.5%) told us their experience of
using their GP services was a positive
one. 54 (53.5%) had negative
experiences with their GP service.

Some examples of feed back we
received about GP services:

. “My GP is very good with my
children, but for myself he
doesn’t really seem that
interested in my health needs”

. “Need more GP appointments to
be available at weekends and
bank holidays; | don’t just get
unwell during week days”

There were 69 people (36.4%) who
told us about the hospital services
they had experienced. Of those
people, 47 (68.1%) said that their
experience of using the service had
been a negative one and 22 (31.9%)
told us their experience of the service
was positive.

Some examples of feedback we
received about local hospital services:

“King Georges and Queens have
a general lack of nurses and too
many patients to deal with. It
worries me that patients,
including members of my family,
could be put in danger”

“When | go to Queens Hospital
Anti-Coagulant Clinic I’'m always
greeted by my first name and
seen within 20 minutes”

. “l had a good experience at King
Georges Hospital; quick
appointment; quickly
investigated -couldn’t fault
them ”

15 people (8%) told us about their
experiences of social care services in
Barking and Dagenham.

Page 64



Of those individuals; 10 (66.6%) had . “The community dental service
negative experience and 5 (33.4%) had is very good, but where | have to
positive experience of services. contribute to the cost because |

work, | find it difficult to pay the
Examples of feedback we received contribution as | only get low
about social care services: wages”

Over the next year, Healthwatch
Barking and Dagenham want to
encourage more people to come

. “The carers that come to assist
me are there for ten minutes
when it should be for half an
hour. They do what they think | forward and tell us about their
need and when | tell them this, experience of using local health and

they argue with me” social care services.

. “l have had social care support
for many years and have always
been satisfied with the service”

. “l feel my life is being dictated
by the social care staff who tell
tales about me that are not true.
| feel harassed and bullied”

4 people (2.2%) wanted to tell us
about other services they had
experience of using. Some feedback of
other services:

. “People don’t tend to use the
gym which is free for the over
60’s - they should make the most
of the activities; it will help keep
them healthy”

Page 65



Networks and
Partnerships

Healthwatch is committed to working
in partnership to ensure local peoples
experiences both positive and
negative are heard and taken into
account. We have outlined below the
partnerships and networks that we
have been involved in.

Health and Wellbeing Board

London Borough of Barking and

Dagenham Health and Wellbeing Board

includes Barking and Dagenham
Council, Barking and Dagenham
Clinical Commissioning Group (B&D
CCG), Healthwatch Barking and
Dagenham, Barking, Havering and
Redbridge University Hospitals NHS
Trust (BHRUT), North East London
Foundation Trust (NELFT) and The
Metropolitan Police.

The Health and Wellbeing Board have
the following sub groups

Children and Maternity Sub Group
Public Health Programmes Board
Learning Disabilities Partnership

Board.
Integrated Care Sub Group

Each sub group has a representative
from Healthwatch who attends and

contributes to discussions ensuring the
voice of the local community is heard.

Healthwatch share evidence based
reports to the sub groups, decisions

about who could take the
recommendations forward are
discussed and these are then
presented to the Health and Wellbeing
Board.

Healthwatch have a seat on the Board
to represent the local voice, comment
and challenge decisions that are being
made.

We reported on a 6 monthly review to
the Board and our annual report will
also be presented.

North East London Healthwatches

Barking & Dagenham, Havering,
Redbridge, Waltham Forest and
Newham Healthwatch have began to
meet to ensure that common themes
and issues where necessary can be
taken forward. Two meetings were
held this year with the vision that
these will become more regularly in
the coming year.

London Healthwatch Network

The London Healthwatch Network
gives a perspective on issues that
Healthwatches are facing across
London. It is an opportunity to share
information and tackle issues as a
London Healthwatch Network where
needed.

B&D Health & Adult Services Select
Committee (HASSC)

We worked on the diabetes project,
which was requested by HASSAC.
Healthwatch have attended scrutiny
meetings and given input at these
meetings.

Page 66



Joint Overview Scrutiny
Committee (JOSC) - North East
London

Healthwatch have attended JOSC
meetings and given input at these

cQc

We ensure that CQC are up to date
with our findings from Enter and
View visits and findings that we
come across in regards to the
services they monitored.

Safeguarding Adults Board

We have a seat on the Safeguarding
Adults Board and have been asked
to work in partnership with the
Board next year to engage with the
local community to find out if they
know how to raise a safeguarding
concern , if they feel there is
enough information about the
matter and what would stop them
from raising an alert. This piece of
work will be taken forward early
next year.

CCG

We have meet with the CCG chair a
number of times and also have a
non voting seat on the Clinical
Commissioning Group Patient
Engagement Forum which we
regularly attend.

We were also commissioned by the
CCG to deliver a workshop on the
Community Treatment Teams,
Better Care Fund and CCG
priorities.

North East London Foundation
Trust (NELFT)

NELFT are the providers for

Community Health Services and
Mental Health Services in the

borough. We are involved in the
mental health sub group to ensure
that the patient voice is taken into
account. We have also worked with
Community Health Services in
delivering workshops on the new
Community Treatment Teams.

Barking Havering Redbridge
Hospital Trust (BHRUT)

Both King George Hospital and
Queens Hospital come under
BHRUT. We undertaken a visit to
the frail and elderly ward at Queens
Hospital. We made nine
recommendations.

The trust accepted all the
recommendations. A follow up visit
was undertaken where Enter and
View Representatives found that
our recommendations were
implemented.

London Borough of Barking and
Dagenham (LBBD)

We have attended the Care
Providers forum, informing care
providers of the role we play. We
are also working with LBBD
alongside the CCG to keep the
public updated about the Better
Care Fund.

We have undertaken 3 enter and

view visits. After one of the visits
we raised a safeguarding alert to

the LBBD safeguarding team .

In total we have attended over 300
meetings, this includes forums and
presentations that have been
undertaken.

Page 67

43



Income and Expenditure

These figures are a breakdown / overview for this report and audited accounts will be

contained in the Harmony Houses annual accounts.

Description Annual Cost
Staffing salary with job titles: 75,442
Health Watch Manager. Outreach Worker. 2x Admin Support

Training and supervision 12,000
Recruitment (staff, volunteers, experts etc) 1,800
Other (Please Specify) (travel) 2,100
Accommodation (lease/rental etc) 9,000
Equipment & stationery 5,650
Consumable/Administration 5,150
Other Overheads (specify) general administration 2,725
Materials 2,000
Social media 2,610
Events 3,400
Consultation 3,125
TOTAL COST 125,002

e Page 68




Looking Forward

A work programme for next year will
be developed once a consultation
event is held with the public.

This will ensure that the areas of work
that will be taken forward will be
from feedback received from the local
community.

Some areas of work that may be taken
forward have been highlighted below,
these have been determined by the
findings from the various consultation
and engagement events held this year.

Please note this is a list of the
possible projects and a final decision
will be made after asking the
community what they would like us to
take forward and they will also have
the opportunity to raise other areas
they may feel we could look at.

. Children’s Orthotics

. Children’s Accident and

Emergency Services

Relocation of Cardiovascular
and Cancer Services

Duty of Candour
(continuation):

Children's Mental Health
Adults Mental Health
Maxillofacial Service

Stroke project (continuation)

Accident and Emergency
Children

Personal budgets
(continuation)

Page 69



Contact Details

Address: Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham
Harmony House CIC

Baden Powell Close

Dagenham, Essex.

RM9 6XN

Phone: 020 8526 8200
Email:Info@healthwatchbarkinganddagenham.co.uk
Website: www.healthwatchbarkinganddagenham.co.uk

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



AGENDA ITEM 6

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | BHRUT Improvement Programme

Report of the Barking Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust

Open For Discussion

Wards Affected: ALL Key Decision: No

Report Author: Contact Details:

Steve Russell, Improvement Director, Telephone: 01708 435000

BHRUT E-mail: Steve.Russell@bhrhospitals.nhs.uk
Sponsor:

Stephen Burgess, Interim Medical Director, BHURT

Summary:

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of Barking Havering and Redbridge
University Hospitals NHS Trust took place from the 14 — 17 October 2013 and the Trust
was the second in London to be scrutinised under the new inspection model. The final
CQC report was published in December 2013.

Following their inspection, the CQC recommended that the Trust be placed into special
measures, publicly recognising and reinforcing that the Trust must make significant
improvements. Particular areas of focus centred on the emergency pathway and overall
organisational structures and processes to oversee and drive improvement in the quality
of services.

The attached Improvement Plan sets out what the Trust will do to meet these
challenges.

Recommendation(s)
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

¢ Note the Improvement Plan and presentation submitted to the Health and
Wellbeing Board

1. List of Appendices
Appendix 1: Unlocking our potential our improvement plan for 2014/15 (Summary)

Appendix 2: Unlocking our potential our improvement plan for 2014/15
(Presentation slides)

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Barking, Havering and Redbridgel_ﬂ!z..'_zi_|

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

our improvement plan for 2014 /15

taking pl‘ide

in IMProving the

Cdre we provide to
local pEOPI e

FINAL

f{E’ls‘}‘?é\,%an}T\\

lNNO\IATlON
\\WEW/

Page 75



Contents

Introduction
Executive Summary

Section 1: Workforce

Section 2: Patient Flow
Strategic fit with the health economy
ED and Acute Assessment
Discharge
End of life care

Section 3: Patient care and clinical governance
Sepsis
Documentation

Quality Governance
Patient Experience

Section 4: Qutpatients
Outpatients
Day surgery
Section 5: Leadership and organisational development

Section 6: Delivering the improvement plan

Appendix 1 - detailed action plans

Page 76

12
13
15
18
20

24
25
26
27
28

32
33
35

38

40



Introduction

Unlocking our potential: our improvement plan

The 6,000 people that make up BHRT, have a very simple purpose - to provide high quality,
compassionate care and treatment for our local communities.

We have a clear picture of how we want our services to run in the future for the 700,000 local people
who rely on us for care, treatment and support, whether this is planned or in an emergency.

We want to provide high quality care as standard across our two sites. We want high performing
maternity and emergency services that can be relied on 24/7. We want patients to receive prompt
surgery when they need it, with the best possible outcomes and returning home as soon as possible.

In many cases we do this well, and there are many positive things about the services that our staff
provide which should be celebrated. We are, however, alert to the enormous challenge that we face to
achieve this on a consistent basis across all our services, at all hours of the day and all days of the
week.

The recent inspection by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) has given us cause to pause, reflect and
refocus. We are determined to work with our staff to deliver the change that we all so passionately
want to see for the people we serve, and to become a more credible and effective partner in our local
health and social care economy.

To do this, we need services to be provided where they have the best impact, whether at Queen's, King
George or in peoples’ own homes in the community. And, reinforced by the Francis report into Mid-
Staffordshire Hospital and the Keogh reviews into mortality, emergency care and seven day working,
there is a need to make sure our services are of a consistently high standard for patients.

This means working closely with local GPs and councils to play our part in coordinating home care.
We also need to work closely with hospitals across London so our patients have rapid access to
additional specialist skills, expertise and technology should they need it.

At this point in time, we are some way off achieving this vision. The Trust has a number of significant
barriers, some clinical, some financial and some organisational, to overcome first.

Whilst some of these are long-standing and complex, and some cannot be solved by us alone, we can
and must make significant progress ourselves. These challenges come on top of the need to meet
increased demand for our services and make more of limited national NHS resources.

Following their inspection, the CQC recommended that the Trust be placed into special measures,
publicly recognising and reinforcing that the Trust must make significant improvements. Particular
areas of focus centred on our emergency pathway and our overall organisational structures and
processes to oversee and drive improvement in the quality of services.

This plan sets out what we will do to meet these challenges. Importantly, the special measures regime
gives us the opportunity, and the support from across the NHS and with partners, to address these
issues once and for all.

We are grateful to our partners for the support they are providing to us. Our plan reinforces and
supports the strategic objectives of our coalition of partners, especially our objectives of transforming
emergency care and developing our workforce. This plan, and its implementation, will play a major

3

Page 77



role in achieving the aims of our local GPs and local authorities to improve healthcare for our local
communities.

Delivering our plan will not only see immediate improvements in our services, but they help us take
the longer term steps needed to truly unlock our potential. For example, improving our emergency
department will benefit patients in the short and medium term, and will allow us to move forward
with the confidence of our staff and partners to make the larger strategic changes already agreed but
delayed by our current performance. Progress will help us to secure more investment and attract the
permanent staff we need. This will be difficult but only by doing so, will other benefits flow. This plan
sets out what must be done, how, by whom and by when.

Page 78



Executive Summary

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection took place from the 14th- 17th October 2013 and the
Trust was the second in London to be scrutinised under the new inspection model. The final CQC
report was published in December 2013.

The CQC have five themes against which they assess services - safe, effective, caring, responsive and
well led. The full reports are available on the CQC website (http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/rf4).
This section provides a summary of their findings about services at Queen’s Hospital and King George
Hospital.

1. Ensuring services are safe

The CQC said: Many of the services are safe but require some improvements to maintain the safety of
patient care. The A&E department at Queen’s Hospital is at times unsafe because of the lack of full-
time consultant and middle-grade doctors. There is an over-reliance on locum doctors with long
waiting times for patients to be assessed by specialist doctors. Other services such as medicine and
surgery require improvement.

2. Ensuring services are effective

The CQC said: The trust had some arrangements in place to manage quality and ensure patients
receive effective care, but more work is needed in medicine, end of life care and outpatients. Effective
care in the emergency department is hampered by long waiting times for patients to be seen by a
specialist.

3. Ensuring services are caring

The CQC said: National inpatient surveys have highlighted many areas of care that need improvement
and work has been undertaken to improve the patient experience. Significant work has been
undertaken to improve patient care and many patients and relatives were complimentary about the
care they received and the way staff spoke with them. We observed that staff treated patients with
dignity and respect. However, more work is required to improve care in the end of life service and
ensure improvement in patient care in all services is reflected in national patient surveys.

4. Ensuring services are responsive

The CQC said: The longstanding problem of waiting times in the emergency department at Queen’s
Hospital has not been addressed. Poor discharge planning and capacity planning is putting patients at
risk of receiving unsafe care and causing unnecessary pressure in some departments. A lack of
effective partnership working with other health and social care partners has contributed to the
problems.

5. Ensuring services are well led
The CQC said: We found examples of good clinical leadership at service level and staff were positive

about their immediate line managers. The trust Executive Team need to be more visible and greater
focus is needed at Board level to resolve longstanding quality and patient safety issues.

Page 79



Our Improvement Plan approach and structure

We have focused on five improvement themes to strengthen the safety, effectiveness, care and
responsiveness of our services whilst improving how we lead and develop our organisation.

Here is a summary of the themes and the main objectives we will be focusing on:

Workforce: recruiting, retaining, developing and deploying the right numbers of permanent staff we
need to provide high quality care 24/7

Our objectives are to increase the number of A&E senior medical staff, attract more permanent staff to
work here and keep them for longer.

Patient flow and emergency pathway: making sure our patients are assessed and treated promptly
and are supported to return home as soon as they are medically fit to leave hospital, and to ensure
that patients having planned care are treated in an appropriate environment and have the right follow
up care

Our objectives are to improve the way we assess people when they come to hospital, and to work with our
community services to significantly improve the pathway for frail older people. We will reduce
admissions, and ensure people do not spend avoidable time in hospital by changing processes, behaving
as one team across organisations and making better use of community services to provide care and
assessment that currently takes place in an acute bed. We will support this with a new model of clinical
care for patients who do need to be in acute beds, being seen daily by a consultant 5 days a week and
moving to 7 days a week across more wards when we concentrate care on one site.

Patient care and clinical governance: supporting all our care with effective management of patient
notes, information and with systems which alert us quickly to problems.

Our objectives are overhaul our clinical governance arrangements and the way in which we ensure
services are effective through better use of information and increased visibility in frontline departments.
We will also improve outcomes for patients by giving training to our staff to diagnose and treat sepsis.

Outpatients: ensuring effective management of our outpatient services so they run on time, every
time

Our objectives are to overhaul the way we plan and manage outpatient appointments to make them
more effective. For day care surgery, we will improve the environment, reduce the number of cancelled
operations and improve care for patients after surgery.

Leadership and organisational development: putting the right systems, structures, checks and
balances in place to make sure our Trust is properly managed from Board to ward.

Our main objectives will be agreed shortly by the new Chief Executive who takes up their position in April
2014.

Many of the improvements that need to be made are the responsibility of the Trust. However, one of
the major areas for improvement is the emergency care pathway. For this area, successful
improvement needs our actions to fit into the health economy strategy and also needs the support of
partners. The relationship between the improvement plan and the health economy strategy is
described in the patient flow section, and the support required from partners is summarised in
section 6 - ‘delivering the improvement plan’.

Page 80



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS|

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

our improvement plan for 2014 /15

Page 81



Barking, Havering and Redbridge INHS|
University Hospitals

NHS Trust

Improving our permanent workforce

Why this is important

Providing high quality services requires us to have the right number of staff with the right skills in
each of our departments. A stable, largely permanent workforce drives up quality because people
working in our hospitals understand our ways of working, build positive relationships with the local
communities and share a stake in our future success.

The CQC found that:

e Morale amongst our 6,000 staff has improved and their inspectors received positive feedback on
the care our staff provides to patients

e Long-standing difficulties in recruiting permanent staff are having an impact on the effectiveness
and safety of our services across both sites. There is an over-reliance on locum and temporary
staff that impacts on patient care. This is particularly the case in A&E where there are not enough
consultant or middle grade doctors, but is also a problem in some other specialties too.

e Ineffective compliance and shift rota management systems are leading to a poor deployment of
permanent staff and there is no central oversight for management of ward staffing levels and the
use of temporary or locum staff.

Our assessment of the key issues:
The workforce challenges we face are driven by a number of issues:

e The Trust’s long-standing challenges have led to a reputation that does not encourage enough
people to choose it as their preferred place of work. This is particularly the case for junior and
senior medical roles within the Trust, but also applies to nurses and some therapy roles.

e Doctors in training do not always have a positive experience, usually because of perceived high
workloads, and a lack of consistent clinical supervision and training from senior medical staff.
This can discourage doctors from choosing to work here. However, many trainees who have
worked at our hospitals speak very positively about the level of pathology that they are exposed to
at the Trust and the learning opportunity this provides.

e The challenges facing the organisation (in particular those arising from the emergency pathway)
result in high turnover which negates the impact of recruitment. This is compounded by other
local hospitals paying their staff inner London weighting which we are not able to provide because
of our location. For example, exit interviews showed 20% of nurses leave for the same grade job in
another Trust because they receive higher pay and believe they will have a better experience

e There has been a lack of coordinated oversight of workforce levels and the mix of temporary and
permanent staff. Some systems are in place, e.g. eRostering & eJobPlanning but are not fully
utilised.

¢ Job planning for medical staff has been less effective and has not been implemented in a way that
reflects the Trust’s needs and priorities and desired working models.

Page 82



Barking, Havering and Redbridge INHS|
University Hospitals

NHS Trust

Our improvement objectives are to:

1. Increase the number of A&E senior medical staff through improved recruitment, training and job
design

Strengthen and diversify our workforce model by developing our non-medical A&E workforce
Improve the oversight and deployment of our workforce on both a strategic and shift by shift basis
Improve our overall recruitment processes to reduce our reliance on locum, bank and agency staff
Ensure clinical directorates and HR have a shared objective to improve recruitment and retention.

i Wi

Our priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:

Objective one: Increase the number of A&E senior medical staff through improved
recruitment, training and job design

1.1 Through improving the patient flow (which is described in section two) we will seek to make the
A&E department a more attractive place to work, and we will reduce the requirement for A&E
senior staff through consultants in Elderly Medicine and Acute Medicine undertaking the initial
assessment and treatment of a group of patients who are currently the responsibility of A&E

1.2 We will aim to improve recruitment to A&E consultant posts by creating rotations with other
Trusts, such as Barts Health, to make the posts more attractive, and will assess the feasibility of
creating an academic post at BHRT.

1.3 Our local education and training organisation (LETB), health education north central and east
London, will implement new rotations for specialist registrars with our hospitals forming part of 5
out of 9 rotations, and with rotations redesigned to link the significant training opportunity at
Queen’s with more sub-specialist opportunities in other hospitals. More senior trainees will be
placed at Queen’s.

1.4 We will create a local parallel training programme for the 18 non-training grade posts that we
have filled to maximise retention. We will evaluate the success of this and consider further
overseas recruitment.

1.5 We will, with the LETB, create 4 new training posts in A&E and acute medicine by establishing an
acute care common stem training programme at Queen’s Hospital.

Objective two: Strengthen and diversify our workforce model by developing our non-medical
A&E workforce

2.1 We will train 4 advanced nurse practitioners and 7 emergency nurse practitioners to develop an
alternative and more consistent workforce to A&E doctors, as part of the overall A&E senior
clinical decision making workforce.

Objective three: Improve our recruitment processes and attract more people to work at BHRT

4.1 We will engage specialist support and will work with partner organisations to better promote the
opportunities at the Trust, and the local area.

4.2 We will run targeted national and international recruitment campaigns, will regularly recruit to
take account of turnover and will guarantee our local student nurses who achieve their
competencies jobs within the Trust.

Objective four: Improve our retention of people who join BHRT

5.1 We will improve our exit interview process and will work with staff side partners to reduce the
number of people who leave the Trust.

Page 83



Barking, Havering and Redbridge INHS|
University Hospitals

NHS Trust

We will know we have been successful if:

1. Vacancies in permanent doctors or doctors in training fall from 13 Consultant posts and 18 middle
grade posts to 5 and 5.

2. We have 4 ANP and 7 ENP nursing staff in post, working independently.

3. We increase the number of appointable applicants for posts we recruit to.

4. The proportion of our posts filled by permanent staff rises from 87% to 89%.

5. Staff turnover across the Trust falls to no more than 10%, particularly within the Emergency
Department and amongst qualified nurses, which experience rates of 20%.

6. Staff recommending the Trust as a place to work or be treated, as reported in the staff survey,

improves from 3.55 out of 5 to at least 3.7 out of 5 (i.e. from a below average to an above average
score).

A summary of the actions we are taking to move towards achieving our future state is shown on the
following page and the detailed actions are shown in Appendix 1.

10

Page 84



11

Bupjiom juiof

«ddd, I9A9] 8je.103031IQg (4=ss 1) atwhordep

(4e38 11V)

ssao0ud juawi}inioay Biys Aq Yyiys
sasinu daulel)
|le Buiyoel} }se} "|oul JSAOUIN} Jje)s 0} JINJOaI plemio]
S9)eJ0}08lIp - Bunuodal
L Aoy . g sojeplpued Joj aoualladxs uondeoxa Jius Aq yIus
1oy sdnoub o )sJ1j 9AlISOd 8INSUS 0} WEea) JUSLW)INIOSI U} yim pJeoqusep BuisinN
urelay Jo} Bulurely eainies Buioej-juody, Buipnjoul Jakojdwa
2 1INI0aY Ue Se YHg JO SSaUdANOBIE/SHBUS] PUBIqaY
‘ysiigels3 -~
dnjeg Janea| e Buiieme J| seouasge wia} Buo| Jonod 0} pasn - -
S}INJoaJ1 Mau ‘sjood mau :sjuswabuelie yueq maN =
-~
1 o
mwmm_\wﬂm || uopusyal Buinoidwi ojul uonejsue \ S
.\m_w:ma sbuipuly @ ss8001d MaIAIB)UI }IX® PAQUIT Bujuueld gof jo uoia|dwod Buimoj|o} S18)s0l dIpaw pjing
MaIAIBUI =~
Bureaibe g S~
mco_i_bwmn_ S~ - wd shems ot
o
o s Buisinu 1zieq
as|plepue)s S o ! !
0 =/~=< . N
AMEE] T~ Aynqisia |11 183sol aanoadsold aAlb o} S N
IR uonejuswa|dwi WaysAs 19)Soxd O} A N
9)el9|900y _ S \
So - - \
- 00N 8y 8 \
= 339y Io} Sj9pow 80I0pHI0M BININ YSIqEIST "SANY B SAINT Buipnjoul N
‘solpaw (3 apisbuoje aoiopiom poddns paj|is ay) asealou|

- \
\
\

JuswaAoIdwl 30eqpas) @ UOEN|EAS 9aulel} JOJO0p Jojunp \

\ / \
pajujodde \ pasea.oul ‘sou \
Em::wcoo \ uolejos daules) a3 y1L.6ny \

— 1
3 olLUspedE juior \ 1sod ul ||e (S31M\8 L) SiinJoai seaslano apelb a|ppipN
SLivi SLivi SLivl SLive
149 €0 co [X0)

abed e uo ue|d Juswaroidwi 92105410\

|esipaw-uou
Ek’A4

sioluas
Ek’'A4

Page 85



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

section two - patient flow

our improvement plan for 2014 /15

Page 86

12



Introduction: There is a health economy strategy in to which the improvement
plan fits, and can accelerate delivery of the strategic objectives

The BHR economy is made up of partners from Barking and Dagenham CCG, the London Borough of
Barking and Dagenham, Redbridge CCG, the London Borough of Redbridge, Havering CCG, the London
Borough of Havering and Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust and North
East London NHS Foundation Trust.

The integrated care coalition, which is made up of all these organisations, is the vehicle for collectively
building a sustainable health and social care system.

The coalition is placing a particular priority on driving improvements in the pathway for frailty and
long term conditions, as people in this pathway have the most health and social care needs and are
consequently are the greatest users of health and social care from an emergency care perspective.

Transforming the emergency care pathway and transforming our workforce, are the major priorities
for the coalition, and there are clear strategic objectives that describe the future vision for emergency
care across BHR, in which the improvement plan actions sit.

This section describes how the improvement actions associated with the emergency care pathway fit
into and accelerate delivery of these strategic objectives.

Our improvement objectives Which will result in

1. People at risk of an unplanned admission to hospital will be Fewer emergency
identified and care plans put in place proactively to prevent their admissons to hospital
condition deteriorating. and fewer acute bed days

2. For people who do need urgent care, there will be alternatives to Fewer emergency
admission to a hospital bed to maximise the likelihood of them being | admissons to hospital
treated in an ambulatory or home setting. and fewer acute bed days

3. For people who do need admission to hospital, avoidable time in an Fewer acute bed days
acute hospital bed will be eliminated.

4. For people who have ongoing care needs at the time they leave Fewer admissions to
hospital these will be delivered in their own homes as the default to | nursing and residential
reduce avoidable admissions to community beds and nursing and homes, fewer community
residential care. bed days

5. For people who have been admitted to hospital there will be Fewer emergency
interventions put in place to support them after discharge to prevent | readmissions to hospital
avoidable readmissions and fewer acute bed days

6. For people who are at the end of life, they will have advanced care Fewer emergency

plans put in place and they will be cared for in their preferred place. | admissons to hospital
and fewer acute bed days

Delivering these objectives will result in an emergency care system in which the default is care at
home, rather than care in a hospital bed and will ensure that the acute hospital capacity is only used
for patients who need that level of care.

13

Page 87



Building blocks have been put in place in the community

In 2013 /14 a number of community based services were put in place as the building blocks for the out
of hospital enablers to support the new model.

1. Intensive Case Management (ICM), built around groups of GP practices - system objective 1
2. Community Treatment Team (CTT) - system objective 2 and 3
3. Intensive Rehabilitation Service (IRS) - system objective 4

The Trust’s and partner organisation improvement actions fit into the health economy
strategy, build on the interventions to date and will accelerate delivery of the strategic
objectives

The improvement plan will support the delivery of the health economy future model of care in a
stepped way.

1. By stabilising the current emergency care pathway, putting in place significant changes to the
clinical operating model at the ‘front end’ of the pathway

2. Through the new clinical model joining up with the community based schemes and operating
as ‘one team’ to start the more radical shift of services to the new model of care.

3. Through responding to the reduced demand, driven by a concerted hospital and community
effort, by consolidating and reducing the current acute bed base onto the Queen’s site and
rebalancing the organisation to one in which there is a greater focus on specialist out-reach
and support to manage patients in alternative care settings.

The improvement plan has actions for the Trust and partner organisations which fit with each of the 6
key objectives and provide the opportunity to create a fully integrated ‘end to end’ frailty pathway.

The three areas of focus - A&E and acute assessment, discharge and end of life care describe the
improvements that will be made, and the relationship to the strategic objectives is shown on page 23.

14

Page 88



Improving patient flow - Accident and Emergency Department and Acute
Assessment

Why this is important

Last year, there were over 220,000 attendances at our Accident & Emergency (A&E) departments and
we admitted 59,000 patients to hospital. The NHS constitution sets a standard that 95% of people
should be seen, treated and admitted or discharged within four hours of entering our emergency
departments.

There is evidence that shows that people who wait longer than four hours in A&E have a higher risk of
mortality and have higher lengths of stay in hospital. Overcrowded departments can result in the risk
of treatment being delayed with patients being managed in the wrong clinical area.

The CQC found that:

Patients were not always receiving timely and proper care because of major delays in their
assessment and treatment

Patients were waiting too long to see a specialist doctor when they had been referred by an A&E
clinician, and were waiting too long to move to a hospital bed

The pathway for children un-necessarily delays their initial assessment.

Our assessment of the key issues:

Whilst there are some challenges at King George Hospital, the major issues are at Queen’s Hospital,
and the improvement actions largely relate to Queen’s Hospital.

We currently admit around 65 to 75 patients to General Medicine at Queen’s Hospital each day, for
which there should be a total of just over 110 of our beds that we dedicate to assessment and short
stay. We currently run 64 of our beds in this way. This means that short stay patients are
admitted into the main hospital bed base, and may stay in hospital longer as a consequence

The current pathway is ‘serial’ in nature and patients have a review from a senior physician only at
the very end, after the patients have already often spent a large amount of time in A&E being
clerked by A&E doctors and then referred to medicine, to then be reviewed by another junior
doctor

Patients are often not seen by a consultant on the day that they are admitted to hospital because of
the length of the process leading up to consultant review and the length of time that consultants
are present on the assessment unit

There are insufficient alternatives to admission, such as ‘hot clinics’ and ambulatory care which
are not available on a daily basis.

A recent audit showed that around 35 of the patients we admit each day met a frailty score
indicating they would benefit from specialist assessment and treatment by geriatricians. We
currently have 10 frailty beds within the MAU. This means the right clinicians are not assessing
many frail patients.

40% of patients who spend more than 4 hours in our departments are discharged from A&E.
Many of these are out-of-hours. This is in part because the A&E workforce is overloaded, and is
devoting considerable time to patients who are admitted to another specialty, and partly because
of a lack of senior presence out of hours.

There are community services in place which could be utilised for more patients to care for them
in their own homes.

15

Page 89



Our improvement objectives are to:

=

Improve the assessment and treatment within A&E

2. Create a new pathway for frail older patients so they are assessed by a specialist team outside of
A&E so patients are discharged sooner

3. Strengthen the links between the new frailty service and community services to prevent patients
being admitted, and to support more care being delivered at home

4. Increase the number of patients treated in an alternative care setting rather than being brought to
A&E by working with London Ambulance Service and our Community Service partners

5. Create a new initial assessment and short stay pathway for adult medical patients so they are first
seen by a Consultant or Specialist Registrar outside of A&E and are discharged sooner

6. Improve the paediatric A&E pathway.

Our priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:
Objective 1: Improve the assessment and treatment within A&E

1. We will create an observation unit at Queen’s Hospital to treat patients who need observation and
treatment for up to 6-8 hours

2. Develop the Urgent Care Centre to function as a distinct service 24 /7 to reduce the pressure on the
main department, staffed by a dedicated team of emergency nurse practitioners to create a more
consistent workforce

3. We will provide more dedicated paediatric consultant support and leadership to the children’s
A&E.

Objective 2: Improve the pathway for frail older patients, and reduce the volume of activity in
A&E

4. We will change one of our current admission wards into a frailty unit and patients will be assessed
in the unit, rather than in A&E, by a Senior Clinician as they present (known as an ‘on take model’)

5. Community services (CTT, IRS and ICM) will support this and the elderly short stay ward to
discharge more people home

6. We will implement daily ambulatory clinics as an alternative to acute admission, and to support
discharge

7. We will run a pilot to assess patients in their own homes rather than at hospital with remote
support provided by the specialist consultant team.

Objective 3: Improve acute assessment for adults, and reduce the volume of activity in A&E

1. We will create a ‘medical receiving stream’ so that stable medical patients are transferred directly
to the unit, and assessed by an Acute Medicine specialist, removing the step of assessment by the
A&E medical staff

2. The consultant presence will be extended to 10pm, to ensure that more patients are seen by a
consultant on the day of their presentation

3. We will implement daily ambulatory clinics as an alternative to acute admission, and to support
discharge.

16

Page 90



We will know we have been successful if:

=

w

The median time to assessment by an appropriate decision maker is 60 minutes or less

95% of medical patients have their initial assessment by a senior physician within 30 minutes of
referral from A&E

95% of patients stay in the assessment area for 12 hours or less

50% empty capacity at 8am in 18 trolleyed Medical Assessment Space (95% achievement over
rolling 7 days) and capacity of at least 9 assessment trolleys at 8am

50% of patients are discharged within 24 hours of arrival to MAU short stay and 85% are
discharged within 48 hours of arrival to MAU short stay short stay beds

95% of patients who meet the frailty threshold are admitted to the frailty assessment unit within
30 minutes of referral

There is improved patient experience measured through the Friends & Family Test and staff
survey results within ERU and Short Stay MAU.

The next section sets out the changes that we are making to improve discharge and reduce occupancy
in the hospital which is critical to improving the overall emergency pathway. A summary of all the
actions we are taking to improve patient flow is shown at the end of this section on page 22 and the
detailed actions are shown in Appendix 1.

17

Page 91



Improving in-patient care and discharge from hospital

Why this is important

We know that patients want to go back to their usual place of residence as soon as they are well
enough to do so. A well-managed discharge from hospital supports patients to recover and regain
their independence more quickly.

Patients want to be supported once they are at home to check they are coping and to allay any
concerns that might lead to readmission to hospital on an unplanned basis. In turn, this enables us to
admit patients who are medically unwell to the hospital by ensuring that beds are not occupied by
patients who are able to have their care needs met outside of an acute hospital.

Ensuring that only patients who need to be in an acute hospital bed are cared for in those beds means
that the hospital will need fewer beds overall, which in the medium term will allow in-patient care for
emergency admissions to be focused on a single site and will mean that we can provide better quality
with a smaller permanent workforce, meaning that we will no longer have big gaps in our workforce
filled by temporary bank and agency staff.

The CQC found that:

e There were delays in patients being discharged, because of hold-ups in doctors completing
discharge summaries, long waits for medication to take home and delays in putting care packages
in place

e There were patients who were assessed as fit for discharge but were delayed because of a lack of
community capacity or delays in arranging support for them

e Occupancy in the hospital was too high, and the discharge arrangements need a whole system
review

e Some patients were not discharged from ITU when they could be stepped down to a ward because
of a shortage of available beds, which sometimes resulted in patients who needed ITU being
nursed elsewhere

e Patients were being nursed in recovery because of bed shortages, which is an inappropriate
environment and led to operations being cancelled

e There was not clear monitoring of length of stay to identify specific blockages and when and why
they occur

e Improvements were needed in ensuring patients are cared for on the appropriate ward

e Seven day working was not embedded as job planning had not taken place to enable consultants to
be on the ward seven days a week.

Our assessment of the key issues:

e Patients remain in hospital beds despite being medically fit for discharge due to delays in
completing the appropriate paperwork correctly first time - this includes social service referrals
for packages of care, fast-track for end of life care and electronic discharge summaries

e The processes on the wards for prioritising discharges earlier in the day and ensuring that
appropriate actions are being taken to expedite discharge are not consistent; therefore very few
patients are discharged before midday. Productive Ward Round best practice is not rolled out or
embedded across the medical wards to support timely and earlier discharges to improve patient
flow.

18

Page 92



Our improvement objectives are:

1. Toreduce avoidable time in hospital
2. To improve capacity planning

Our priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:
Objective 1 - reduce avoidable time in hospital

1.1 Implement a new medical model for in-patient wards and roll out the Productive Ward Round
model to all multidisciplinary teams with a consultant review of all patients each day, consistent
junior doctor cover and tasks associated with discharge completed in real time rather than
batched

1.2 Implementing a ‘trusted assessor’ model so that patients are only assessed once, and only when
required

1.3 Move to a model of ‘discharge to assess’ through the community based services (IRS and CTT) and
streamline and prioritise the paperwork requirements to support discharge

1.4 Broaden the criteria for rehabilitation beds, moving them to sub-acute beds, with the intensive
rehabilitation service working to support these patients at home more rapidly

1.5 Improving the effectiveness of our discharge and transfer processes through the Joint Assessment
& Discharge (JAD) Team

1.6 Eliminating delays for in-patient diagnostic tests

1.7 Implement LACE scoring to identify patients at risk of readmission and implement the evidence
based community and primary care interventions to ensure people are supported in their own
homes 30 days after discharge.

Objective 2 - improve capacity planning

2.1 Undertaking regular evidence based audits to show our effectiveness of reducing avoidable time in
hospital and using the results to drive change across the health and social care economy.

We will know we have been successful if:

1. There are at least two discharges per medical ward before midday across both sites i.e. 10% of
daily discharges before midday, and hospital occupancy drops to 95%

2. Length of Stay (LOS) for medical wards reduces by at least one day

3. Re-admissions reduce from current position of c6.8% towards the improvement trajectory of 4%.

4. The number of avoidable days in hospital identified in the utilisation review reduces to 5-10%

The next section sets out the changes that we are making to improve end of life care which is
important to improving the overall emergency pathway because at the present time too many people

are not effectively supported to die at home.

A summary of all the actions we are taking to improve patient flow is shown at the end of this section
on page X and the detailed actions are shown in Appendix 1.

19

Page 93



Improving end of life care

Why this is important

Our primary goal is to help people recover from illness or injury, but when someone reaches the end
of their life we want to ensure that people are made comfortable, treated with kindness and respect
and that they are supported to die in their preferred place. The majority of people (75%) say that they
would prefer to die at home.

The CQC found that:

e Some patients and families at KGH felt they were not fully involved in end of life arrangements,
with not enough support and guidance from the palliative care team

e the ease of attending palliative care training, and the numbers of staff doing so, raised the
possibility of variability of care across wards

e there were delays in supporting patients through the fast-track process. There were weekend
referrals to the palliative care team which could not be completed until Monday because the team
was only available Monday to Friday. Care packages are not always delivered on time due to the
length of time it took to complete the referral form and information sharing, particularly over
weekends.

Our assessment of the key issues:

e Too many people die in hospital in BHRUT. The latest SHMI data shows that 76% of people die in
hospital. This shows that we are in the bottom third for supporting people to die at home who are
admitted to hospital and die within 30 days of that admission

e An audit showed that 85% of patients who are considered for ‘fast-track’ discharge are supported
by the specialist palliative care team, with the remaining 15% managed by ward teams. The
average time to complete the fast-track paperwork was seven days for those managed by the
specialist team and 12 days for those managed by the ward teams. The completion of the
paperwork is therefore taking too long

e The national standards for rapid discharge of end of life patients are within 24 hours. The current
process requires paperwork to be completed and sent to the Brokerage Team for ratification
which takes up to 48 hours, making it difficult to meet national rapid discharge standards.
Paperwork required currently consists of four components; National Tool, Care Plan (this is part of
the tool, however a London Wide initiative requires the Care Plan as an additional document),
medical report and signed consent form. We will work with our partners to streamline
requirements whilst meeting statutory requirements for fast track paperwork

e An audit of 32 fast-track applications for January showed that 63% were approved by the CCG the
same day, and 10% within 24 hours. 21% were ratified after 48 hours - and these all related to
applications submitted on Fridays or over the weekends as there is no cover from the CCG
Brokerage team over the weekend.

20

Page 94



Our improvement objectives are:

=

To reduce the number of people who are admitted to hospital at the end of their life

Improving the care for people when they are in hospital and at the end of their life

3. To eliminate avoidable time in hospital for patients who are admitted to hospital and want to be
cared for at home.

N

Our key priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:
Objective 1: Reduce the number of people admitted to hospital and the end of their life

1.1 Working with partners to implement advanced care planning and the gold standards framework
to support more patients to die at home.

Objective 2: Improving the care for patients in hospital

2.1 Raising staff awareness through relevant training in more accessible formats
2.2 Providing specialist palliative care cover 7 days a week.

Objective 3: Avoiding time in hospital when patients want to cared for at home

3.1 Providing specialist palliative care team input across the Trust seven days a week and providing
patients and their families with a named contact who will manage their pathway at end of their life
so patients die in their preferred location

3.2 Streamlining requirements whilst meeting statutory requirements for fast track paperwork
through work with our partners

3.3 Implementing a brokerage system at weekends.

We will know we have been successful if:

1. Staff have the appropriate skills and support to effectively care for patients at the end of their life
with 25% of staff trained by April 2014 and 50% by July 2014.

2. Families speak positively about end of life care within the Trust, measured through the
bereavement survey.

3. Patients are supported to return home more rapidly with paperwork completed within 48 hours
and discharge achieved within 72 hours.

4. More people have advanced care plans in place which support them to die in their preferred place
of care.

A summary of all the actions we are taking to improve patient flow is on the following page and the
detailed actions are shown in Appendix 1.

21

Page 95



2.e0 Ul Ayjiqeliea o} Buipes| splem
$S0J0E 8|qeLeA 81e0 aAjeled ul Buiules; yeis

sjuswebuelie aled
abuieyosig 8| JO puB Ul PBAJOAUL A|INy [88} JOU PIp Saljiwe

MIIADY
9310410\ '@ UoHeSIINN
Buiuueld Ayoeden

- Aemyjed g3 sujelpaed
...... Mo Juaned paroidui| @ S9SS990.d MalADY moj|d
abieyosiq '@ J9jsuel] 9AIOYT -~ Buisin 1z1eq 9131
Sae ,>/ 2 Buiyom Jo skem
N eMijjed 2 |9pOW 93B3 IUNWWOD
spJepn [edIpaj |le oujelpeed -~ o) sdoysyionm jusuissassy ©
SS0J0E 321joeId \ Igv AR 9}noy ® a3 o))
...... }sag punoy - panoadwy R a3 o3 poddns (0]
.............. piepp dA13ONpoId weals Kyjeroads w
,,,,,, BuiAleoay |eslpay SO1Ul|D J0H @ ale) JO [9pow MaN o
Sos SpJep Juaned-uj 1oy R fioyeinquy Ajreqg
" I9POIN [eDIPBIN MBN \ s nun Jejs o} Buluueld qor /
alioy 38800 oreiaan ob_omh_ﬂn_u _>ﬂw saBuey) ejoy / JuUsWInIoay
9 ssasse Alojejnquiy [eauno Hoys | ppY |9POIN 921010 MN B Ayoeden
wdQ] 0} wdg a2IAI9g Juswieal | ,/, Kemyjed »
@ SS999Yy pidey papuajxy N weans Ayjieiq
- N Buluiesy yejs aie)
m:._:mao 29N papualxy /, o4 J0 pug peAcidul
/, ssasoid yoeu]-jse paroidu) ,,, ale)
S soque; M40 PUT
\ \ UM uoljesiunwwod
N | R swed} )sijervads jo
[ ! aouasaid parosdwy
SLivL SLivL SLivi SLivL
1Y) €0 o X0)

abed v UQ ue|d juswanoidw| moj{ Juaijed



Page 97

23



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS|

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

our improvement plan for 2014 /15

3.1 Sepsis

3.2 Documentation
3.3 Quality governance
3.4 Patient experience

Page 98

24



Improving the way we treat people with sepsis

Why this is important

Sepsis is a serious illness which is caused by severe infection and is sometimes called septicaemia, or
blood poisoning. There are different stages of sepsis and as it becomes more severe it can be very
dangerous. It is therefore important to recognise signs of sepsis, screen for sepsis and to rapidly give
patients with sepsis or septic shock a defined set of treatment.

The CQC found that:

e Staff they spoke to had not been trained in BHRUT to recognise and manage sepsis, were not able
to define what sepsis was and did not know if there was a guideline available to follow

e the Trust did not use a best practice tool such as the Sepsis Six which is a series of life saving
interventions and that the observation charts did not prompt staff to consider sepsis.

Our assessment of the key issues:

The Trust has carried out an audit of a sample of around 80 patients who had sepsis to see whether

the best-practice standards were achieved. The audit showed that improvements could be made in:

e the awareness of clinical staff about sepsis and the Sepsis Six care bundle

e the time between patients presenting to hospital and receiving antibiotics

e the consistent delivery of the 3 tests and 3 treatments (known as the Sepsis Six) to patients who
are identified as having sepsis.

Our improvement objectives:

1. Improve the awareness and recognition of sepsis
2. improve the number of patients who have evidence based care to reduce mortality

Our priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:
Objective one: Improve the awareness and recognition of sepsis
1.1 Raise awareness of sepsis and deliver training for our clinical staff.

Objective two: Improve the number of patients who have evidence based care to reduce
mortality

2.1 Implement a screening tool for sepsis and the Sepsis Six care bundle

2.2 audit our compliance with the College of Emergency Medicine standards for A&E, and the sepsis
six care bundles, to ensure that our actions are effective.

We will know we have been successful if:

1. Sepsis is identified promptly through use of the sepsis screening tool

2. patients have the three investigations and three treatments (the Sepsis Six) within the first hour

3. mortality from Sepsis reduces.

Our detailed action plan is shown in Appendix 1.
25

Page 99



Improving documentation

Why this is important

Good record keeping is an integral part of nursing, midwifery and medical practice, and is essential to
the provision of safe and effective care. It is not an optional extra to be fitted in if circumstances allow.
Good record keeping, whether at an individual, team or organisational level, has many important
functions including:

e Showing how decisions related to patient care were made

e helping to identify risks, and enabling early detection of complications

e promoting better communication and sharing of information between members of the multi-
professional healthcare team and making continuity of care easier

e supporting effective clinical judgements and decisions

e providing documentary evidence of care and treatment provided.

The CQC found that:

e Many records, including discharge plans, are not consistently kept-up-to-date and do not include
the care patients either need or have received

e documents did not include the more personal aspects of care, which can impact on experience and
dignity

e patients are transferred across our sites without proper records.

Our assessment of the key issues:
The Trust has not placed sufficient emphasis historically on the importance of documentation and
good record keeping; this is partly a result of a perception of insufficient time being available to front

line staff.

Past audits have also identified concerns around the quality of documentation, however this has not
been effectively addressed.

Our improvement objective is:

1. To ensure that patients are being regularly reviewed and assessed, evidenced by complete
documentation.

Our priority actions that will have the biggest impact are:

1.1 Reinforce and communicate the standards required in respect of documentation

1.2 regularly review patient notes to ensure nursing documentation is of agreed standard

1.3 review all of our documentation to identify changes to streamline it and improve integration with
other healthcare professional records.

We will know we have been successful if:

1. A minimum of 95% of records meet all the documentation standards by October 2014
2. 100% of patients transferred between sites have a completed checklist in place by April 2014.

Our detailed action plan is shown in Appendix 1.
26

Page 100



Ensuring effective systems to monitor and improve quality of services

Why this is important

The NHS Constitution commits all NHS organisations to a series of values including a ‘commitment to
quality of care’ which states:

“We earn the trust placed in us by insisting on quality and striving to get the  basics of quality of care -
safety, effectiveness and patient experience — right every time. We encourage and welcome feedback from
patients, families, carers, staff and the public. We use this to improve the care we provide and build on
our successes.”

Currently we are not able to consistently demonstrate that we have the systems, processes and
culture in place to achieve this commitment.

The CQC found that:

e Incident reporting systems did make clear how the trust was learning from incidents and making
necessary changes

e key safety and quality data is not aggregated into one place to allow for the recognition of themes

e there are not effective systems in place to monitor the quality of the services provided

e there was variation in how national guidelines (eg NICE) are being implemented and monitored

e some staff were unaware of the link between changes in practice as a result of learning from
incidents.

Our assessment of the key issues:
The challenges we face are driven by a number of issues:

¢ Significant focus has been on responding to operational quality and safety challenges which has
diverted attention away from developing systematic solutions

e high turnover of staff (including large number of temporary staff) leading to limited organisational
memory and a need for significant ongoing induction and training of new staff in trust systems and
processes

e limited organisational capacity and capability around clinical governance

e the Trust has not yet undertaken Quality Governance Assurance Framework (QGAF) in readiness
for any future Foundation trust application.

Our improvement priorities are:
1. Improve our systems for overseeing quality of services and ensuring that care is effective

2. improve our risk management systems and processes
3. improve how lessons are learned and changes made.

27

Page 101



Our priority actions that will have the biggest impact are:
Objective one - improve systems for ensuring care is effective

1.1 We will implement a standardised clinical governance infrastructure across all directorates and
review the clinical governance self assessment and address any gaps

1.2 we will strengthen the corporate clinical governance department with staff who will be centrally
managed but will work with directorates to provide expertise and support

1.3 we will expand the quality metrics that are monitored within the Trust through the
implementation of board to ward reporting

1.4 we will implement a peer review process in which each directorate will have a peer review of
quality and safety twice a year

1.5 we will review our compliance against all NICE guidelines and implement a new system for
considering new guidance that is published.

Objective two - improving our risk management systems

2.1 We will put in place a dedicated risk manager and review all of the risk registers to ensure they
are up to date.

2.2 we will incorporate a monthly review of risk registers into the strengthened clinical governance
process

2.3 we will implement an audit programme of completed actions

2.4 we will strengthen the QIA process to include key metrics that will be tracked to ensure that
potential risks are monitored as CIP schemes are implemented.

Objective three - improve how we learn and make changes

3.1 We will audit the action plans for all incidents which result in severe or moderate harm to ensure
the actions taken have been effective

3.2 we will review the top three lessons learned from incidents, complaints and claims and run
targeted campaigns to raise awareness and promote change on a quarterly basis.

We will know we have been successful if:

100% of directorates have had an internal assurance review by November 2014

there is a standard clinical governance system in place across all Directorates

all wards have a ward quality dashboard within a ‘ward to board’ reporting framework

100% of areas have an up to date and accurate risk register which is driving decision making and
improvement actions to mitigate risk

staff report that they have confidence that if identifying risks, action will then be taken

the Trust is compliant with NICE guidance or has assessed and managed the risk where it is not

B W N e

o wn

7. staff are aware of the lessons from incidents and there are clear records of improvements that
have been made, and audits to show they are effective.

28

Page 102



Improving patient experience

Why this is important

Patients have a right to be treated with compassion, dignity and respect within a clean, safe and well
managed environment, a right which is enshrined in the NHS constitution.

We want our patients to not only be treated well clinically, but also in a way which makes them feel
safe and cared for. We want people who use our services to speak positively about their experience, as
an important marker of quality.

The CQC found that:

e Many patients and relatives were complementary about the care they received and the way staff
spoke with them

e more work is required to ensure the improvements are reflected in future national inpatient
surveys.

Our assessment of the key issues:

e As a result of the challenges that the Trust has faced it does not have a strong reputation within
the local community and has not been able to address this in recent years. We need to use the
experience of other Trusts who have improved their patients experience to address this issue

e although the results of the Friends and Family Test have improved, these results have not been
reflected in the national surveys. We think that this is partly because the surveys cover patients
who were treated some time ago, and partly because the underlying reputation of the Trust has an
influence on how people respond to the national surveys.

Our improvement objectives are:

1. Toimprove the reported level of satisfaction with the services we provide by responding to
patient feedback
2. ro positively improve the reputation of the services amongst the local population

Our priority actions that will deliver the biggest impact are:
Objective one - to improve the reported level of satisfaction by responding to feedback

1.1 We will increase our reporting of the Friends and Family Test to weekly, and will broaden the
scope to include outpatients

1.2 we will implement a programme of non-executive director visits to departments

1.3 patient stories will be the first item on the Board agenda

1.4 we will work with other Trusts to learn from other Trusts who have improved their patients
experience, as measured by the national surveys, and incorporate their learning into our actions.

Objective two - to positively promote the Trust to improve the reputation of its services

2.1 We will introduce a ‘you said we did’ campaign on a monthly basis with proactive communication
inside and outside the Trust

2.2 we will commission an independent assessment of the views of key opinion formers about the
quality of services and develop a plan to address any areas of weakness

29

Page 103



2.3 we will improve the way in which we promote positive news about the Trust to the local
community.

We will know we have been successful if:

1. Ourin-patient Friends and Family Test is consistently above the London average within all of our
wards.

2. our ED Friends and Family Test is answered by 20% of patients and improves from its current
position to the London average or better

3. Our ‘you said, we did’ campaign can evidence on a monthly basis our reaction to patient’s
experiences.

A summary of all the actions we are taking to improve clinical governance and patient experience is
shown on the following page and the detailed action plans are shown in Appendix 1.

30

Page 104



1€

aoualiadxa juane aoueusanob
) yushed ssaujjues|)d [esun9
ubredwes pip em wes) Loz
ples noA, e aonpo.ul suelolulo [04}U0D UoRBUI S0y 181 oo
e oo SLpiSe gl swuweJbouid ypne
L. siuenedino ol |44 I 2, Sl o uonepifen Ajyjuopy O S
ay) 9oNpo.aul PUB Zf . — . aualbAy pueH P 1l

MO[3] SI YdIym 81008 -
14+ ue aAeY yoiym

SpJEM JO MBIABI DAIP
-deap e ayelspun

syjuow
- 9 Jayje wiey ajelspow Jo
819ASS UJ }NS8J YoIym sjusploul

||e Joj sueid uonoe ayj ypne

- o

Swiejo pue sjuspioul ‘syure|dwod
WoJ} paules| aJe sU0SsSa| Moy aaoiduwi
0} dnouf ysiuly pue yse} e ysijqeisgy

wa)sAs Buniodas

$S8001d MBIASY

pJeoq 0} piem e jo uonejuswa|dwi 8y} ybnoayy
--. paJojiuow a.e Jey} souew Ayenb ayy ino Buiuspeolq

90ueINSSY MalAal

|00} Jipne
uoljejuswnaop

Jaad e juswsa|dw|

- ‘Buipiodau jo waysAs panoisdwi ue Juswsaldw|

Juswabeuew ‘diysiepes| sy}

0} Jabeuew Sl pajedIpep B JINIosl pUe 4ie)s [BUOHIPPE Y)IM
Juswiyledap aoueuIaA0b [eojuUljo 8)el0diod sy} usyibusng

~. uoljejuswnoop
NN R Buisinu
S Jo uopna|dwod uo
A S9SINN Joluag pue
AN suoJje|\ 91eonpa
ssa00.d N pue abebus 0}
uoljejuswnoop AN swuwelboid e uny
oy} pue R
uoljeyuswnoop /,
Buisinu |je Jo AN —
MBIABI € JoNpuod Kep ssoualeme
\ sisdes e uny

Buisinu e dojarsq

N

iys A1ens uo asinN \
ojoigiiue ue 8oNpo.U|

\

sisdeg Jo sisoubelp
papod e yim [eydsoy
0} papiwpe sjusned |je
jnoge sesinu g3 juswieal) ay) Jpne pue
0G| pue siojoop Kynuspl Alpanoadsoney
a3 ¢g 4no uled | "

\
s|sdes

SLivl
149 €0

SLivi

SLivi SLivl
[49) 10

abed e uo ue|d

JuswiaAosdwi asueutdA0b [edIul|d pue aled jualjed

uonejusawnsoq

sisdag

Page 105



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

section four - outpatients

our improvement plan for 2014 /15

Page 106

32



Improving our outpatient services

Why this is important

There are 670,000 outpatient appointments at our hospitals each year. Many people therefore rely on
us to provide them with a high quality service in which they are seen promptly, at a time convenient
to them and by the right doctor.

The CQC found that:

Appointments are not being booked properly, with poor communication to patients about the
time, date and venue of their appointment leading to confusion, and patients not being booked to
see the right doctor for their condition

scheduled appointments are delayed or cancelled for a number of reasons including missing notes,
consultants being double booked and staff arriving late

the environment in which the sexual health service was located was not fit for purpose.

Our assessment of the key issues:

Since the CQC report we have undertaken an initial review of our outpatient service. It is clear that
major improvements are needed. There are a number of issues that have been unresolved for some
time, and these have been further exacerbated by the introduction of our new PAS system, although
this will help us improve our service once fully implemented.

We have found that:

Patients are not being booked into the correct clinics because our directory of services is out of
date, and our consultants are not reviewing referrals quickly enough to make sure patients are
seen in the right clinic

patients are not able to get through to the contact centre if they want to make or change an
appointment

our staff are not tracking medical records when they are moved between departments which
means we are unable to easily locate the notes to make sure they are available for the
appointment. We found that approximately 15 - 20% of notes are missing based on a snapshot
audit that we completed over a two week period

our clinic schedules need to be completely reviewed and changed because we are booking too
many patients at the same time and at short notice

we are cancelling appointments because of poor coordination with doctors annual leave and are
not able to re-arrange the appointments in a reasonable timeframe

our IT systems for communicating appointments or changes is ineffective and means patients
receive multiple letters and have delays in getting appointment confirmed

systems were not used to check the impact on service quality of moving our sexual health clinic.

Our improvement objectives are:

N =

To improve the environment of the sexual health clinic

to re-build all of our clinic appointment slots so that patients are seen on time in the right clinic
to improve the information we collect about how effective the outpatient service is, monitoring it
more closely and taking prompt action where improvements are needed.

to improve our administrative and customer service arrangements.

33

Page 107



Our priority actions which will have the greatest impact are:
Objective one - restructure our outpatient clinic slots

2.1 We will re-profile all the clinics that we run to create the right number of slots at the right time
intervals and will make sure that clinics are only scheduled when doctors are available

2.2 we will rebuild the directory of services so patients are referred to the correct clinics

2.3 we will leave some clinics vacant so that if we need to rearrange an appointment a patient does
not wait too long for a new appointment

2.4 we will ensure that clinicians are job planned in a way that enables them to attend clinic on time.

Objective two- improve the information we use to oversee, monitor and improve the
effectiveness of our outpatient service

3.1 We will introduce weekly monitoring and then we implement the functionality of the new PAS
system which will enable us to have better information to monitor the services

3.2 we will introduce the Friends and Family Test into outpatients and report by consultant

3.3 we will implement regular senior manager visits to outpatients to seek feedback from patients
and staff.

Objective three - improve our administrative and customer service arrangements

4.1 We will review and monitor the printing workflows to ensure they are correctly set up

4.2 we will create a dedicated team of staff who are focused solely on call handling

4.3 we will ensure that the improvement actions are joined up with the work which is taking place to
ensure our newly implemented computer system is fit for purpose.

We will know if we have been successful if:

Patients are seen in appropriate environments and speak positively about their experience
80% of patients are seen within 15 minutes of their appointment time

their medical records are available to the doctor or specialist nurse who is seeing the patient
patients are seen by the right clinician in the right clinic first time

appointments are not rescheduled un-necessarily

the average ‘did not attend (DNA ) rate drops from 12% to 10% in the first six months from
implementation

7. the DNA rate is sustained for a period of three months thereafter and shows a declining trend.

O U Wi

A summary of the actions we are taking is shown at the end of this section and our detailed action
plan is shown in Appendix 1.

34

Page 108



Day care surgery

Why this is important

Each year, over 65,000 patients have day surgery across our two hospital sites. The CQC found that

too many of our operations are cancelled and too often patients have to recover from their operation

in areas which do not provide a good experience.

The CQC found that:

e Patients recovery after day surgery was not properly managed in order to provide a good
experience

e too many operations were cancelled, with some being cancelled two or three times.

Our assessment of the key issues:

e Day surgery environment means patients often undergo recovery in the wrong environment
e poor processes and lack of escalation and oversight leads to too many cancelled operations.

Our improvement objectives are:

1. To improve the environment in recovery as a short term measure

2. reduce the number of patients whose operation is cancelled

3. improve the arrangements for patients after they go home if they have any concerns or queries

Our priority actions which will have the greatest impact are:

Objective one - improve the environment

1.1 We will create toilet and shower facilities and ensure that a nurse is specifically identified to care
for patients who stay in recovery

1.2 our improvements in patient flow should mean that in the medium term patients will be able to
move to a ward more quickly, and in the longer term we are creating a dedicated elective centre at
King George Hospital, separated from the emergency care pathway.

Objective two - reduce the number of cancelled operations

2.1 We will introduce additional flexible lists on demand to provide additional capacity for urgent
cases so that routine surgery is not cancelled.

Objective three - improve our aftercare for patients

3.1 We will provide patients with be given a dedicated contact number to call if they are experiencing
any pain or have post-operative queries.

We will know we have been successful if:
1. The patient’s experience of day surgery is improved through the availability of toilet and shower

facilities. The provision of cold food during the day will improve the environment for patients
recovering from anaesthetic.

35

Page 109



2. the number of cancellations for day surgery procedures is reduced. In particular the number of
patients experiencing cancellation for a second or third time will be significantly decreased
through the improved use of flexible capacity

3. patients report greater satisfaction with their day case surgery and the support they receive after
going home.

36

Page 110



LE

uoijoe pue J0}IUOC

juswabeuew
|ed1aja1 panosdu)

SSBUBAI}I9D
99S19A0 0} uonjew.ojul abeuep

Auoydasjey
pue Bujpuey
||e0 malnay

EBINELS
Japulway
juswijuloddy
juswa|dw

ubledwes pip am pasiwiuiw
! ! wiul FEI SUOISSeS Jjo ubis
ples noA, e eonpo.ul aq ueo sAejep moy S JebeuBW /  [BWLIOJ UM MBIASI
saube 0} sdno.b ado ay) J90W Buimoyjo} sebueyo
2onpouju| :
- uonesiigels Hels yum sbunesw aonpouu| salbe pue
uonejuswa|dwi * alfys doyssiiom swinoop ‘Ausp|
1sod Joj poddns \ Jejnfai pjoH sauwj ysiuly g \ ‘aun 8

J19X|EM 10O} 8onpo.U|

sdoysyJom ‘Buiuresy ~
Jaysaugel seinbal uny

Jeys / Buluuna aje|
oo Jo Buplodas  /
Je|nbal aonpouju|

SOQ 03 sebueyo

/ paaibe sy} $s820.d

S90IAISS JO AJ0joBlId S, 1SN By}
/ S 10 MaIA8l 818]dWoD B ayeLspun

sanlqisuodsal T~

SpJooal [eolpaw
Buissiw 69 s|dM
“---_ Joabuel e Jojuow

0} pleoqysep
ddo ednpoaul - _

9 $9|04 ‘ss9904d Buiojuow
9aube pue solulo yeag ali4 oy
ue(d uonejuswa|dwi ay8|dwo)

Aoljod sse00y
juaned pasinal juswa|dw|

abueyo pue mainal
Jo} soluljo Joedwi
ybiy Aond aaiby

S<

~

salyje10ads [eolul)

\ pUE SBOIAIBS SInoy Z/ ulyim sjessslel g9 1o Buuojuow juswsidw) .
uoddng usamiaq S \ AR poddns
V1S @9npoau| uoisinel SO Jo swwelboud Buijol e ysijgeis hN JuswieBeuew
e : : P [2A9] Ayeroads . 1osloud
- I\II SN je speaT [edlul|D pue ND Yiim /// yum mC___hO._Qlw..h 10
syeem 9 Aiane sejejdwe} o ubis pue saiby . K1oAlap 8y} SALIP
JuBORA 21UID BUO Buires| Aq 9ABST [BNUUY N N 0} dnoug ysiui4

9 3se] ysiiqeis3

104 MOJ[e 0} SOIUID Mealg adid, Juaws|dw| . S0UBUBIUIBW DILI

[9A8] ey seyoid oulfo 0} 10430 cm_w%cm mmoowa
uononNpa solu|[o Jo Ayoeded sebueyo aje|dwo) 1044109 8bueyo 88.bY

. 0} apew sabueyd ,/ \

O SSOUBAIJOB)Je
. I nosyy wonE00)]

ajen|en
1enieAd Ayunwwod o} uoiedojey

v

\ \
JUSWUOJIAUD
asodind Joj )} ‘G

S9AOW 92IAISS 81NiNny 10} sseo0.d
Juswissassy joedw| Ayjenp ayl ybnouyy abusjeyo
pue Auinios [euonelado Jo eaibap Jejealb e aonpoju|

SLivi SLivi SLivl Siivl
149 €0 4o} 10

ubisap-aJ pue jJuswaAoiduw] Jusanedino

Ing-ay

o pi

so|iyoud 2

1D YljedH [enxas

olul

Page 111



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

section five - leadership and

organisational development

our improvement plan for 2014/15

Page 112

38



Leadership and organisational development

The Trust was placed in special measures because of the scale of the improvements that needed to be
made.

A new Chief Executive takes up post in April 2014 and the Trust will also receive feedback from the
capability review that was undertaken.

As such, the improvement objectives associated with leadership,management and organisational
development will be agreed once the new Chief Executive starts in post.

The priorities for development are likely to include:

1.
2.

8.

9.

Developing a clear, concise strategy for the Trust

Stabilising the senior leadership team and developing a strengthened unitary board and executive
team

Ensuring there is an effective structure and operating model in place to support effective
execution and delivery

Ensuring the executive team have appropriate portfolios to support aligned and effective delivery
Ensuring there is adequate capacity in the non-executive director team, and strengthen the
arrangements for holding the executive to account

Strengthening clinical leadership, and strengthening the collective medical, nursing and
managerial leadership arrangements at a service level

Improving the responsibility for external relationships and developing better and stronger
partnerships

Improving the management and clinical information within the Trust, and how it is used to
become a more data driven organisation with better board to ward reporting

Improving the focus on follow through, follow up and supporting development whilst
strengthening holding people to account

10. Strengthening the communications function
11. Improving our staff and partner engagement

39

Page 113



Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS

University Hospitals
NHS Trust

unlocking our potential

section six - delivering the
improvement plan

our improvement plan for 2014/15

Page 114

40



Delivering improvement: Introduction

We recognise that in the past we have developed detailed plans that have not been fully implemented,
and that delivery of the scale of change that is required is a risk to the achievement of our
improvement objectives.

Approach

The Trust has identified an executive director, who supported by the TDA Improvement Director will
oversee the implementation of the changes we have identified. We will appoint a dedicated
programme director and a clinician to lead the implementation.

The delivery of change will be integrated into our ‘business as usual’ arrangements because it is
important that improvement becomes a more structured part of our day to day work. However, we
recognise that additional dedicated resource embedded within our business as usual arrangements
will be required to achieve the level of change we have identified.

Where improvement work identified in the plan can be integrated with or drive delivery of existing
programmes of work, such as that of the integrated care coalition on frailty and long term conditions
we will do so.

Each of our key improvement themes is led by an Executive Director who acts as SRO, and will be
supported by additional dedicated project management resource embedded within the directorates,
but managed by the central programme director and a project management office which will monitor
delivery.

Recognising that the success of other organisations and BHRT are interdependent in many ways, the
Trust will identify the most effective way of securing the additional implementation support in
partnership with local stakeholders, and will ensure that this is used to build capacity and capability
in change and improvement within the Trust’s operational and clinical staff.

Resource implications
There are four types of resource required to effectively implement the changes we have identified:

1. Additional recurrent expenditure in the short term, which should lead to efficiencies in future
years

2. Non-recurrent expenditure to support the implementation of the plan through additional clinical
and management capacity, PMO support and additional external expertise

3. Transitional expenditure in which additional capacity may be required to provide stability and
headroom whilst the changes are implemented

4. Additional capacity in out of hospital settings

Support from partners
The Trust has been well supported by partner organisations during the development of the

improvement plan, for which we are very grateful. The improvement plan contains changes that can
only be implemented with support from partners and these are summarised below.

41

Page 115



Workforce:

1. Positively promoting the Trust and the local area as a great place to live, train and work

2. Creating workforce rotations that maximise the fill rate of doctors in training - in particular in
medical specialities and emergency care

3. Support the creation of joint consultant posts, or rotational posts.

4. Supporting the development of Queen’s Hospital as a site for future training programmes

Patient flow:

1. Implementing advanced care planning to prevent people needing emergency care

Piloting the deployment of specialist assessment in peoples homes as a response to some calls to
the ambulance service

Streamlining the paperwork requirements to support discharge (such as CHC and fasttrack)
Broaden the criteria for intermediate care beds and implement a trusted assessor model
Implement the discharge to assess model

Implement the evidence based interventions to reduce readmissions to hospital

Increase the support of CTT and IRS to ‘pull’ patients out of sub-acute hospital beds

N

No e W

Leadership and organisational development:

=

Supporting the positive promotion of the Trust and its services where appropriate

2. Implementing joint leadership and development programmes for clinicians and managers across
health and social care

Supporting the development of stronger and more effective joint working arrangements

4. Supporting the development of an outward facing organisation and bringing an external view
inside the Trust

w

Key risks to delivery

1. Capacity and capability within BHRT is inadequate to implement and embed the changes identified

There is insufficient focus on the delivery of the changes required due to competing priorities

3. The changes required cannot be effectively implemented because there is insufficient capacity to
provide adequate stability in the emergency pathway from which change can be made

4. The Trust is unable to recruit to key clinical and managerial posts that are required to achieve the

improvements

The support from partner organisations is insufficient to achieve the changes identified

6. The agreements reached at a senior level in organisations does not translate effectively into new
ways of working at the shop-floor clinical interface.

N

w1

42

Page 116



Governance arrangements

The internal governance arrangements are summarised below

+ Oversight
« Direction

* Review status
« Operations implications

Board
(Monthly)
Review status TEC
Direction
Challenge (Monthly)
Decisions on escalation

CQC Improvement Steering Group
(Bi-weekly — over-see delivery)

[

Executive Team Review

+ Challenge
« Operations support / decisions

* Review status (exceptions)
* Address risks / issues

{weekly) Clinical Lead / PMO Dir

SROs / Workstream Leads / ADOs

« Address dependencies

« ldentify escalations

T T T
Workstream Status Meetings (weekly)
| | | |

Patient Care
And Clinical

Leadership

Patient Fl
aten OW} Workforce And

ED
/ Governance

oD

Manage
delivery
Outpatients

[ Communications

[ PMO - delivery support / status tracking and reporting

The delivery of the improvement plan will be overseen by the Board of Directors on a monthly basis,
and two key sub-committees of the Board (Workforce Committee and Safety and Quality Committee)
will provide further in-depth scrutiny and hold the Executive Team to account for delivery.

As has been described the improvement plan requires health economy oversight, particularly in
relation to the emergency care pathway, and the Integrated Care Coalition will ensure collective

delivery across all member organisations.

Page 117

43



Conclusion - beyond the improvement plan

The improvement plan represents the start of a journey of improvement, putting in place the building
blocks that will create the foundation for future change and improvement. It aims to stabilise the
Trust, whilst taking the first steps to change the clinical, operational and governance models.

More strategic and transformational change can and will then follow on from this, allowing the Trust
to take further steps with partner organisations to further transform services.

This is particularly the case for the emergency pathway in which the improvement objectives in this
plan are aligned with delivery of a smaller emergency care workload and the acute reconfiguration
which will consolidate acute services onto a single site.

A smaller, more efficient and more effective set of services, concentrated in fewer areas will support
the Trust and the health economy move towards the goal of clinically excellent and financially
sustainable services delivering care for local people in the right setting.

1. There will be a lower workforce requirement, which will mean that the Trust will be able to
operate with a lower core staff base. This will improve quality as currently the Trust relies on high
levels of expensive temporary staffing to run the current number of wards that are required.

2. Acute care will be concentrated on the Queen’s Hospital site, allowing the release of acute estate at
King George Hospital to be developed for step down and then ambulatory care as the full impact of

the shift to home based care is achieved.

3. The senior medical workforce will be concentrated on a single site (for emergency care) allowing
quality standards to be achieved.

This improvement plan therefore sets the stage for future and ongoing improvement and
transformation of services for our local community towards the local health economies vision.

Barking, Havering & Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust
March 2014

44

Page 118



\ 15N4] UoNepuUnod SHN HONOWOE NOONOT wmms
5 0RUIPY oy vopuorssezuon  BUITSABH £

sdnoun buiuolssnuwo) jelruid
Bupyreg abprLgpay pue buuaney ‘weyuabeq pue bupyieg

yum diys.aaui.aod uj

GT/¥T10Z 404 uejd Juswanoidwi Jno Jo Asewwns e

|eiauazod ano 3unjoojun

A
ISNJL SHN \‘\\\&“;0%
s|e11dsoH AlisJaniun ﬁ%&_ﬁ_
m.--.NE obpligpay pue bulianeH ‘bunyieg aISNOJsT¥
NSy

Page 119



sioulsed wouj oddng

ue|d Juswanoisduwi s,3snal ayl

sainseaw |epads 3noqe 3q v

S1U3lU0)

Page 120



sreadsoy Jo J103dadsuj Jaryn ay3 wo.aj uordadsui-al e oA [[IN -
VAL 93 £ usasIaA0 SI yoiym Ayauowr ssaagoad ja0dad 03 oAy -
SyuswaAoIdwil ayew 03 31oddns 9AIIdY -

owIl}
Jo poLiad e 19A0 syusawaAoxduil I9AI[Qp pue ueld e aonpoad 031 Ay -

ue[d yuswaAoaduwir s 3snuj, ayy 3roddns
pUE 93S.I9A0 0] Pajedo[[e 1032aJ1(] Juswaaoldw] V(] e 9ABH -

Sa.nsSeol —m_umgm Ul SSNI], e

uonisod [enpueUY
duneJaor1alap ay3 uaAIg ysel diysiapea[ ay3 Jo a[eds a3 JO MalA
ur pue sguipuy s[ealdsoy jo J103oadsuj Jo1y) ayl pamoJ[o) LYHYg e

sogua[[eyd JUedIUgIS 9deJ SUOIlesIuesIo
aJ19ym 110ddns pue snooj 91ea.d 03 papuajul UOIIUDAIIULI UY e

Sa.Inseaul [e133ds JO MIIAIIAO0 JILIq V

Page 121



peopJom Aduagiawa pue aAII|D
ay3 Suipuejegal pue sieaA aininj ul 121Jap Y3 9dnpal
0} Suedalsd ‘wQgF JO uoidNpaJs 1500 Yydnouyl WLEF Juswanosdwl
Jo 1dp e yum uonisod ||13s puels, e SulidAlRQ e 1S0)

101 o asn pue A3ojolpeu
‘Alljleraow a|geploAe ‘s|je} ‘uoilonpal wJey pue
SNIND) se yans saiaond Juswanosduwi Ayjenb |07 «

JUSW1eaJ] 0] |BJJDJ3] pUE JJUBD JO Sulewop
3yl ui spaepuels Suijesddo jeuoljeu uj sjudwanosduw]

i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
-

S92IAJIDS A)| Ul P3| ||]9M pue SSaudAIsuodsal
‘Bulied  ‘ssauanIldRye  ‘AJ9jes Jo sulewop 9Yyi Jo
M3IA3J S,|e11dSOoH Jo J03dadsu| Ja1yd ay3 Jo s3ulpulj ay3
ssaJppe 0} judwanosdwi palodiel jJo sease A)| 9Nl e

Juawanosdwil
AJl[enp

8u1l00j 3|qels 210w e 0} UO pue sainseaw |e1dads J0 N0 sh dnow 01 ST/YTOT

10} ue|d Jusawanosduwi 3s0d pue Ayijenb paduoud 1noj 1no jo Jusauodwod duo Si Syl

Page 122



"ue|d 21891415 WIISAS 3yl yum
Juswugije uisiugodad ‘uollljeo) aie) pales3alu| 1e ) Sid AISAIDP UO SieaAed
Y}IM uoijuansdlul Ay pue sajdipuiad ‘UoiISIA pasiopus pue passnasig

‘ue|d 21891e435 WAISAS ay31 yum juswusgije 3uisiugodal ‘pieog aJe) Y10
JU93.N 1e uolluanIRuUl A3y pue sajdidulid ‘UOISIA PaSIOPUD pue passnISIq GAKH

9a11wwo) A1sjes 13 Aljenp Aq pasiopul
siaulied yum paleys uejd Juswanoidwi syl JO 1elp PUOISS

Juswdo|aAap |euJaiul 8UIMO|[0} ¥TOZ MEAL
UdJBeIA ;36 UO Suaulied yum padeys uejd juswanoidwl 9yl Jo Yeup 1sil] Gk

10¢

10T Adenigad g uo pa1niwgns pue padojaAsp suolide adueljduwo) (s

€T0¢

paysijgnd maiaau s |elidsoy Jo 40329dsul Ja1yD 3yl JO SSUIpUl] (i

2w} jo polad e 1an0 padojanap uaaq sey uejd Juswanoadwi anQ

Page 123



ao % diysiopea1 @
syuannedino @
92UBUJIBA0D |ediul|) °

Aemyzed ated Adusdisws syl @@

s0.0ppoM @

suonoe jusawanoiduwi Suippoddns
pue saA1129[qo jJusawanosdwii sey awayl yoe3j ‘mainal s |eyidsoH Jo 101dadsuj

J21YD 9y3 Jo s3uipul) 3yl ssaippe 03 sawayl Ady g suiejuod uejd Juswanosdwi anQ

Page 124



/S .0pisnw 03 3uiiejal saAd3[qo Jo Jaquiny -

L]
L]
e NN

()
(9
9

1@ @ - 0

(=
(=)
o

saAI123lqo
®© 0 0 0 ..

dAISUOdsay dule) 9113343 9jes JO Jaqwnp dway L

suollde Juswanosduwi Ajuond 79 Aq pasanlap 3q ||Im s9AIA[qo 3y “suollde
Op 3shw 0} 91e|a4 ZT Yd1ym jo ‘sannaaigqo Ajiaond gz ase aiayl - 3doedwi 3598519 ay)

9ARY ||IM Jey] suollde pue saAI133[qo Juswanosdwi Ajiolad syl paijiruapl aney apn

Page 125



ydom
pue uies} ‘aAl| 03 dde|d e se eale 3y} }0WoId T'E

(dN pue vd) 14Hg
1e sswwes3oad Suiuiesy pajepljosuod dojansaq 1°¢

SUO0I1B104 24N10NJ1S9Y Z°T
dwwesdoud paywi| dwiy AID
e pue s3sod djwapede ‘sysod |euoilelod 31eal) 7'

,Siouried jo sysy,

1uswagedus yje1s anosdw| 'y
suoljoe 9ye} pue aned| 9jdoad
1eY1 SUOSeas ay} Jo ssauaseme 4no anoudw| Ty

JaA0uIN] J0J HNJJBJ pue ‘sudiedwed paladiel uny '€
1SnJ| 3y ul saiunyoddo ay) 9jowoad 1913199 T°E

SANV pue dN3j uled] T°¢

Wwials SOJV Ue ysl|qels3 ¢°T

SUIDIPIA 91NdY pue

31V ul s10100p Joiun( Jo ururesl ayl snosdwi pue
D)JN 40} swweasdoud Suiutesy |9jjesed e 91eau) 7°T
JUBWUOUIAUD Suly4oM 3yl dAoidw) T°T

SUOl1oe 1YHY

14Hg utof
oym 3|doad aiow uleiay ‘v

9]doad aiow joeayie
pue juswinoa4 daosdw) ¢

92J40p140M 3Y3 AJISIBAIQ "

Suiyjels [eaipaw
IRV 401Uds Y3 anosdw| T

19Y3a803 359 3y} o2q
03 swea} Jno dojanap pue ‘4saqg ay3 uielal ‘3saq ay3 }n1dal 03 suonde Ayond ¢ JnQO

Page 126



|eyidsoy ui a1p ‘a1p oym |eydsoy o3 pajywpe 3jdoad Jo %9/

Spaq 0z ulwnsuod ‘¢ 0 €
)OOM Ul %EE “[99M PUOIIS Ul %€ ‘SABP £ UIYUM Pa1lILpedl %G "93eIDAE [BUOIIBU DAO(E SUOISSIWpPEdY

(%59
-0G uollepuswwodal | S| Isutede) syysiupiw ¢ 940499 pasdieydsip (]|e JO %Gt) SuoIsSiwpe |edIpaw JO %ZE

+%86
1e Aduednddo 1nq ‘papasu 3q pjnoys 1eym 031 3AIle|aJ spaq Auew 001 pue ‘9de|d 3uoam 3yl ul spaq SUOIM\

sa11
€ YUM +98 uayl pue )17 Z-T YIMm +98 Ag pamo||0} D17 €-T YUM G8-G9 40} 9q 03 sieadde asn paq 1s93.e7

audIpaw
ul 98esane 433d 03 Suinow Aq QT2 Jo Alunpoddo ue yum agesane [euoljeu ueyy Jay3diy Aels jo yidual

Sp|o Je3A G/< 10} Su1aq P41yl SUO JIAO YHM ‘S|eAlrde duelnquie y3iy AJap
21493142 Aj1ed) Y3 193W %05 Yd1ym jo ‘Aep uad HD 1e G9 JO SuoIsSIwpe |edlpaw 93elaAy

sinoy 4o 1no Ajjuedijiugis sasi 10300p QY ue
995 0] dwi} pue ‘Dwoy pasdieydsip aJe Juswipedap ayl ul Sanoy  ueyy aJsow puads oym sjuailed Jo %0p

93eJaAe |euolleu ueyl J9y31y d1eJ UOISISAUO0D Y

93eJaAe |euolieu punoJse uoljejndod 0} aAIle|D. S1kJ uoIssiwpe Aduadiaw]

1X93U0J 9WOS :MOJ|j luvlled

Page 127



IS
9UO UO palepI|oSuU0d el dnde Yym aseq |eydsoy
91nde Ayjenb uaysiy 43jjews e uj }jnsas pjnoys

SIYL "dwil 9y} ||e d2e|d ul S9IIAIIS pue SwdIsAs
Y311 9Y3 dAeY pue ‘wed) dUOo Se dABYI([ dM dShedd(q
‘Aemyied ayj jo ade)s A1dAa je 3 nejap ayj Sl SWOH

9.Jed Jo 9oe|d paJsasaid
41943 Ul 104 pa4ed 3q 01 S9AI| JI9Y} JO
pua ay3 1e 9jdoad asow 3uiuoddng

g

|endsoy ui aued 93.1eydsip Ja1je sAep 06 swoy 1e
3941| Jo pua SulAIad34 sJualled JOMB] e duiurewsau ajdoad yiim ‘@84eydsip uo 6
9Jed Jo 9oe|d 3 nejap ay3 Sulaq sSWoOoH

dwoy 1e 3ulAels 9|doad aiow

aJed |enlnuapisal

pue SuISiNU 0} SUOISSIWPE JAM3] e pasu
Ju334n ue aAey op 9|doad uaym

UOISSIWPE 01 SaAIleUId]|e SuIpIAnOId

pasau
91nde ue yum sjuailed 104 pasn Ajuo
Spaq @1nde pue ‘pag e Ul BWI1 SSIT e 9Jed jo aoe|d
}nejap ayl sawoy yum ‘aposida
suolssiwpe AouaSiowa Jomaq e - Aduadisws ue Suiney ajdoad 1uanaud

21393e431s Awouo2d yijeay ayl yim suoijde ugije ol swie uejd yuswanosdwi ayy

Page 128



11

dJV pa4nionas uswajdw) z°g
Spudyeam je
93eJa)0.4q Juswa|dwi pue yaomiaded duljwealls T°G

NYN pue NY3 01 pualxa 0} [spow |13 9°¢C
spaq Ajap|e 91nde yoddns 01 SY| G
SUOIJUAAJDIUI PASEQ JUIPIAD / Judwa|dw| {2
sadeyoed aJed 9|dwis pue sue1sdYy £°¢

ssasse 03 9dueyosiq Z'¢

[9pOW J0SSSSEe paIsnJ] T°C

,Siouried jo sysy,

sqny aJed xajdwod jo 1ed se DdS apinoid Z°§
SspJem ainde
pue NVIAl 01ul aJed aAieljjed uosiel| uawa|dw| T°g

supne
2Jed Jo [9Ad] uisn Suiuue|d Ayoeded sanosdw| 'y
paem aA139npoud 1IN0 |04 pue [9pow ,Jo-uQ, T'v

sanpsougelp juanned-ul 4o} sAejap areuiwl3 '€
sotulp Asojeinquie Ajleq €€

wdQT 03 92uasaid JUeRYNSUOD NYY PUSIX] '€
NYIN 313D T'€

8un0ds 3Dy wswadw| 'z
SuoljuanJIuI [eydsoy-aid €°C
sojulp Atojeinquie Ajleg z'z
Hun Ayjlesy e 91e34) T°C

ssa22e o13soudelp anosdw| T

a3 ouieipaed anosdw) €T

92IAJ3S DD duojepuels e dojanaq Z'T
}1UN UOI1BAISSqO QJ Ue 91edI) T'T

SUOl1oe 1YHY

o9Jed 9}l| }JO pus _uw>0._QC\__ ‘q

[9pow juanled-ui paroidwi

JuUBWISSasse
91ndy panosdw ¢

Aemyied Ayjresq panosdwi g

JuaWISSasse IRy UO>OLQE_ ‘T

Page 129



1

dupjaom Jo Aem siyl 01 A0OW }JJe1s aul| JuU0Jy
14oddns 01 JuswdojaAsp pue 3ululedy Jo swwesdoud e Juawa|dw|

yoeoudde ,weal auo suonesiuedio Auew, e
140ddns uoilesiuesio UsaMlaq Sluswasduelle 3JUBUIDA0S Y] 94nsu]

d1DN wouj 1oddns yiim Ayjies) uo S140449 9AI1329||0I JNO US|y 0

Page 130

suollesiuegio ssoJde diysiapes| |eatul|d yuswa|dw Q

:0] paau a3y} pasiel
9ABY puUB ,SUOIIUSAIDIUI, 9Y] pue yoeoudde ayj pasiopud
9ABY UOI1I|eOD 248D PaleI8ajul pue pieod aJed Juasdin ay]

J9AI|9p 03 SNJ0}  pausije ue pue

“qQuawdojanap jo swwesdoad juedijiudis e Aq pajyioddns aq 03 pasau ||Im siyl




€T

siawJoy uotuido A3) JO SM3IA By} pueISIdpUN '8 uoneindau
uSiedwed pip am pies no, T°8 9dUBYU?D 03 SIDIAIIS S,3SNJ] 3y} d10woud AjA1ISod '8

S1SnJ| J9Ylo wodj uiea] '/
epuade pJeog uo sa1403s Judlled €/
sjuawiliedap 03 SUSINQIN L

144 Jo Aduanbauy pue a3ueu aseasdu| T/ 3oeqpa9y 03 uipuodsaa Aq uoioeysiles anosdwy £

sugiedwed pajadie) ul Suossa| € dol ayl aiedlunWwWo) Z°'9
wJey 9)eJapow 40 349A3S 404 sue|d uoiloe |je ypny 1°9 Suluiea) snoudw "9

ssa20ud y|D uayiduaals '
suoioe paldjdwod upny €°g
S49151394 YSI4 JO MaIADJ Jendad Juawa|dw| z'g
S491S1394 SIJ ||e M3IAJ pue J9Zeuew s dde|d ul ind T°G SJwasAs Juswadeuew s anosdwy *g

spJepuels 3)IN isuieSe aoueljdwod MaINdY S

S9IIAJDS JO M3IAJ J3ad Juswajdw] ¢

sol2w Anjenb jo a3ues ayy puedx3y €'

juswedap dueusanod |eatuld ayl uayiduails 7'y
ydomawesy 9aueuldA0S |ed1uljd pasipiepue)s Juswaldw| Ty 942 JO SSUAAINDYD Suli0}uOW 40} SWIIsAs anosdw)

UOI1BIUSWINJOP SUI|WEDIIS PUB MIINDY €'€
s9j0u Mpne AjJen3ay z'¢

SpJepue)s paJinbaJ 92404ulaJ pue 31edIUNWWO) T'E 9Jed JO uolleuswnlop anosdwy °€
doueldwod jo ypne Jeingay z°¢ 94ed paseq

d|pung a4ed xis sisdas uswajdw| T°¢ 92U3PIAS SulAI9I34 SJUdled JO Jaquinu 3y} 3Seasdu| g

Suiuresy Asojepuew AssnBQ T'T sisdas jo ssauaseme anosdw| 'T

sjudwaduelse dueusdanos Ayljenb ano anoisdwi 03 sanndalqo Ajuond g ale auayl

Page 131



14"

10e3U0D JO julod pajedipap e apinosd T°9

SUOI}e[|92UBD 3I130U HOYS dINPAJ 0} SISI| 3|qIX34 [EUOINPPY T°G

HO)| 1€ 241uad 9AI109|9 pPajedipap e aleal) ¢'v
HO 1€ 3131|198} JaMOYS pue 13|10} 31edJ) T'y

ue|d Juswanosdwi Syyd Aempaln ay3 Juswajdwi| €°¢
Sulpuey |jed anoadwy z°¢
MO|pdoM pue Judlu0d Sunulid pue 19119 MIINSY T°€E

ado uijuswadedus Jusawadeuew Joiuads anosdw| €
jueynsuod Aq |44 Juswajdw| z'¢
awi} uswiulodde Jo s2INUIWGT Ul u3dS suaed 9 Jo Suloyuow APRIM T°C

9WI]} UO puajle suepIuld aInsul '
So1ul|D yeauqaJly Juswajdw| €T
SOd pPINgay Z'T

salulpd ||e 3jyoaday T'1

Suofoe 1YHY

oJedialje uno w>0._QE_ ‘9

suoljesado paj|aoued dNpay 'g

JUSWUOIIAUD Alanodau oyl w>0._QE_ v

9JIAJSS J19WI0ISNI pue ujwpe Jno w>OLQE_ €

sjuanedino Jo 1y3is49n0 Jno anosdwy| g

$21UI]2 JUa13ed1N0 N0 34N3INIISAY T

Page 132



ST

1Joddns
|euollisuedy Jo yoe| e pue wooJpeay ou Yim ‘|[apow p|o ayl

ul Sutuund |]13s aJe am 1s|Iym agueyd juedjludis suiruawajdwy °

pailuswsa|dwi ulaqg SJ9Ylo woJ} pasau am 1oddns ay | G

J19A1|19p 0}
sn2oj pue Ayljigedes ‘Ajioeded Jno - iawiil SIYL 1USIDHIP SI JeYM a

siaulied JNO JO SMIIA Y3 YHM JUIISISUOD dJe 3SaY)

pue ‘saAad3lqo Juswanoaduwii 1no Jo A1dAIIDP 3Y3 01 SHSI Ad)| € paljiIuapl aney 9\

Page 133



91
9Jejialul
juaned 9yl 1le 21eud _mCO_HwthO 0] JuU9lul JO uoljejsuel] Jualsisuo) °sinoineyaq pue ddueusdnosd ,wea} auQ,

sadeyoed aJed 9jdwis pue s1ielsay
ssasse 0} 984eydsig
[9POW J0SSISSe paIsnJ |

sjudwdsueusse 38ieydsiq

dJV pa4nidnis HCOEO_QE_

Spudy@am le 93esdyo.q Judwajdwi pue yiomiaded suljweasis

S9JIAJ3S 34D 3YI7 JO pu3
SUOIJUDAIRIUI PISe] SIUBPIAS £ Judwd|dw|
NYIAl pue NY3 03 PUSIXd 0} [SpOW | D

spaq Alaop|a a1noe Joddns 03 SY|

Apaapia aya jo aue) / Ayjreay

siduned wouj yoddng

Page 134



LT

suoljsanb pue sdajs IXoN

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



AGENDA ITEM 7

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | The Joint Assessment and Discharge Service

Report of the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Contact Details:

Bruce Morris Tel: 020 8227 2749

Divisional Director, Adult Social Care E-mail: bruce.morris@lbbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Anne Bristow, Corporate Director Adult and Community Services

Summary:

The Board previously considered detailed proposals for the development of a Joint
Assessment and Discharge Service in August 2013. The statutory partners in the BHR
health and social care economy, London Borough of Havering, London Borough of
Barking & Dagenham, London Borough of Redbridge, BHRUT, NELFT and the 3 CCGs
have been working together through an “Integrated Care Coalition” to finalise service
development and begin steps towards implementation.

This report provides an update on progress for the new service which became operational
from 2 June, and continuing work to resolve remaining outstanding issues.

Recommendation(s)
The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to agree:

(i) To note the progress of the Joint Assessment and Discharge Service

(i)  To note that a further report will be brought back to the Board considering future
hosting arrangements for the service.

1. Background and Introduction

1.1 The Joint Assessment and Discharge Service (JAD) Service will consist of around
50 health and social care staff, with a staffing budget of c.£2m. The Service
Manager was appointed in February - employed by LBBD as the ‘host’ organisation.
Remaining appointments were made at the end of May following the formal staff
consultation process.

1.2 The JAD is the single point of contact for all referrals of people who may require

health and/or social care support at the point of discharge from the hospital, in the
form of care and support at home or in residential and nursing care with a dedicated

Page 137



2.2

2.3

member of staff, either social worker or nurse, for each ward. The service has been
made up of a number of teams employed by both NHS and local authorities brought
together in one service and operates 7 days a week to both facilitate discharges at
weekends and meet with family members who may visit relatives at weekends.

Governance

The development and implementation of the JAD has been overseen by the
Integrated Care Coalition and the Urgent Care Board with regular Executive
Steering Group meetings with senior representation from each participating
organisation led by LBBD.

Partnership arrangements are formalised through a s.75 agreement which gives
delegated authority for staffing matters, commitment of care budgets and decision
making for Continuing Health Care expenditure. The aim is that, as far as possible,
decisions can be made as close to and with the patients and families concerned,
rather than decisions being referred back to “panels”.

The implementation of the JAD is intended to positively impact upon broader
system improvement and particularly assist the performance and quality
improvements required at BHRUT. The developments dovetail with the
Improvement for BHRUT and the service works at both a strategic and operational
level with BHRUT.

Staffing

A formal consultation process with affected staff from 4 employing organisations
was led by LBBD following the relevant policies and procedures and concluded on
8th May. A small number of staff who have been displaced who are being
managed through their respective organisations’ policies and procedures.

Recruitment for the small number of vacant posts is underway led by LBBD and
staff who will be employed by partners depending upon where the vacancy arises.

Accommodation

At the point of writing this report, BHRUT have not been able to identify appropriate
accommodation for the service which is disappointing. A number of solutions are
being pursued by BHRUT and the partners and the service look forward to a
satisfactory solution.

Processes

The main objective for the service was to improve the effectiveness of discharge
arrangements from BHRUT. The service has hosted and led a number of pilots
with 3 elderly wards with a view to developing consistent processes and behaviours
that can be modelled throughout the hospital. The engagement of staff at all levels
on the wards has been encouraging and BHRUT have played and a full and
effective part in the development of the service.

Page 138



7.2

7.3

Consultation

Healthwatch have facilitated two consultative events bringing together the
schemes within our joint Better Care Fund plan — of which the JAD is a specific
scheme.

Mandatory Implications
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Integration is one of the themes of the JSNA 2013 and this paper is well aligned to
address and follow up these priorities and the strategic recommendations of the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. Social care and health Integration is a
recommendation of all seven key chapters of the JSNA but in particular for:

a) Supported living for older people and people with physical disabilities — see
JSNA at

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section5/Pages/Section5-8.aspx

b) Dementia — see JSNA at

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section7/Pages/Section7-28.aspx

C) Adult Social Care

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section5/Pages/Section5-9.aspx

d) Learning Disabilities —

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section7/Pages/Section7-3.aspx

e) Mental health- Accommodation for People with Mental lliness

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section5/Pages/Section5-7.aspx

f) End of Life Care

http://www.barkinganddagenhamjsna.org.uk/Section7/Pages/Section7-31.aspx

9) The care of older people and end of life care including dementia, caring for
the carers, discharge from hospital, and continuing care of patients with
chronic conditions

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The service has been developed to positively impact upon the health and well being
of people who have received acute care and require support, information and
advice to leave hospital in a timely and safe way. This is a key service in helping to
deliver improvements in health and social care outcomes through integrated
services.

We have developed a range of performance outcomes for the service which both
align to existing measures — such as the number of people remaining at home after
91 days of discharge, number of discharges and numbers entering long term bed
based care. We are also critically developing a measure that will provide the service
with direct feedback from service users and their families determining both their
experience of support and the extent to which they consider that their individual
outcomes have been met.

Integration

The delivery of the Joint Assessment and Discharge Service will deliver a single,
integrated discharge function across BHRUT involving hospital discharge staff,
LBBD SW staff, LB Havering hospital SW team and staffing resources from
NELFT.

Page 139



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Financial Implications

At this stage the service has been modelled on existing staffing budgets and final
job evaluations; there are no financial issues. The pooled implementation pot is
considered sufficient at this stage, and partners are continuing to manage additional
one-off implementation costs from within their own budgets.

The S.75 provides for delegated authority to the service in respect to social care
budgets and Continuing Health Care. Further work is being completed from finance
teams to ensure there are simplified approaches to funding flowing between
organisations and satisfactory reporting mechanisms and draft monitoring and
reporting arrangements are currently receiving consideration by the Steering Group.

Implications completed by: Roger Hampson Group Manager, Finance (Adults
and Community Services)

Legal Implications

Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Local Authorities
Partnership Arrangements Regulations (2000) (S1 617) (as amended) provide the
statutory foundation allowing certain Local Authorities and NHS Bodies to form
partnering arrangements for the provision of health and social services to
communities they serve.

These statutory requirements set out the circumstances when and type of
information that must be included with what is known as a S.75 agreement.

The delivery of the JAD required a formal S.75 to be in place to address the
arrangements which would allow staffing and resources to be managed within the
service. We have developed a final draft of a S.75 which has been subject to
support from the Councils legal services and in turn partner organisations
contributing to the JAD seeking parallel input from their legal representatives.

Legal Services continue to work with the instructing client department in
progressing the final S.75 agreement and are available to provide further advice
and assistance as required.

Implications completed by: Allan Donovan, Interim Corporate Lawyer
Risk Management:

The S.75 provides for the management of risk between the partners to the JAD and
includes provisions in the event of exit from the service by the partners.

Customer/ Patient/service user impact

The provision of the JAD will support improvements in collaborative working with
decisions moved closer to the service user and their families as planning for
discharge is begun within the wards at the point of admission.

Alongside a range of performance measures the conclusion of our approach to
gaining direct feedback from individuals and their families will provide further steer
in the development of the service as this beds down.

Page 140



AGENDA ITEM 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 June 2014

Title: | Addressing Variation in Primary Care — A Report for Barking &
Dagenham H&WB Board

Report of the NHS England London Region

Open Report Yes For Information
Wards Affected: All wards Key Decision: No
Report Author: Contact Details:

Neil Roberts, Head of Primary Care NHS _
England (London Region, North, Central & Tel: 0207 932 3888
East) E-mail: neilroberts@nhs.net

Sponsor: John Atherton, Head of Assurance North Central and East London

Summary:

The paper sets out how the variation in primary care performance is identified and
handled. The appendices provide some background on the GP outcome standards and
some key data relating to primary care contracts and contractors. It makes reference
where the Board might like to consider its due diligence of contracts offered to GP and
pharmacies for the services the Local Authority commissions.

Recommendation(s)
The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended:
(i) To note the content of the report

(i)  To determine how it might want to consider its “due diligence” on those services the
Public Health team choose to commission from GP practices and pharmacies

Reason(s)

Variations in the quality of primary care will result in variations to the standard of service
provided to our local population.

1. Background and Introduction

1.1 GPs are independent contractors, not employees of the NHS. Mostly GPs work to
national contracts. The process for handling poor individual performance is defined in
Performer List Regulations (community pharmacy has no contract but is bound to
deliver services to a set of statutory regulations). Once variation is identified,
handling mechanisms are put in place that may relate to developmental, contractual
or formal performer list action (or a combination of all three).

Page 141



41.

4.2,

4.3.

44,

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

Proposal and Issues

Systematic scrutiny of delivery of GP standards and their improvement is getting
underway with the CCG. All practices have access to the web tool where these data
are maintained — practices had to validate their data. New primary care strategy and
some new London standards are emerging.

Consultation

Much of this is national contract matter negotiated at the time between the NHS and
the professions centrally.

Mandatory Implications

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

H&WB supporting improvement programmes
Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Not applicable to H&WB Board

Integration

Not applicable to H&WB Board

Financial Implications

Not applicable to H&WB Board

Legal Implications

Legal implications relate mainly to the NHS. Ramifications for the LA if it
commissions services from a practitioner/contractor not able to work because of
Regulatory Body action.

Implications completed by: Neil Roberts, Head of Primary Care NHS England
(London Region, North, Central & East)

Risk Management

Not applicable to H&WB Board

Patient/Service User Impact

Not applicable to H&WB Board

The purpose of the work is to improve services to patients

Page 142



5.1.

Non-mandatory Implications

Contractual Issues

Contracts held and managed by NHS England. Local Authority may have some
contracts with some GP practices and community pharmacies

Background Papers Used in Preparation of the Report:
None

List of Appendices:
— Addressing Variation in Primary Care (Powerpoint Presentation) — May 2014

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



Jle sn 03 sBuojaqg SHN a3

NOILNLILSNOD

SHN JH1

leuid A
102 AeN

pieog gMRH weyuabeq g bunjieg Joj
lloday vy — alen Aiewlid ul uonele) buissaippy

Buluoissiwwo) aJten Alewld

pleog buluoissiuwo)

SHN

Page 145



9ouewJoyiad
ates Atewnd Jo} sawuweidboid Juswanoisduwl

Joddns ues pieog o9yl s)yuiyy puelbug sSHN
alaoym suoisabbns pue asuewuojrad aieds Arewnd

ulr uoljeLleA ayj} sassadppe puelbug SHN MOH

pJeog buiuoissiuwo)

SHN

Page 146



palin|g 8q ueo
9saU) Ing ‘|enpIAIpul SA 8o1joeld ajenualayip 0) Juenodw|

leunquy Jai] }sii4
ay) eIA pajeadde (aJe us)o pue) aq ued suoIsioep JSHN

uoisn|oul
panuIjuUo2 J0 UOoISN|oUl S, 495 € 0] suolipuod BuiAjdde oy
yiomauwel) Aiojeinbal e 1no 18s suole|nbay 1siq Jawlolad

S9OIAIOS
JOAI|ap 0] )SIT sJawlopad ay) ul papnjoul aq jshw Asy |

SHN
ay) Jo seakojdwa Jou ‘sio)oejuoo Juspuadapul ale sdo)

punoibyoeg
SHN

Page 147



(DINQ) dnoig
Buiyepy uoisioa(, aouewlopuad e eIA sia)jew Jawlopad [enplAlpul JOpISUOD oM pue

SMBIASJ PBUOISSILUWO)D

SI9MO|3ISIYM

yoeqpesj jusijed 108lig

si}sod aull uo ‘A ]/ssalid ‘shanins ‘siapinoid Jayjo ‘sjuie|dwod woly uoijewou|

soa)iWWwo) Aunniog ¥ MaIAIBAQ ‘SI0||1Iouno) ‘sdiN Bulpnioul ‘suonesiuebio
Aiojniels uou/Aiolniels Jayjo pue saipog Alojejnbay ‘siojenbay woly uonewlou| -

slawlopad/sio)oenuod Jayjo ‘siead wol) sousbijjeul |eoo] -

(spJepuelg awoolNO 4o pue siojesipu|
[oAeT YBIH 49) abus|ieyo pue aiedwod ‘wiojul 0} jep [e20| pue UopuoT ‘|euoneN -

:S90JN0S JuaJayip WoJ) uolewlojul Jo abuel e Jo asn ayew 0} anuijuOD SN

(| @ouew.opad Jood Ajiuspl am MOH

Page 148



aosuewlopad
J00d sI a1ay} ueaw AjLiessaosau ] UsSaop sIy} ‘JaljIno ue si ao1joeld e asneosaq isn gN

paaoo.d 0} uaye)] uoisioap alojaq poojsiapun
2q 0} spaau ejep ay} jey) sjou 0} Juenodwi — sanssi/aonoeld ay) Jo ainjoid ||} e pjing

aouabi|jelul Jayjo Jayjes)
salled pajsalajul Jo MBIASI 8SED, [|BO (paliluapl SNy} sadljoeld
a|ge|leAe elep }sale| 8y} UO SIal|no aJow 10 G YUm saoijoeld uo snooj pue|bug SHN

SpJepue)s awooinO 4o pue siojeolpu| [oAaT YBIH 49 1o asn oijewa)sAs sI 821n0s Ule

(¢ @ouew.opad Jood Ajijuspl am MoH

Page 149



aleo Alewnd
jo Aljenb sy aAaocadwil JSHN 1Hoddns 0 Ajljigisuodsal e aney SO

|lenuassa aJe sdiysuolje[al Bupjiom asojo 0os pue dejJano us)o
M OM] 8y | "10)08lI(] [edIpalN 8yl Aq pabeuew — Jswiopad [enpIAIpU| -

Page 150

alen Aiewld Jo peaH ay] Ag pebeuew — [enjoeuo) -

:9|qisuodsal si pue|bu
SHN Yyoiym Joj ated Atewid ul Juswabeuew aduewa031ad Jo sjoadse om|

aouewlolad 4o buibeuey



uopuoT ssoloe Aoljod jusisisuod
e A|dde pue padojensp aney am ade|d ul 104 jou ale saloljod [euoiieu alaypn

asn u] pue pasnpoid = »

'0]9 UOIJeJapISu0? |dued Jo} sjuswabuelle
Buipnjoul ‘aouewsopad jenpiAlpul Jood Buljpuey Joj ssaooud jeuonjeu ay| -

A suolje|nbas pajeloosse pue isi JOWIoHSd |[BUOlBN MaU 8y -

— Jawouad jenpiAipuj

aouewJopad jenjoeljuod Jood Bulpuey Joj ssaooud jeuonjeu ay| -

» paidde aq 0} -0)8 si1abbuy/seouelsjoybunybiam ayy -

A }98W 0} pajoadxs aq [m saoioeld spiepuels [euoljeu jo abues ay| -

— |enjoeiuo)

 padojanap sjuswabuelie jeuoneu mapN

Page 151



(aJel) uoieuIWIS) }0BIUOD A[SJEWIYN PUE Yoealq jeadal 0} pes| p|nod ,saouayo, jeaday
a)jeudoidde aisaym uoijeipawal pue a2130u Yoealuq }oeljuod anssi pue aledaid 3SHN
uoleipawal 89130eld Jojuow JSHN

pajsanbal JI 999 0} ue|d JuswaAoiduwijuswdojaAsp sapinold adijoeld / spuodsal Jauoijoeld
Juswanoidwi a1 5D YJIM a1eys pue adueodiyiubis Japisuo)

pasiel anss|

Jayew a9o11oeid Jo |[enjoesjuo)

Page 152



Jouq Buiyolem sdeay HNQ -
|eadde jo ybry -
UoIoe ON
suolipuo) -
|[eAOWDY o
UOIJOE 1SI7 JAWIOHS 10} [dued 0} pallajal Jauoljjoeld -
:apn|oul pInod Yyoiym sdajs xau 1o} HING 0} yoeg -
spuodsal Jsuonjoeld -
(Soseo awos 10)) MaIABl [eula)X] -
Jauonioeld ay) yum Jajjew asiey -
sda)s xau 10} HINQ/FRIWWO) Bulusaiog 0} pallsey -

uoisuadsns JapISUOD P|NOD ‘9SED SNOLISS — PalyIUBPI ONSS| -«

2oueBWIoLBd [enPIAIPU|

Page 153



oL

JuswaAoldwi Jnoge uoISSNISIP
e aney 0} ade|d ul eloy Juiol sAkeme jou :dn pauiol sAem|e jou sHDHD Yiim abeyui

1SI0M S| @oueuwlopuad alaym seale uo aq 0} pey sey snooj pue|bug SHN
palnioal Ajjuadal Ajluo wes| sanss| snouag, pue|bug SHN

uoIsIAnoId |B20] WwoJ) 8jowal aiow pue|bug SHN AjjeonewsisAs epuabe
Juswanoldwi ue Janljep 0} Alloeded ou (payalalls Ajjeal buiyels puelbug SHN

Juswidojanap Joj Ajljige|ieae buipun4
salpog Alojeinbay ‘DO ‘puelbuz SHN — euale Buisnjuo)

suonesiueblo  ssoloe Jds ased Atewud jo Buluoissiwwo)

sjuswabuelle Jualind ul sbulwoouoys

Page 154



177

999 8y} YIM YJOm 0} aduasald Joluas e p|aly 0} syoadxa puelbug SHN
spiepuels |ejuswdo|aAap 4o ay} 4O JUBWBASIYOE SPIEMO) SHIOM

0] sa21j0eld |enpIAIpul pue suoljelapa} ay) woddns 03 ue|d |Bo0o| e Buidojansp .
suolelapa) 4o buibiswa sy} pue swwod

|leuolssajoud |eoo| ayj Jo Juswabebus ayj 186 pue pieoqysep [ed0| e Buleaibe .

}Iom Jo a2ald siy} Lwoddns 0} wea) YyjeaH 21|gnd |e20] ay} jo indui ay} Buiney .
1IHdO PuUe SOdO

1suiebe ejep |B00| ‘Jualind alow Bunenbuel pue asuewlouad Buimainal .«

- Aq ‘epuabe juswanoidwi Ayjenb ay) poddns 0] JSHN YHM YI0M 0} WNJOJ

ay} aq ||m 108loid Juswanoidw| Dd 9yl Jo weansyiom Juswaroidw| Aujend ay |

(Aoewseyd Alunwwod "69)
Aiwey a1eo Atewnd Japim ayj wody uolneluasaldal spnjoul osje |[Im sy} — joaloud
JuswaAoldw| ale) Alewlld 8yl ysijgelsa ||Im 599 s)eam 7 1xau ay} buling

Juswdojana JapInold 49 .

pue ‘pun4 abuajjeyn SJ3)SIUIN dwld

Juswanoldw| alen Auewnd .

rg109foud ulew ¢ -swwelboid uonewsojsuel |

alen Alewld e Bulysijgelse Ajjualind si 999 qug ‘Abarens Jeah g ay) Japun

'*"pJemio} Buirow Joj suonusiy|

Page 155



¢l

wea) yieay olignd ay} yum abexu |4

sjuawaAoldwil
alnjonJiseljul sasiwalid ajgeus ; woddns 0} sUOI}oBUU0D By} SN 0} MOH

pabebus aq 0] gMeH “(8pl|s snolnalud aas) pieog Ayenp |B007 40 JonIsuo0)

a]NQLIJU0D pue Pa}OaUU0D
sanbes||00 ainsus ‘JuswaAoIdwl 82IAIBS SA|0Sal 0] papaau si ubisap Aemyied |

9sn SJBUOISSILIWOD Joj [njasn pue 1sngqol WYNd Pue WNSI @4nsuj

Douabl|ip
anp, aWos sMmoj|e - pue|bug SHN/DDD UM SUOISIDap BUIUOISSIWIWOD YUl

sawuwelbouid Juswanosdwi Buipoddns gamSH

Page 156



€l

“*** pJep pue uoljewlojul punoibyoeq swos

Page 157



vi

Spiepue}s
~8l00IN0-UOpUO[-a1e-JeyM/uopuo|-sdb/sainies)/BUIAll-UopUO]/%N SUU UOPUO| U ESUALL MMM/ a1y
“"glIsgam uopuojyyeayhw sy} uo Ajolgnd ajge|iee si eyep ay |

‘Buiuem si souewlopad [eoluljo Jey] ueaw AjliessaoaU } Usaop Il — suoseal AlalieA e 10} aq p|nod
suoljesiunwiwi uo ayeidn mo| sjdwexs o} os ‘sjelidoidde aieym aoioeld e Yyjim pey aq 0} Uoisshosip
|e20| yidap ul aiow a|jgeus 0} elep syl YiIm SHN 8yl sepiroid waisAs sy 1ey) sjou o} Juepoduwl si |

uoissajold ayl yum paaibe spjoysalyl pue siebbuj .
A1o11gnd s|gejieAe |00} [euoijeu e MON
uopuoT Ul padoj|aAap 1Sl SI0JEDIPUl +4Z JO1BSY

"uopuo] ui ated Atewnd anosdwi pue poddns 01 paubisep swwelboid
e Jo Jed ale Aay] -eonoeld |elauab wol) aAIe0al pinoys sjuaiied ||e jey} a1ed Jo splepuels paalbe uo
ejep ao1joe.d apiAoid Jey) spiepue)s JO 18s uopuo ued e ale spiepue}s awoojnQ adljoeld |elauas) ay |

(SOd9H) spiepuels swodlnQ do 8yl

Page 158



Sl

Sl

‘Aoi1jod

yjjeay Japim pue aoijoeld [esauab ‘oljgnd ay} ‘sjuaied o} jueasial Alybiy pue 1sngou ‘pljea
ulewsal spiepuels ay} eyl ainsus 0} sISeq |enuue Ue Uo PalapIsSuod aq ||IM spiepuels MaNe
‘Bjep mau uodal 0] siauoioeld uo uapinq

|leuonippe Aue Buiealo ploAe 0] S82Jn0S elep Bullsixe Uo melp splepuels awooinNo ay | «
a|ge|iene

Saw029q ejep alow pue sanosdwi AJllenb se awiy JoA0 SA|OAS 0] paau ||IM Spiepuels ay | .
yiomawel4 sawodinO SHN |euoneN ayj ul surewop Buibiawa ay} yum ubije oy pesu Aay] .
SOW02]N0 Y}eay wia)-1abuo| pue AlaAljop UOIUBAISIUI/ADIAISS aU) usamiaq Aemyied
aouapIAa Buouys e si a1ay] alaym AISAI|Sp JO seale 3 0] PeauU SaWO0OIN0 WLIB)-LIOYS »
AJljIgelunoooe pue |0J41U02 10alIp aAey adi1oeld |elauab alaym seale uo Snoo) PINOYS «
SOWO092]1N0 Y}jeay wa)-1abuo| 0] pes| |[IM YdIym ‘A1aAljop adIAI8S

0] pale|al SaWO02}N0 djeIpawill 8y} UO 9]1elluaduod YoIym ‘passno0)-sauliodlno aqg O} pasu «
aol11oe.d |elauab woly aAledal 0} 10adxa pjnoys sjualied jey} soiseq ayj UO SN0 PINOYS »

'SMO||0} Se ale spiepuels ay} 1o} sajdiounid Buluuidiapun ay |

spJepue}g awo23nQ 4o ayj Buidojarag

Page 159



9l

9l

slabbuy asow 1o ¢

sJabbuy asow Jo ||

80110814 PalUSP| MAIASY

siabbuy s1abbuy 0L — 8 20110e1d M3IASY Bulyoeoiddy
196613 | siabbuy 2, — g a0130e1d Buinaiyoy uopuo
s1abbuy o s1abbuy ¢ — 0 ao1j0e.1d Buinaiyoy JaybiH
Z 19Aa7] 1 199 Kiobajen Juswanaiyoy

‘e sallofa)ed ay] |00} piepue)s SewooinQ aoloeld [eiauss) ay) Aq
paliuapl ale 1ey) s1abbli] om| [2A8T pue auQ |9AST JO UOIBUIGLUOD JO Jaquinu 8y} uo juepuadap salobajed ojul saoloeld
dnoub spiepue)s sy ‘bunes ybnoioq pue aoioeid [|BISAC BY) SSUILLIS)SP SPJEPUE]S 8SaY) UIYIM Juswansiyoe s gonoeld

12661 om| [ane7]
18bb11] auQ |ana]

:sallobajed
Buimoljo} ay} ojul padnolb aioyalay} ale spjoysaly} Jojesipul 8y | ‘Jwi| Jamo] pue Jaddn ue sey pjoysaiy} Jo}edlpul yoeg

abelane uopuo ayj} jsuiebe passasse ale YoIym asoy] ¢
aouajenald aseasip pajoadxa “sA pajoday 7
H JUBWAASIYOE JO S|9A3| pajoadxa 1o paaibe-Ajjeuoijeu aney Apealje yolym asoy| |

:sall0b69)e0 aauy} ojul padnolb ale s1abbl] - s1abbuy, pajes ale sjuswainseaw
asay | ‘splepue)s ay} 0} buiwiopad si 9o130e1d B MOY AJlJUSPI JBy) Sjuswainseaw ay} ale ‘uopuo ul sebelane 1o spjoysaiy}
paalbe-Ajjeuoneu Jayjie wouj si Juswaalyoe s aonjoeld e Aeme Jej MOy SSOSSE 0} }9S Uaaq aAeY YOIym ‘sSpjoysalyl ay |

‘A1a)es pue Ajjenb o0} sysi Ajlyuapl pue adug||@oxa ybijybiy spiepuels ay] “pleog sawwelibold Ylomawel{ pue spiepueis
awoo}NQ d21j0eld [BIBUAN) By} Aq paalbe uaaq aney jey} spjoysaly} jsuiebe Juswanaiyoe s aojoeld e sainseaw |00} 8y |

ipainseaw spiepue}g awooinQ ay} ale MoH

Page 160



$1/90/€0 ‘@95
¢LT 3PS YIM pauiquiod pue paiiduiis 8q pinoys pue [1e3ap yonu 003 SI SIY3 JUIY3 T

[4)

9T °PIIS

Page 161



Ll

€1 ‘P3YNUSP| MBINSY YJIm 33110elId

61 :MaInay Buiyoeoliddy aonoeld

g :9010e1d Buinaiyoy

| :22110e1d Buinaiyoy JaybiH

Ly :S@2110e1d JO "ON |EeloL

999 weyuabeq @ Bunjieg SHN Y04 MIIAYIAO 929

(%6G ) 892 PRUIIUSP| MBIASY YIM s8dljoeld
(9%29°0%) ¥81 :MaInay Buiyoeoiddy saoljoeld
(%€9°22) 9¢1 :sddNjoeId Bulnsiyoy

(%91 °2) €1 :sd210E1d BulrSIydY JaybiH

109 :Sadlj0kld JO 'ON |elo|

Blep ¢10c
99 Apsow — MIIAYAA0 NVIL VIHV TVO01 NOANOT LSV HLYON - L9D

(3N syu-asedkiewnd -mmmy//:sdpy wodj umelp ejep) Alewwng SOdo

Page 162



8L

dsg uey}
9sJoM aouewIopad Y)m seale uo passnooy Je) snyj uonuaye pue|bug SHN

Z :SJ3I|}n0 alow 1O G YUm sadljoeld
Ly :Se2ljoeld JO ON |ejoL
900 weyuabeq g Bujieg SHN 909

L¥:SJS1[IN0 2J0W 1O G Y)IM Sa21joeid L¥:SJSI[IN0 2J0W 1O G Y)IM Sa21joeid
L1p:S9010eId JO ON [BI0] 86:S90110€1d JO ON [BI0L
NV3l NV3l

V3YV TvO0T1 NOANOT LSIM HLHON - 290 V3V TvO0T1 NOANOT HLNOS - €90

(%1 uopuo) 29 :SJalj}no alow JO G Y)m sadljoeld
(9161 uopuoT) L09 :s92130.Id JO ON |ejol

M3IIANYIAO NWVIL VIHV TVOO01 NOANOT LSV HLYON - 19D

SOdO uo spjing  «
SJBUOISSIWIWOD 10} SI0}edlIpul Jo 18s (1abbiq) jeuoneuy .

D3N Ul SI Jaquinu 1s8bBig *"sJaIino aJow JO G |THdS UO

Page 163



1/90/€0 ‘235
Buisnjuod aq pINOd - JIHD pue SOdD USaMIS] S)eRuUIBLIP 0} pasu Ales|d noA yulyl

SS

8T °pPIIS

Page 164



6l

L1 :SJalj}no aiow JO G YlIM sadljoeld
9G :S92lj0eId JO 'ON |elol
999 AebulieH SHN 1999

G :SJal[}no aJoW JOo G Y}IM saoijoeld
Ov :Se2l1joe.d JO "ON |ejol

90 uspwe)d SHN 929

0 :SJaI|IN0 8JoW 10 G YlIM Saoljoeld
8¢ :saoljoe.d JO ‘ON |eloL

909 uolbulis| SHN 999

J :SJaI[Jn0 aJ0W JO G Y}IM sadijoeld
9¢ :S92ljoe.Id JO "ON |eloL

900 SIe|WeH JamoL SHN 999

01 :SJaIj3n0 ai0W 1O G YIM sadijoeld
L :s9011081d JO "ON |B10L
9D 1saio4 weyjeph SHN ‘909

¢ :SJSI[JN0 8J0W JO G Y}IM Sadijoeld
€G :Se0ljoe.id JO "ON |ejoL

€ :SJ3I}N0 8I0W 1O G Y}IM sadljoeld
€9 :S90l}0eld JO "ON |eloL
900 PI_RjUg SHN 90D

Z :SJal)no aiow Jo G Yjm sadijoeld
69 :Se2ljoelid Jo "ON |elol
990 Jsuied SHN 9290

€ .SJaljino alowl 4O G YlIM sadljoeld

9} :Seoljoeld JO "ON |eloL
909 AsuxoeH pue A1) SHN 999

LL :SJaI}no aJoW Jo G Y}IM saoijoeld
9 :s90110B1d JO "ON |E10L
900 weymsN SHN 900

0l :SJaI|}no aiow Io G Yum ssoljoeid
8 :Se0lj0e.ld JO ‘ON |el0L

999 9bpugpay SHN 999

Z :SJIjIN0 aI0W JO G YIm sadljoeld
L :S90110B1d JO 'ON |E10L

Page 165

9990 BuusreH SHN 999 900 weyusbeq g Buiyieg SHN 1909

5590 Ag SJSI}no aJow Jo G




0C

Aj@1elidoiddeur ua)o — 1sI| WO [eAOWDY

SSa00k 1004

Inoineyag

SPNIRY

souajadwoo [esluljp/aies [ealulo Buluonsanp

rsawlldyl} uowwo) -

awn|oA YbiH -

sjule|[dwon

Page 166



14

1e 0 0 0 0 4 b 4 b sz v
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sistjewoydQ
l 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 l isioewieyd| weyusbeq g Bunueg
9 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 14 shueql
<4 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 0c d9|
65€ @ @ 0 0 14 14 S€ 8¢ €92 slawloped ||  [B101 }seq YUoN
8l 0 0 0 0 l l l 4 €l sistjpwoydQ|
8l © 0 0 0 14 0 0 & 14 isioewleyd)
1SV3 HLYON
€¢c 0 0 0 0 l 4 l cl v, Ishus(
06 0 @ 0 0 6l 3 & L 29l d9|
16 I l 0 0 0 l A 9 Sl Sisulojad |Iv]  [Bj0L ISS\A UYHON
S 0 0 0 0 0 0 z ! z sisujawoydQ)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 isioewIeyd|
1S3IM HLYON
€l 0 0 0 0 0 L Z Z 8 IsnusQ
€L l l 0 0 0 0 & & S9 d9|
g8 [4 4 l l 4 9 cl A cs SJswiopsd |Iv [ejol yinog
€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 z ! sisujawoydQ)
9 0 0 0 0 0 2 [y 0 € isioewIeyd|
HLNOS
L 0 3 0 0 0 z 4 Z 8 IsnusQ
6S 4 l l 3 @ @ L & oy d9|
[ — 3Iepaqg Riqoid
BUpienbsjeS | BUpIenbsjeS |MSiAsy spRIWOH| SUCHEBNSSAU UonebnssAul —— 0 || " ___| 35Uspdwo)
ejol o] ainjieq SpNINY / JSUUBI\ | [eroueul / swiepd —_— Jawioped vIdY

Hnpy

ansswoqg

sJsuolo)

[euiy

juoljele|os( ss|eq

sjendoiddeu]

Beq % yleg s/ wWea| ealy uopuoT :seseq juiedwon

Page 167



1/90/€0 ‘235
¢WB3Y) JO SWODINO 3] 10 PAA|OSI US3q dARY 3S3Y] JI Payse q |[IM NOA

€S

TC 9PIIS

Page 168



[44

0 0 0 L uopuoT Ioj [ejo |

o v g JSOM UYHON

v v ! unog

0 0 g ise3 yuoN

AJuo weyuabeq S8se) Hno) sbulesy
9 Buppeg| umoiso) jo JaquinN | jeunqu] jo JaquinN sBuLesy
wea| ealy
|aued Jo JaquinN

sese) UNoH UMol) eungu] ‘|sued

%00°0

Buiyepspun | %010 %010 Gl %0€°0 1 uopuOT 0} [BI0L
%00°0 %¥1°0 g %lv'0 Gl 1S9\ YUON
%000 0 %010 9 %110 / yinos
%cCL0 9 %800 ¥ %¥¥'0 [ord 1se3 yuoN
Aluo E,Mwﬂ___mv_m._mm -— €101 J0 lejol suonipuod
’ JO 9, panoway panowsy % papuadsng FIAIERES |0 oﬂ\mww__“__WMoo 0} J0slang
(032 DD ‘DD '|oul) uofjoe s, Joje|nbay
0 %100 l %€0°0 S %€EE0 0s uopuo- 1oy |ejo |
%00°0 0 %S00 @ %lv0 Sl 1SS\ YLON
%000 0 %000 0 %E€20 14 yinos
%200 } %90°0 € %L¥'0 (¥4 }se3 yuoN
Ajuo Emwcmmmn_ L €101 30 lelol suoipuos
3 bunjieq 156 PELGIER panoway o pepuedsng papuadsng |[jo Nc“ M_M__o«__wMoo - “m.w_o_:w

(ApewioydQ ‘|euaq ‘|eodipsl)) suonenbay 1si7 siswlopad Jo asn

(1

Sleaquinu saWwos " 'sase) JaWlioliad

Page 169



€

(4

9 14 8 9 l umounun Le umouyun |elo
0 0 0 0 0 umouun 0 umouyun s)siijawo0}dQ
0 l l 0 0 umouyun L umouun Jsioewleyg| weyusseq
I S € [4 0 umouxun 9 umouyun Jspuag| B Bubies
g 6l 14 147 l umounun 144 umouyun do
CET LTC 91T | LL | VE %9 6S€ 048§ slswioped |IV| |ejo) 3se3 yyon
. Ll 8 z I %< 8l GeL sjsujawoydo
%< €¢ 10 )sioeweyd
§ e b e |} ° 1SV3 HLYON
(43 19 (44 4 8 %S 06 121} isipueq
88 ovi vS 29 e %8 144 1022 do
9. 16 S 99 | T€ %¢C 16 80¢Y S13W.0J19d |[V|IBIOL 3S9M YIION
0 I 0 | 0 %0 l zl9 sjstiawoydQ
g 0 0 0 0 %0 0 145 Isioeweyd
1SIM HLYON
6¢ ¥e g 114 6 %€ 6¢ eoLl isiuaq
v 9g 0 ve 44 %E 19 6161 do
91 S8 9 19 cl %1 g8 G089 siawuojiad |Iy|  Ie10L yinos
ol 9 0 9 0 %0 9 10El sysijswoydo
Gl g 3 € 3 %]\ g 099 jsioewieyd
H1LNOS
el Zl 14 8 14 %]\ cl 1891 isiuaq
174" 29 € 0S 6 %¢C 29 €LlE do
sose 39npuodsiy
SI9WI0dd |10 @ouewWION ]
9s0|) oA Y4 Jo JaquinN 3y} Jauonnoeld Si9U0419d Jauliojiad YNV
P J0 Jaquinu e Jo JaquinN
Jusing J0 9, e sy sasen| 100d jo sasen

Jo 1aquinpN

wes] ealy pue dnols) Joyoejuo) Aq souewlouad Jauoioeld Jood Jo sese)

(z sJlaqwnu swos ' ‘sase’) Jawiolad

Page 170



¥1/90/€0 "99S

vS

€C 9IS

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 172



AGENDA ITEM 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Mental Health Tariff

Report of the Clinical Commissioning Group

Open Report For Decision
Wards Affected: ALL Key Decision: NO
Report Author: Contact Details:

Sharon Morrow, Chief Operating Tel: 020 3644 2370
Officer Barking and Dagenham CCG | E-mail:
Sharon.morrow@barkingdagenhamccg.nhs.uk

Sponsor:
Conor Burke, Chief Officer Barking and Dagenham CCG

Summary:

The paper provides a briefing on the national tariff payment system 2014/15 and the tariff
deflator of -1.8% that has been applied to mental health service contracts. NHS England
and Monitor are responsible for setting the NHS payment system and published the
2014/15 national tariff payment system in December 2013 following a period of
consultation with commissioners and providers.

The payment guidance recognises the challenge faced by providers and commissioners to
improve productivity and operational efficiency and to transform patterns of care.

Monitor believes that there are opportunities for improving care and safety by using
resources more efficiently and is requiring providers to make productivity improvements of
4% in 2014/15. It is expected that productivity improvements will be made through
operational efficiencies and not impact on the quality of patient services.

Concerns have been expressed nationally by mental health leaders and some politicians
that that mental health services will lose resources at a time when there is a focus on
improving mental health standards and ensuring parity of esteem.

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to

(1) Consider what the implications are for the borough and to what extend parity of
esteem between mental and physical health is damaged by this policy.

Page 173



1.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Background and Introduction

The purpose of the paper is to brief the Health and Wellbeing Board on the national
tariff payment system and how this has been applied to mental health providers in
2014/15. The report outlines how the risk of productivity improvements impacting on
the quality of patient services is being monitored.

Operating Plan guidance

National guidance [Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15 to 2018/19] was
published in December 2013 alongside CCG and NHS England direct commissioning
allocations for 2014-2016.

This included guidance on financial planning, outlining the assumptions that NHS
commissioners should make in setting budgets and agreeing contracts with
providers. Financial planning assumes that commissioners will be required to make
efficiency savings of around 9% in 2014/15, which includes a provider efficiency
savings.

2014/15 national tariff payment system

NHS England and Monitor took on responsibility for the NHS payment system from
the Department of Health under the provisions of the Heath and Social Care Act
2012.

Monitor and NHS England consulted on proposals for the 2014/15 national tariff
between October and November 2013 and published the 2014/15 national tariff
payment guidance on 17 December 2013. There were no substantial changes to the
original proposals as a result of the consultation process.

The scope of the tariff payment guidance includes acute, community and mental
health providers. Monitor is responsible for ensuring that licensed providers comply
with the national tariff and also has powers for ensuring that commissioners comply
with the national tariff.

The 2014/15 payment guidance recognises the substantial challenge faced by
providers and commissioners to improve productivity and operational efficiency and
also to transform patterns of care. Monitor believes that there are further
opportunities for improving care and safety by using resources more efficiently and is
requiring providers to make productivity improvements of 4% in 2014/15. An impact
assessment, published by Monitor in October 2013, supported the conclusion that
this was a reasonable, if stretching, efficiency requirement that balanced the need for
providers to remain stable and commissioners to manage rising demand.

Provider contracts in 2014/15 have been uplifted for inflationary costs that average
2.5%. Some cost uplifts reflect costs that apply only to acute services and not to
community or mental health services. An uplift of an estimated £150 million nationally
which was identified for acute trusts, relating to service developments required
following the recommendations of the Francis and Keogh reports, has not been
applied to non-acute services. The net tariff reduction in 2014/15 has therefore been
adjusted to - 1.5% for acute services and to - 1.8% for non-acute services.

Page 174



3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.2

5.3

The differential tariff reduction across acute and non-acute services has raised
concerns that mental health services will lose out at a time when there is a focus on
improving mental health standards and ensuring parity of esteem.

There are mechanisms in place to provide assurance that productivity improvements
do not impact on the quality of patient services. Foundation Trusts are required to
submit a two year operational plan 2014/15 — 2015/16 to Monitor that includes cost
improvement plans to deliver the 1.8% efficiency requirements. Cost improvement
schemes should improve or maintain quality whilst driving up productivity and will
include a combination of efficiency schemes and schemes which are more
transformational.

The CCG also has an established process through the Clinical Quality Review
Meetings to review provider cost improvement plans and this is a commissioner
requirement that is set out in the operating plan.

Mental health services

Mental health services have historically been funded through block payment
arrangements with the level of block payment generally based on historic levels of
funding. Aligning payment to patient outcomes has historically not been part of the
payment approach in mental health.

The introduction of a mental health tariff from 2015/16 will identify currencies for 21
care clusters for adult mental health services that group patients based on common
characteristics, such as level of need and similar resources being required to meet
those needs. Commissioners and providers will set local prices for each care cluster
operating under the rules set by Monitor.

For services that are not covered by the adult cluster currencies, local providers and
commissioners will need to agree local prices based on the principles of the mental
health tariff guidance.

Mandatory Implications
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Section 7 of the JSNA recommends that, given the anticipated population increases
and the high levels of deprivation in the borough, there is likely to be a much greater
demand on services to improve the mental health and wellbeing of Barking and
Dagenham residents.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy reflects mental health and wellbeing as a theme
across the life course and acknowledges the impact of income poverty on people’s
mental health.

Integration

Page 175



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The scope of the tariff payment guidance includes the commissioning of NHS health
care services are commissioned under joint commissioning arrangements even if
commissioned by the Local Authority. The CCG and Local Authority will be entering
into a range of joint commissioning arrangements through the Better Care Fund in
2015/16.

Financial Implications

All providers are required to deliver 4% efficiency savings in 2014/15. In addition to
the NHS Deflator they also need to fund pay and price increases, which means that
for NELFT as a provider organisation the annual cost improvement requirement is
4% (the level of annual efficiency indicated by Monitor).

Implications completed by: Sharon Morrow, Chief Operating Officer, Barking and
Dagenham CCG

Legal Implications
None.

Risk Management

Trust cost improvement plans are reviewed by the CCG to provide assurance that
they are deliverable without impacting on the quality and safety of patient care.

Foundation trusts are required to submit cost improvement plans to Monitor as part of
their two year operational plan.

Patient/Service User Impact

Efficiencies from the tariff deflator are delivered by operational efficiencies and not
through cuts to services.

Page 176



AGENDA ITEM 10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17th JUNE 2014

Annual Health Protection Profiles 2013 - North East and North Central

Title: London

Report of the Director of Public Health

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: None

Report Author: Dr Tania Misra,

Consultant in Communicable Disease

North East and North Central London Health
Protection Team

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 7811 7100
E-mail: necl.team@phe.gov.uk

Matthew Cole, Director of Public Health Email: matthew.cole@lbbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Matthew Cole, Director of Public Health

Summary:

This report summarises infectious disease notifications, outbreaks and health protection
incidents that were managed by the North East and North Central London Health
Protection Team in 2013. There is also a summary of important infections including
Sexually Transmitted Infections and Healthcare Associated Infections in North East and
North Central London, and their implications for Barking and Dagenham.

The report provides the Board with a level of assurance that the programmes and
measures to prevent and manage communicable disease continue to be effective.

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note :

(i)  The continued importance of Health Protection issues within the Borough, especially
in relation to Sexually Transmitted Infections and HIV, Healthcare Associated
Infections and vaccine preventable diseases (VPDs) such as Measles, Mumps and
Pertussis.

(i)  The Director of Public Health advice that NHS England be asked to provide further
information to the Board on the arrangements being put in place to improve
performance in achieving the optimum uptake of immunisation programmes by the
eligible population of Barking and Dagenham.

(iif) The provision of appropriate HIV testing services needs to be considered. National
advice is that, when the diagnosed HIV prevalence is greater than 2 per 1,000,
routine HIV testing for all general medical admissions and for all new registrants in
primary care should be undertaken. Borough prevalence is at this level and
therefore routine testing should be implemented.

Page 177



(iv) The need to increase effort to prevent Health Care Associated Infections through
key initiatives such as the appropriate use of antimicrobials, appropriate insertion
and care of invasive devices and lines, and training in infection prevention and
control for all care providers be included in the refresh of the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.

Reason(s)

Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 the statutory Health and Wellbeing Board has
a duty to protect the health of the population. This includes assuring that steps are taken
to protect the health of their population from hazards, ranging from relatively minor
outbreaks of infectious disease and contaminations, to full-scale emergencies, and to
prevent as far as possible those threats arising in the first place.

Barking and Dagenham’s Director of Public Health (DPH) has a duty to ‘provide
information and advice to every responsible person and relevant body within, or which
exercises functions in relation to, the authority’s area, with a view to promoting the
preparation of appropriate local health protection arrangements’. In order to undertake
this duty, and to provide appropriate advice as to the adequacy of local health protection
arrangements, the DPH needs to be assured and satisfied that there are adequate
health protection immunisation and screening plans in place in the Borough.

1. Background and Introduction

1.1 Public Health England (PHE) is the expert national public health agency which fulfils
the Secretary of State for Health’s statutory duty to protect health and address
inequalities, and executes his power to promote the health and wellbeing of the
nation.

1.2  PHE ensures there are effective arrangements in place nationally and locally for
preparing, planning and responding to health protection concerns and emergencies,
including the future impact of climate change. PHE provides specialist health
protection, epidemiology and microbiology services across England. For Barking
and Dagenham these arrangements are managed by the North East and North
Central Health Protection Team based in Victoria.

1.3  Improvement in the public’s health has to be led from within communities, rather
than directed centrally. This is why every upper tier and unitary local authority now
has a legal duty to improve the public’s health. Local health and wellbeing boards
bring together key local partners (including NHS clinical commissioning groups who
have a duty to address health inequalities) to agree local priorities.

1.4  PHE will support local authorities, and through them clinical commissioning groups,
by providing evidence and knowledge on local health needs, alongside practical and
professional advice on what to do to improve health, and by taking action nationally
where it makes sense to do so. PHE in turn is the public health adviser to NHS
England.

1.5 PHE works in partnership with the Chief Medical Officer for England and with
colleagues in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland to protect and improve the
public’s health, as well as internationally through a wide-ranging global health
programme.

Page 178




1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

NHS England has the responsibility for commissioning immunisation programmes
for Barking and Dagenham residents.

Health Protection Profiles are prepared annually by the North East & North Central
London Health Protection Team to provide a summary of the health protection
issues affecting each borough in the sector.

Legislative Framework

Under Section 2A of the NHS 2006 Act (as inserted by Section 11 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2012), the Secretary of State for Health has a duty to “take such
steps as the Secretary of State considers appropriate for the purpose of protecting
the public in England from disease or other dangers to health”. In practice, Public
Health England will carry out much of this health protection duty on behalf of the
Secretary of State.

Under a new Section 252A of the NHS Act 2006, the NHS Commissioning Board
(NHS England) will be responsible for (a) ensuring that clinical commissioning
groups and providers of NHS services are prepared for emergencies, (b) monitoring
their compliance with their duties in relation to emergency preparedness and (c)
facilitating coordinated responses to such emergencies by clinical commissioning
groups and providers.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also amends Section 253 of the NHS Act
2006 (as amended by Section 47 of the 2012 Act), so as to extend the Secretary of
State’s powers of direction in the event of an emergency to cover an NHS body
other than a local health board (this will include the NHS Commissioning Board and
clinical commissioning groups); the National Institute for Health and Care
Excellence; the Health and Social Care Information Centre; any body or person,
and any provider of NHS or public health services under the Act.

The Council has statutory duties for controlling risks to public health arising from
communicable diseases and other public health threats and must appoint a Proper
Officer to undertake key functions. PHE provides the expertise to support local
authorities in these functions and Consultants in Communicable Disease Control
are generally appointed as the Proper Officer.

The Proper Officer appointed under the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984
should be medically qualified. The main responsibility of the Proper Officer is to
require information or action in relation to people, premises or objects which may be
infected, contaminated or could otherwise affect health.

Local Health Protection Arrangements

The Director of Public Health (DPH) is responsible for exercising the new public
health functions on behalf of the Council. The DPH has the responsibility for “the
exercise by the authority of any of its functions that relate to planning for, and
responding to, emergencies involving a risk to public health”.

The delivery of Health Protection needs strong working relationships and the
legislative framework that underpins this objective ensures that organisations do

Page 179



3.3

3.4

3.5

41

what is required. At the local level NHS Barking and Dagenham Clinical
Commissioning Group and NHS England have a duty to cooperate with the Council
in respect of health and wellbeing.

Unitary and upper tier local authorities have a new statutory duty to carry out the
Secretary of State’s health protection role under regulations to be made under
Section 6C of the NHS Act 2006 (as inserted by Section 18 of the Health and Social
Care Act 2012) to take steps to protect the health of their populations from all
hazards, ranging from relatively minor outbreaks and contaminations, to full-scale
emergencies, and to prevent as far as possible those threats arising in the first
place.

Within this context, the Council has established a Health Protection Committee
which supports the DPH in their role of leading the response, planning and
preparedness to Health Protection challenges. The Committee reports through to
the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The purpose of the Committee is to put this into practice through facilitating,
reviewing and instigating actions to protect the health of the local population.

Health Protection Profile

This report highlights the following health protection issues for the London Borough
of Barking and Dagenham (LBBD). The management, prevention and control of
communicable disease has been effectively delivered last financial year by the
partners. The key issues to note around the notifications of infectious diseases are:

The infectious diseases and / or agents that constituted the highest rates of
notifications from LBBD in 2013 include:

e Campylobacter, which is a type of bacterium that causes food poisoning and is
the commonest cause of gastrointestinal infections in the UK. There was a
significant increase in these infections reported from LBBD in 2013 in
comparison with previous years. Local acute trusts have moved to a lab-
based surveillance system from one dependant on clinicians’ verbal reporting,
and the increase in reported campylobacter infections is considered to be due
to this new system of reporting which was initiated in 2013.

e Mumps, which is a viral illness and is a vaccine preventable disease (VPD).
Mumps is how more common, particularly in young adults who were not fully
vaccinated against mumps in childhood and who have not been exposed to
naturally occurring illness.

e Salmonella, which is another common cause of gastrointestinal infections,
largely causing food poisoning. Salmonella infections are also related to travel
and can be acquired from close contact with pets as well.

e There has been no confirmed of Measles reported from LBBD in 2013.
Measles is a viral illness that can lead to serious complications, and this is also
a vaccine preventable disease (VPD). The confirmed cases of Measles have
been seen unvaccinated children or adults.

Page 180



4.2

e There is a national outbreak of Pertussis (whooping cough), and this has also
been reflected in an increase in cases reported from LBBD. We took part in
the national campaign and programme to increase uptake amongst pregnant
women. The Pertussis campaign hasn’t been fully evaluated yet. The end-
result being an non-event (that is, mums don’t get Pertussis, and so they don't
pass it on to their newborns) hence this will be difficult to evaluate, but a
favourable outcome already is a reduction in the number of Pertussis deaths in
neonates compared to 2012.

e Group A streptococci cause a range of infections from sore throat and scarlet
fever to life threatening septicaemia. The current national rise in scarlet fever
cases is also reflected locally, and some of these infections have been
invasive.

e There were 11 outbreaks reported from LBBD in 2013. These related mainly
to gastroenteritis outbreaks in care homes and schools. Compared to other
boroughs in North East London (largest number reported = 22), this does not
place LBBD as an outlier.

The Health Protection Team in Public Health England provides outbreak
management advice and guidance to care homes and schools, working closely
with the Environmental Health team from LBBD, the NHS, and the Directorate of
Public Health. If an outbreak is protracted or there are concerns about food safety
related to a food outlet or restaurant, or there are concerns regarding hygiene
practices in a care home, environmental health officers are able to use legal
powers under public health legislation to serve improvement notices, or even
enforce the closure of premises that pose a significant public health risk.

Tuberculosis

There were 76 Tuberculosis (TB) cases reported from LBBD in 2013, out of 905
TB notifications from North East London, and 3020 TB notifications overall in
London. The rate of TB in LBBD was 40.5/100,000 population in 2009, and
following a low in 2012 of 35.2/100000 population, it was at 39.9/100,000
population in 2013.

The Director of Public Health introduced a universal BCG vaccination policy in
2009. At the time when this policy was introduced, the known TB rates in LBBD
were just below 40/100,000. There was a TB incident in a local primary school in
late 2008, where an unusually large number of children were found to be exposed
to TB when screened. The Director of Public Health, with advice from the former
Health Protection Agency (now part of Public Health England) introduced universal
BCG vaccination in LBBD. Since April 2009, all babies born in LBBD are given the
BCG vaccination at birth. This is in line with the policy in the neighbouring
boroughs of Newham, Redbridge and Waltham Forest, and an example of an
informed public health decision making based on epidemiological data and
population needs.

45% of the patients diagnosed with TB in North East London in 2013 had
pulmonary involvement. A small number of TB cases in LBBD were infectious and
there were public health implications in three instances, where contact tracing
exercises were undertaken in order to offer screening tests to those who were
exposed. When TB notification exercises are undertaken, these are planned and

Page 181



4.3

4.4

implemented collaboratively with the Directors responsible for Public Health,
Housing, and of Environmental Protection at LBBD, the TB specialist team at
Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust, and the Health
Protection Team in Public Health England. As there are identified resources for
dealing with outbreaks and incidents, there can be a prompt and efficient
response. Media statements are prepared with comments from the Director of
Public Health and the communication teams from PHE and LBBD which work
collaboratively to field media enquiries. Public Health England have a 24/7 service
that is able to respond to calls from those who are being offered screening, as well
as worried members of the public.

Sexually Transmitted Infections (STls) and HIV
Our picture of sexual ill health has seen a steady worsening. The key issues are:

. Like all boroughs in North East London, LBBD has seen a rise in the number
of people living with HIV over the last five years. The number of people living
with HIV and known to NHS and Social Care services has increased from
508 in 2008 to 706 in 2012. This represents a 39% increase. The two main
groups with the highest levels of HIV infection are Black African heterosexual
women and men who have sex with men (MSM) and we have invested in
both local and pan London programmes that include education, support and
rapid HIV testing. In 2012, among GUM clinic patients from Barking and
Dagenham who were eligible to be tested for HIV, 73% were tested.

e LBBD is ranked 42 (out of 326 local authorities, first in the rank has highest
rates) in England for rates of acute STls in 2012. A total of 1996 acute STls
were diagnosed in residents of LBBD, (1077 in males and 918 in females), a
rate of 1067.2 per 100,000 residents (males 1185.2 and females 954.7).
56% of diagnoses of acute STls were in young people aged 15-24 years.

e The rate of chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 young people aged 15-24
years in LBBD was 2331.3. LBBD has commissioned a Chlamydia
Screening Programme that is working towards achieving a chlamydia
diagnosis rate of at least 2,300 per 100,000 in the 15 to 24 year old age
group and this is an indicator in the Public Health Outcome Framework. All
young people aged 15 to 24 years should be screened for chlamydia at least
annually or with every change of partner.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 directs local authorities to commission
appropriate access to comprehensive sexual health services (including testing and
treatment for sexually transmitted infections, contraception outside of the GP
contract and sexual health promotion and disease prevention). To support
universal and consistent provision of contraception there have been long standing
legislative requirements to ensure access to, and free supply of, contraception.

The present Integrated Sexual Health Service contract and the Chlamydia
Screening contract expired at the end of March 2014. The Health and Wellbeing
Board extended these contracts at its February 2014 meeting for a further period
of 18 months before commencing a procurement process which allows us to
consider the following in respect of the services we wish to commission:

Page 182



4.5

e Prevention efforts, such as greater STI screening coverage and HIV testing,
and easier access to sexual health services, should be sustained and continue
to focus on groups at highest risk, particularly Black African women, MSM and
young people.

e Health promotion and education, which remain the cornerstone of STl and HIV
prevention through improving public awareness of STls and HIV and
encouraging safer sexual behaviour such as consistent condom use and
reductions in both the numbers and concurrency of sexual partnerships.

e Given the high rates of poor sexual health due to STls, including HIV, in North
East and North Central London it is clear that sexual health should remain a
public health priority

e The Public Health Outcomes Framework includes an indicator to assess
progress in achieving earlier HIV diagnoses. The provision of appropriate HIV
testing services, to deliver against this indicator needs to be considered. As
LBBD has a diagnosed HIV prevalence greater than 2 per 1,000,
implementation of routine HIV testing for all general medical admissions and
for all new registrants in primary care is recommended

e The changes to the NHS sexual health commissioning arrangements have led
to fragmentation of STI and HIV services, which will inevitably dilute emphasis
on prevention. Ensuring the provision of comprehensive sexual health services
is a challenge which the new Sexual Health Commissioning arrangements will
be required to address.

e Reducing the burden of HIV and STls requires a sustained public health
response based around early detection, successful treatment and partner
notification, alongside promotion of safer sexual and health-care seeking
behaviour.

e Increased access to STl and HIV testing and treatment, chlamydia testing,
contraception and abortion services and HIV prevention and sexual health
promotion work in schools would be the key components of a comprehensive
and young people friendly service.

Health Care Associated Infections

The prevention of healthcare associated infections (HCAI) due to MRSA and
Clostridium difficile (Cdiff) is a national priority and these infections are also
included in the Public Health Outcomes Framework. NHS Barking and Dagenham
Clinical Commissioning Group has the third highest rates of Cdiff infection in
people aged over 2 years amongst North East London clinical commissioning
groups at 17.5/100,000 population. Although this is below the England average of
27.3/100,000 population, it is among the higher rates in North East London. This
indicates that there is substantial work to be done around antimicrobial use and
prevention of Cdiff infection in the community.

The Barking and Dagenham rate for MRSA bacteraemias in the community is
2.1/100,000 population. This is higher than the national average of 1.7/100,000
and provides an important indicator of infections in the community. Work is

Page 183



4.6

needed to improve training in the care of IV lines and catheters in the community
to ensure that they are inserted safely and managed properly, so that MRSA
bacteraemia can be prevented.

The Director of Public Health recommends that HCAI prevention through key
initiatives — e.g. appropriate use of antimicrobials, appropriate insertion and care of
invasive devices and lines, and all providers of care being trained in infection
prevention and control is included in the refresh of the Joint Health and wellbeing
Strategy.

Immunisation coverage

The 2013/14 Quarter 4 data for immunisation coverage is not due to be published
by Public Health England until June 2014. In 2013/14 Quarter 3, and throughout
the year prior to Quarter 3, LBBD had performed below the national average for
uptake of two doses of MMR, and for DTaP/IPV at five years old. Two doses of
MMR coverage is also below the London average, with 80.9% coverage, although
DTaP/IPV is above the London average at 82.4% coverage. Both of these figures
are the lowest quarterly uptake levels seen in the last two years.

The target for immunisation coverage at 5 years of age is 90%. Immunisation
coverage in Barking and Dagenham is therefore lower than the national target,
and lower than the regional average as well. Apart from not meeting targets, low
immunisation coverage is a risk to the unimmunised children who are at risk of
infection from the vaccine preventable diseases against which they are not
protected.

For seasonal influenza immunisations in those aged 65 and over, LBBD performed
better than the London average between September 2013 and January 2014 with
71.2% coverage compared to 70.0%, although this was 2.0% below the national
average. The target for coverage was 75% so this was not achieved.

Provisional figures for HPV uptake from September 2013 to December 2013 show
that LBBD has higher coverage than the regional average for both the first and
second doses. Coverage for the first dose is just below the level for England as a
whole, and second dose coverage is higher than the England average, at 79.2%
compared to 69.8%.

Increasing immunisation uptake for both children and older people is a priority for
the Council, local GPs and NHS partners. The Director of Public Health advises
that NHS England provides further information to the Board on the arrangements
being put in place to improve performance in achieving the optimum uptake of
immunisation programmes by the eligible population of Barking and Dagenham.

Consultation
Performance discussed at the Health Protection Committee.
Mandatory Implications

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has a strong health protection analysis
including detailed immunisation, screening and communicable disease sections

Page 184



6.2

6.3

6.4

within it. There is general agreement that cross-sector working in the borough with
involvement from the NHS, employment, housing, police and other bodies, in
addition to the Council’s children’s services and adult and community services is
good.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Health and Wellbeing Board mapped the outcome frameworks for the NHS,
public health, and adult social care with the children and young people’s plan. The
strategy is based on eight strategic themes that cover the breadth of the
frameworks in which health protection is picked up as a key issue. These are
Care and Support, Protection and Safeguarding, Improvement and Integration of
Services, and Prevention. Actions, outcomes and outcome measures for
immunisation, screening and communicable disease control are mapped across
the life course against the four priority areas

Integration

Currently, health protection at the local level is delivered by a partnership of the
NHS, the Public Health England and local authorities. Public Health England
leads and delivers the specialist health protection functions to the public and in
support of the NHS, local authorities and others through local health protection
units a network of microbiological laboratories and its national specialist centres.

The Public Health Outcomes Framework includes a health protection domain.
Within this domain there is a placeholder indicator, “Comprehensive, agreed inter-
agency plans for responding to public health incidents”. The Department of Health
is taking forward work to ensure that it can effectively measure progress against
this indicator.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications for Barking and Dagenham as a result of
the 2013 Health Protection Profile. It is recommended the report is used to inform
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). Any actions from the JSNA that
require resources from the Local Authority are most likely to be funded from the
Public Health Grant, however there are competing demands on this cash limited
funding.

In 2013/14 to support the management of outbreaks and communicable disease
control, the Director of Public Health allocated a budget of £50,000 for responding
to large outbreaks or an incident that could have wider public health impact. Part
of this budget was utilised effectively in the management of a TB incident where
Interferon Gamma Release Assay (also known as IGRA - this is a simple blood
test) tests could be offered to screen identified contacts, thereby making screening
efficient and easier to implement.

This budget has also been utilised to secure accommodation where
recommendation has been made to the Director of Public Health that this is
essential for the protection of the public and the management of the infection.

Implications completed by: Roger Hampson Group Manager, Finance

Page 185



6.5

6.6

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications in relation to this report.
Implications completed by: Chris Pickering, Principal Solicitor
Risk Management

Health protection needs constant appraisal and will always be in need of
strengthening. Complacency is the greatest danger — the notion that we have the
issue ‘sorted out’ is always going to be dangerous. There is great value in joint
exercises, which have worked well in the past, to maintain and/or heighten
awareness, identify issues and provide for a more robust and effective response to
problems. One of the main functions of Public Health England is to collate
information; provide linkage between organisations; increase research capacity,
co-ordination and utility; and provide education and training (principally for frontline
staff but always with an eye to the needs of the public).

Page 186



AGENDA ITEM 11

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Transforming Services, Changing Lives in East London

Report of the North East London Commissioning Support Unit

Open Report For Decision
Wards Affected: ALL Key Decision: NO
Report Author: Contact Details:
Zoe Hooper, Communications Manager Tel: 020 688 1678
E-mail: zoe.hooper@nelcsu.nhs.uk
Sponsor:
Conor Burke, Accountable Officer, B&D CCG
Summary:

Local CCGs (Waltham Forest CCG, Tower Hamlets CCG, Newham CCG, Barking and
Dagenham CCG, and Redbridge CCG), NHS England, Barts Health and other local
providers have established a clinical transformation programme called Transforming
Services, Changing Lives, which will consider how services need to change to provide the
best possible health and health care for local residents. A key element of the programme
will be to consider how best to ensure safe, effective and sustainable hospital services at
Bart's Health and Homerton hospitals, set in the context of local plans to further develop
and improve primary, community and integrated care services.

The work, which was launched in February 2014 and is expected to run until September
2014, will develop a baseline assessment of the drivers for change in the local health
economy and support further discussions about the scope, scale and pace of change
needed. Key outputs from this work are:

¢ adetailed ‘case for change’, delivered through a clinically led, comprehensive
clinical engagement process

¢ establishing the appropriate foundations for a longer term joint transformation
programme should partner organisations conclude that this is necessary in order to
bring forward whole system, health economy-wide improvements in the clinical and
financial viability of local services in East London.

Page 187



(

What is the process?

HAuround 150
cliniciens
corning togethes

Erngrape with
Tusthasr 1,500 Euplore and

ter underatand staff and pubiic TEE T
what challanges ter produce Tinal Prmiesto
w face to Cise for Change lrrlprcm:_' ol
Ly
creatn & draft (st siluit k) T
Case for Change
]

Case for Change &
Community for Change

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

Schedule a substantive business item for a future meeting of the Board to discuss
the case for change.

1.1.

1.2.

Background and Introduction

The NHS in East London faces the very real challenge of providing care for a growing
local population, whilst continuing to meet the health needs of some of the most
deprived areas seen anywhere in the UK. Providing for today while planning for a
tomorrow which is unlikely to see budgets rising to the same extent as demand, will
require us to think differently about how we provide care, and make changes to
where and how care is provided if we are to meet the growing needs of local people.

Local CCGs (Waltham Forest CCG, Tower Hamlets CCG, Newham CCG, Barking
and Dagenham CCG, and Redbridge CCG), NHS England, Barts Health and other
local providers have established a clinical transformation programme called
Transforming Services, Changing Lives, which will consider how services need to
change to provide the best possible health and health care for local residents. A key
element of the programme will be to consider how best to ensure safe, effective and
sustainable hospital services at Bart's Health and Homerton hospitals, set in the
context of local plans to further develop and improve primary, community and
integrated care services.

Page 188




1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

The work, which was launched in February 2014 and is expected to run until
September 2014, aims to understand the current demands on the NHS and analyse
the local health economy.

Local clinicians have been asked to use their own knowledge of national and
international best practice to review the quality and performance of East London
health and social care services, highlight areas of good practice that should be
maintained and developed, and set out if, why, and in what specialties they think
there may be a case for change to ensure the very best care for local residents. It will
not, at this stage, set out any recommendations for change.

CCGs, together with the other partnership organisations, are engaging with key
stakeholders such as local councils, Health and Well Being Boards and other local
providers to develop and test ideas.

Between July and September the initial thoughts and ideas being developed by
clinicians will be tested out with a wider group of stakeholders before publishing a
Case for Change in autumn 2014.

Key outputs during this phase of work:

. a detailed ‘case for change’, delivered through a clinically led, comprehensive
clinical engagement process

° dialogue to determine joint priorities for improvement where by working together
we can get more impact more quickly

Key dates during this phase of work:

° April 4 2014: launch event to outline plans, gather initial feedback and begin
the engagement process. Around 150 stakeholders were invited, including
Health and Wellbeing Board representatives.

° June 6 2014: ‘The emerging case for change’ seminar to gather initial feedback
on draft principles of the case for change. Around 200 stakeholders have been
invited, including Health and Wellbeing Board representatives.

. June — July 2014: Engagement events to develop and refine the draft case for
change. Approximately 1,500 staff and local stakeholders will be invited.

. September: Publication of case for change.

Governance and engagement

. The governance arrangements for the programme have been established and

include:

— A Programme Board as a key element of the structure — tasked with providing
the strategic oversight for the Programme. To reflect the external decision
making requirements, the Programme Board reports to the relevant statutory
bodies of CCGs, providers and the NHS England. CCGs will ensure a clear link
through to HWBBs. Additionally WF, TH and Newham Councils have been
invited to sit on the Programme Board. Local Council is welcome to be
represented on the Programme Board if they would like to be and / or can be

Page 189



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

briefed through CCG representatives / regular updates provided to HWBB
meetings.

— A Clinical Reference Group and clinical working groups reflecting the key
clinical leadership role in exploring and shaping a ‘Case for Change’. CCGs,
Barts Health, Homerton Hospital, community and mental health service
providers and the London Ambulance service have been invited to nominate
clinicians and other front-line staff to join clinical working groups. Links are also
being established with academic partners. The clinical working groups will focus
on:

o unplanned care (urgent and emergency care, acute medicine, non-elective
surgery)

o  planned care (long-term conditions)
o  planned care (surgery)

o  maternity and neonatal care

o  children and young people, and;

o clinical support services

— A Public and Patient Reference Group to provide ideas and feedback to
clinicians leading the TSCL programme and support and advise on public
engagement activities. The group is made up of representatives from three
broad groups:

o local branches of Healthwatch
o patient representatives from the CCGs involved in the programme
o patient representatives from the providers involved in the programme

— A Communications and Engagement work stream that recognises the
importance of engaging local stakeholders in our work at an early stage. This
group is supporting the public and patient reference group, coordinating a series
of engagement events, launching a microsite (www.transformingservices.org,
live from July) and ensuring stakeholders, such as Health and Wellbeing
Boards, are briefed.

Why have we taken this step?

. The five CCGs have a duty to promote a comprehensive health service for their

population of around 1.3 million people.

Today, local NHS services face the very real challenge of providing care for a rapidly
growing local population, whilst continuing to meet the health needs of some of the
most deprived areas seen anywhere in the UK.

The health economy is never static. Change is happening all around the system. In
the last year, since the establishment of CCGs, we have seen the introduction of
NHS 111, the development of integrated care and soon the launch of personal health
budgets. We need to respond to these changes to ensure that benefits are realised
and unintended consequences are avoided.

However, we also know that some services simply need to improve to meet local

needs. We need to address the areas where we are not so good. We know that the
quality of care we provide is inconsistent. We need to work better with providers and

Page 190



3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

4.2.

4.3.

44.

4.5.

4.6.

with social care to address the challenges we face and decide how we can introduce
new and different ways of providing care.

Collectively commissioners have agreed with providers to look at the challenges we
face, to ensure we can continue to provide the care our patients need, at the best
possible place for them. Organisation boundaries must not and cannot impede the
commitment to deliver improvements at scale across the partnership.

We also need to make sure that any changes in the future happen safely and
effectively.

In developing their case for change, clinicians will be guided by the principles of the
Francis Report to ensure delivering first class care for patients and local populations
is the driver for change.

Mandatory Implications

. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

The priorities for consideration in this report align well with the strategic
recommendations of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. However, it needs to be
noted that the vast majority of our patient flows go to Barking Havering & Redbridge
University Hospitals NHS Trust. Barts Health NHS Trust is an important tertiary site
for our residents to access for specialist services. Also there are areas where further
investigation and analysis have been recommended as a result of this year's JSNA
for the BHR health and social care economy which map across to Barts Health. The
purpose of the ongoing JSNA process is to continually improve our understanding of
local need, and identify areas to be addressed in future strategies for the borough.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Health and Wellbeing Board mapped the outcome frameworks for the NHS,
Public Health, and Adult Social Care with the Children and Young People’s Plan.
The Strategy is based on four priority themes that cover the breadth of the
frameworks and in which the priorities under consideration are picked up within
focused on the challenges of the Barking Havering and Redbridge health and social
care economy. These are Care and Support, Protection and Safeguarding,
Improvement and Integration of Services, and Prevention. Actions, outcomes and
outcome measures are mapped across the life course against the four priority
themes would apply to paper. However, it needs to be noted that the vast majority of
our patient flows go to Barking Havering & Redbridge University Hospitals NHS
Trust. Barts Health NHS Trust is an important tertiary site for our residents to access
for specialist services.

Integration

None at the present time
Financial Implications
None at the present time
Legal Implications
None at the present time
Risk Management

Page 191



None at the present time

. Patient/Service User Impact

Barts Health NHS Trust provides a range of general and specialist services to
Barking and Dagenham residents. Any future changes to services could have an
impact on local residents.

Background Papers Used in Preparation of the Report:
None.

List of Appendices:

None.

Page 192



AGENDA ITEM 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Developing the Health and Wellbeing Board

Report of the Executive Planning Group

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: NONE Key Decision: NO

Report Author: Contact Details:

Louise Hider, Health and Social Care Tel: 020 8227 2861

Integration Manager E-mail: louise.hider@lbbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Anne Bristow, Corporate Director, Adult and Community Services

Summary:

The Health and Wellbeing Board has been operational since April 2013 and has
completed its inaugural year as a statutory committee. The Board held a Development
Day in January 2014 to review the progress of the Board’s work and operation to date
and to discuss the development of its activity, particularly in the areas of engagement and
integrated working.

The Board are asked to note the headline findings of the January Development Day and
note that the Executive Planning Group will be reviewing the full Feedback Report from
the day to inform future development activity.

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended:
(i)  To note the headline findings of the January Development Day;

(i)  To note that the Executive Planning Group are working through the detailed
findings;

(i) To forward any further ideas or suggestions that they may have to the Executive
Planning Group (via Anne Bristow) to inform ongoing planning;

(iv) To note the proposal for two further Development Days in 2014/15 (October 2014
and February 2015) to continue the Board’s development.

Reason(s)

Priority three of the Corporate Plan is to improve the health and wellbeing through all
stages of life for residents of the borough. The H&WBB is the focal point of the local
health and social care economy where its member organisations come together to make
strategic plans for the provision of health and social care services and to ensure that
commissioning decisions (collective or sovereign) result in the delivery of the borough’s
overall Health and Wellbeing Strategy. To fulfil its role it is important the H&WBB
understands its remit and is able to make good, well-informed decisions on behalf of the
Borough.

Page 193



1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

The January Development Day

The Board commissioned lan Winter CBE as an external facilitator for the Board’s
first development day which was held on 13 January 2014. The programme for the
day was divided into four parts (how are we doing; what could change; making a
difference; engaging, understanding, and impact) and particularly focused on the
areas of engagement and integrated working.

34 delegates attended the event with each sub-group and member organisation
represented, and 11 out of 15 Board Members in attendance.

Listed below are the important headline observations from the sessions:

e Discussions on tricky issues need to start earlier to prevent problems
downstream

e Sub-groups need more clarity about what is required from them
o Partners to set the agenda of the Board, otherwise it will be Council-driven.

e The Board needs to promote itself better both within the health and social
care system and externally to other stakeholders and residents

¢ Not all Board members are active participants in all discussions

e The Board needs to pare back its work programme being more selective
about where it focuses its attention and delegating issues that it cannot deal
with to sub-groups for them to work through/lead on.

Despite these issues the views expressed by delegates at the Development Day
were largely positive and confirmed that the Board was indeed well-advanced and
working effectively. For example, the survey conducted in advance of the
development day showed that:

o 82% felt that Board agenda items were relevant to their organisation
e 50% felt that Board had made good progress

e 71% felt that the work of the Board was aligned with their organisation’s
priorities

o 43% felt the work of the Board was making a difference

e 70% saw an impact on improving effectiveness and efficiency of service
delivery

o 57% think that the work of the Board helps discussions and decision taken
outside of board meetings.

The full Feedback Report has been provided to the Executive Planning Group who
are working through the issues raised. Board Members have also been provided
with a full copy of the Development Day report and are asked to provide any
comments, ideas or suggestions to the Executive Planning Group via Anne Bristow.

Page 194



4.2.

4.3.

4.4

Future Development Days

. Board Members stated that they found the January Development Day useful and it is

proposed that two further Development Days will be held in the next financial year to
assess how it is performing, what it has achieved and where it will need to prioritise
improvement in 2014/15 to continue moving forward and improve its effectiveness as
a strategic decision-making body. The Executive Planning Group will be discussing
the next Development Day in October at their June meeting and will ensure that the
feedback from the January development session informs this planning.

Consultation

In preparation for the Development Day a questionnaire was sent to all invitees. The
findings of which were used to inform the programme of the Development Day and
were the basis of the stock take that was presented to delegates. The Development
Day evaluation form also surveyed delegates to see if their perceptions had changed
as a result of the workshops.

Mandatory Implications

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

The content of this report has no direct implications for the JSNA, though Board
Members might wish to reflect on how the outcomes of the Board meetings improves
the JSNA process and influences new iterations.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Producing the H&WB Strategy is a statutory requirement for the Board. It is important
that the Strategy has shared ownership and buy-in from all stakeholders on the
priorities. How other local strategies align with the H&WB Strategy, establishing if the
borough has a coherent shared vision for health and social care, and developing a
more inclusive approach to drafting the Strategy are all issues that might be worth
exploring in future development activities.

Integration

Clause 195 of the HSCA 2012 places a duty on H&WBBs to encourage integrated
working building strong and mature relationships between the member organisations
will facilitate discussions around sharing resources and delivering services in
partnership, informally or through section 75 agreements. The Sub-groups of the
H&WBB will play a crucial role in identifying opportunities for integration and testing
feasibility of any proposals.

Financial Implications

The Board has set up a contributory development fund for use in year two and with
the expectation that this will be replenished at the start of each year. BHRUT,
NELFT, B&D CCG and the Council have pooled £2,000 each to be used for
development activities, public engagement work, and by the sub-groups of the Board
to expedite their development. Sub-groups are asked to submit proposals to access
this fund through the Executive Planning Group.

In addition the Borough has successfully bid for £7,000 of funding from London
Councils. The Board therefore has a total of £15,000 at its disposal to help it achieve
its development objectives for the next municipal year.

Page 195



4.5.

4.6.

(Implications completed by: Roger Hampson, Group Manager, Finance)

Legal Implications

The Board must ensure that it fulfils its purpose and responsibilities as described in
the HSCA 2012. It is therefore prudent to have a plan for developing the Board and to
periodically assess the Board’s performance and progress.

(Implications completed by: Chris Pickering, Principal Solicitor)

Patient/Service User Impact

Increasing the public profile and visibility of the Board with residents was a prominent
theme of the Development Day. The Board may wish to focus on this development
area and give particular thought to how existing engagement mechanisms relate to
the Board and how communications can be ramped up to raise awareness about the
Board and to solicit the views of residents on health and social care issues. The role
and activities of Healthwatch will be important to moving forward in this area.

It should be noted that the Board has had regular attendance from members of the
public at its meetings and that the Board uses Twitter to broadcast meeting
proceedings. Since February 2014 the Chair of the Board has also sent out monthly
newsletters to staff in Member organisations after each Health and Wellbeing Board
meeting in order that they are aware of the discussions, decisions and issues arising
from each meeting. These initial attempts at engagement need building on with a
greater emphasis on engaging with patients and service users.

Background Papers Used in Preparation of the Report:
— Feedback Report Development Event, lan Winter Consultancy (January 2014)

List of Appendices:

— None

Page 196



AGENDA ITEM 13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 June 2014

Title: | Waiver of Contract Rules: Public Health Chlamydia Testing Contract
Extension

Report of the Director of Public Health

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: ALL Key Decision: YES

Report Author: Contact Details:

Zoé Garbett, Head of Public Health Tel: 020 227 2311
Commissioning, LBED E-mail: zoe.garbett@lbbd.gov.uk

Sponsor:
Matthew Cole, Director of Public Health LBBD

Summary:

A report was presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 11 February 2014 asking
for eight public health contracts to be extended. (Minute 96, 11 February 2014 refers)

This report asks for the Board to extend one contract for a further six months to end 30
September 2015 with break clauses at six and twelve months.

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to agree:
The Board is recommended to:

1. Agree to the extension of the Chlamydia Testing Contract for a further six months
by a Waiver under Contract Rules 6.6.8, to permit the extension of the Chlamydia
Testing contract with the current provider, Terrence Higgins Trust, for an
additional six months to 30 September 2015, with a break clause at six and
twelve months.

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, on the advice
of the Director of Public Health, and in consultation with the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services to extend the contract with Terrence Higgins Trust.

Reason(s)

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 directs local authorities to commission appropriate
access to sexual health services (ie. comprehensive sexual health services including
testing and treatment for sexually transmitted infections, contraception outside of the GP
contract and sexual health promotion and disease prevention). To support universal and
consistent provision of contraception there have been long standing legislative
requirements to ensure access to, and free supply of, contraception. The NHS Act 2006
makes the following provisions (contraception and Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI's)

Page 197



are dealt with separately):

“The Secretary of State for Health must arrange, to such extent as he considers
necessary to meet all reasonable requirements, for:

(a) the giving of advice on contraception,

(b) the medical examination of persons seeking advice on contraception,
(c) the treatment of such persons, and

(d) the supply of contraceptive substances and appliances”.

The Secretary of State has delegated this power in order for it to be properly enacted.
The Regulations outlined in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 state that most functions
must be exercised on behalf of those registered with a local GP, however some functions
including the services which the Secretary of State has a duty to provide relating to
contraception must be for the benefit of “all persons present in the area” i.e. must be
open-access and not limited to the residents of the local authority.

1. Background and Introduction
1.1 Areport was presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 11 February 2014
(Minute 96 refers) asking for eight public health contracts to be extended.

1.2 This report asks for the Board to extend one of those eight contracts (listed in table 1)
for a further six months to end 30 September 2015 (total extension 18 months from
April 2014). The extension will allow for:

e Chlamydia testing to be included in the Integrated Sexual Health tender

¢ An understanding of the sexual health services market place that operates on a
tariff basis which varies across London.

e A more in depth analysis of the budget as the 2013/2014 contract was based on
outturn figures provided by the PCT for the period April 2010 to March 2011.

e The procurement process to be carried out in collaboration with the London
boroughs of Havering and Redbridge. Havering leads on the procurement process.

Table 1: Public Health Contracts requiring extension

Contract Service provider | Previously Revised end date
approved end date

Chlamydia Terrence

testing Higgins Trust April 2015 30 September 2015

Page 198



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Consultation

Consultation with partners and providers has taken place and a regular dialogue is
ongoing. A paper detailing the Integrated Sexual Health (including Chlamydia testing)
procurement is going to the Procurement Board on the 16" June.

Mandatory Implications

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)

The JSNA has highlighted sexual health (especially HIV and teenage pregnancy) as
areas in need of improvement. In view of the measures in the Public Health
Outcomes Framework it would be inadvisable to leave the borough with no provision,
albeit temporary.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy highlights the importance and actions required to
improve sexual health. This extension is in line with the outcomes and priorities of the
joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The future procurement should further enhance
the quality and access of services as well as user and patient experiences.

Integration

One of the outcomes we want to achieve for our Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
is to improve health and wellbeing outcomes through integrated services. The
extensions allow for effective integration of services and partnership working.

Financial Implications

This report requests extensions to a public health contract by a further six months to
September 2015 for the reasons set out in the report. The annual value for
Chlamydia testing is £300,000, to be funded from the Public Health budget.

Completed by Roger Hampson (Group Manager — Finance, Adult & Community
Services).

Legal Implications

3.5.1 As an amendment to the report which was presented to the Health and
Wellbeing Board (the “HWB”) on 11 February 2014, the Board is being asked
to authorise the extension of the above contract for a period of 18 months
from April 2014 until September 2015. This report advises that the existing
contract received authority for an extension of 1 year until 31 March 2015.

3.5.2 ltis noted that this extension is requested so that the existing contract
expires at the same time as the Integrated Sexual Health Services Contract
delivered by Barking, Havering and Redbridge NHS University Hospitals
Trust (BHRUT) when the intention is to procure one contract to deliver a fully
integrated sexual health service.

3.5.3 Rule 54.1.4 of the Council’'s Contract Rules states that extensions can only

be made where an exemption request (waiver) is made where no specific
provision exists in the contract.

Page 199



3.6

3.54

It is anticipated that extending the contract for an extra 6 months will bring
the total spend for the extension to approximately £450,000. In accordance
with rule 54 .4 of the Council’s Contract Rules, the HWB can indicate whether
it is content for the contract to be extended for a total of 18 months.

Completed by Daniel Toohey (Principal Corporate Solicitor, Legal and Democratic
Services)

Risk

Management

The contract listed in Table 1 is important to the continuing health of the residents of
the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham. The provision of Chlamydia testing
by the Council, as Integrated Sexual Health services, is a mandated service which

must

be provided and not having these contracts in place would put the health of the

population at risk.

Background Papers

Barking and Dagenham’s Community Strategy 2013-1016

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Public Health Commissioning Priorities 2014/15

Page 200



AGENDA ITEM 14
Health and Wellbeing Board

17 June 2014

Title: Urgent Action: Implementation of Matters Scheduled for Consideration by the Health
and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014

Report of the Chief Executive

Open Report For Information

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Alan Dawson, Democratic Services | Contact Details:
Manager Tel: 020 8227 2348
E-mail: alan.dawson@Ibbd.gov.uk

Accountable Divisional Director: Fiona Taylor, Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Accountable Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive

Summary

The meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014 was inquorate. As a
consequence, the Board was not in a position to make any decisions on matters on the
agenda for that meeting. However, as allowed under the Council’'s Constitution, the Board
Members in attendance chose to discuss the agenda items in an informal setting once the
meeting had been officially closed.

Several items of business on the agenda for that meeting required decisions to be made
which were of significance and which could not wait until the next scheduled meeting (17
June 2014). The Chief Executive therefore agreed to deal with those matters, set out in
the schedule at Appendix 1 to this report, under the Council’s Urgent Action provisions
(paragraph 17, Article 1, Part B of the Constitution at that time). The matters were formally
approved on Wednesday 26 March 2014.

The reports to which those matters relate are available to view on the Council’'s website at
http://moderngov.barking-
dagenham.gov.uk/documents/g7091/Public%20reports%20pack%20Tuesday%2025-Mar-
2014%2018.00%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=10

Recommendation

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the action taken by the Council’s Chief
Executive under the Urgent Action procedures (paragraph 17 of Article 1, Part B of the
Council’s Constitution) as detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.

Page 201



Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:

o Chief Executive’s letter dated 26 March 2014 entitled “Urgent Action under Paragraph
17, Article1, Part B of the Constitution — Decisions of the Health and Wellbeing Board”.

List of appendices:

e Appendix 1 - Schedule of decisions taken by the Chief Executive that were due to be
taken by the Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014

Page 202



Appendix 1

Urgent Action: Schedule of decisions taken by the Chief Executive that were due to

be taken by the Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014

Better Care Fund Final Plan Key decision
To:
a) Agree the Final Plan as set out at Appendix 2 to the report, in the context of the

remaining issues that are discussed in Section 4 of the report.

b) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, acting
on behalf of the Council, and the Accountable Officer acting on behalf of Barking and
Dagenham CCG to approve the Final Plan in the light of any outstanding matters
arising from the Board’s discussions.

CCG Strategic Plan/Operating Plan Key decision

To:

a) Agree, on advice of the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, to the
proposed outcomes and related trajectories as set out in the CCG’s strategic plan
and operating plan

b) Delegate authority for final approval of the trajectory relating to the years of life
indicator to the Director of Public Health for LBBD and the Chief Operating Officer for
the CCG

c) Agree the proposed increase in medication errors reporting in the Operating Plan
(see paragraph 5.5)

Transfer of Health Visiting Commissioning Non-key decision

To:

a) Agree the initial transition programme (see paragraph 3.1)

Care City Proposal Key decision

To:

a) Support the development of the Care City concept in Barking and Dagenham,;

b) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, in
consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and the Chief Financial
Officer, to negotiate and enter into a partnership arrangement between the Council
and NELFT in accordance with Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006;

c) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services to

finalise the related arrangements for the interim “collaboration lab” in 2014/15,
including up to £300k of funding from the Public Health grant for set up costs, and
£72k from the Adults and Community Services reserve, if needed for funding the first
year of rent.

Page 203




Learning Disability Section 75 Agreement and Challenging Key decision
Behaviour Plan

To:
1.  Forthe Section 75 commissioning agreement:

a. Approve the proposed partnership arrangement between the Council and the
CCG in accordance with Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006, and the proposed
arrangements in respect of the associated contracts with service providers on the
integrated service provision as detailed in this report;

b. Approve the extension of the Section 75 agreement and associated service
provider agreements following the initial three year term by agreement between
the Council and the CCG;

c. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services in
consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, the Chief Finance
Officer and the Cabinet Member for Health as necessary, to conclude the
negotiation and execution of the Section 75 agreement and other contracts
associated with this agreement.

2.  For the Challenging Behaviour Joint Strategic Plan:
a. Approve its adoption and implementation

Mental Health Section 75 Agreement Key decision

To:

a) Approve the proposed partnership arrangement between the Council and NELFT in
accordance with Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006;

b) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services in
consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and the Chief Finance
Officer, on the Council’s behalf, to conclude the negotiation and execute the Section
75 agreement, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Health as necessary.

Supported Living Tender Key decision

To:

a) Approve to waive contract rules to extend existing contracts with Look Ahead and
MCCH for a further period of four months (to 31 January 2015) based on the tender
timetable set out in this report, and to authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and
Community Services to make the necessary arrangements;

b) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, in
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and Head of Legal and Democratic
Services, to proceed to tender in line with the process described in outline and on
conclusion of the necessary modelling.

Page 204




AGENDA ITEM 15

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Sub-Group Reports

Report of the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Open Report For Information

Wards Affected: NONE Key Decision: NO

Report Authors: Contact Details:

Louise Hider, Health and Social Care Integration Telephone: 020 8227 2861
Manager E-mail: Louise.Hider@lbbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Councillor Maureen Worby, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Summary:

At each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board each sub-group, excluding the
Executive Planning Group, report on their progress and performance since the last meeting
of the Board.

Board Members should note that the Children and Maternity Sub-Group and the Public
Health Programmes Board have not met since the last meeting and therefore a sub-group
report has not been attached for these two groups. However updates for these sub-
groups are as follows:

Children and Maternity sub-group

The Board should note that a Children and Maternity workshop was scheduled to be held
on 28 May 2014 but this was cancelled due to the unannounced inspection by OFSTED
and the timing of the meeting coinciding with Elected Member briefings following the local
elections. The workshop has been rescheduled for 2 July 2014 and a report on the
workshop will be provided in the next Children and Maternity sub-group report.

Public Health Programmes Board

The Public Health Programme Board has been reviewed to ensure that it is fit for purpose.
The key areas the Board will look at over the coming weeks includes Health Protection,
Obesity and Sexual Health which reflect the Local Authorities statutory duties and areas of
concern. The next meeting will be held on 27 June 2014.

Page 205



Recommendations:
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

¢ Note the contents of sub-group reports set out in the Appendices 1-3 and comment on
the items that have been escalated to the Board by the Sub-groups.

List of Appendices

— Appendix 1: Integrated Care Sub-group
— Appendix 2: Learning Disability Partnership Board
— Appendix 3: Mental Health Sub-group

Page 206




APPENDIX 1

Integrated Care Group

Chairs:

Dr Jagan John, Clinical Lead, NHS Barking and Dagenham Clinical Commissioning Group
Jane Gateley, Director of Strategic Delivery, Barking Havering and Redbridge Clinical
Commissioning Groups

Items to be escalated to the Health & Wellbeing Board
» The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note progress of the integrated care sub
group

Meeting Attendance
24 February 2014: 56% (9 of 16)

24 March 2014: 50% (8 of 16)
28 April 2014: 67% (10 of 15)
Performance

Please note that no performance targets have been agreed as yet; going forward the
group will review progress against Barking and Dagenham targets delivered through
achievement of milestones in Better Care Fund schemes.

Action(s) since last report to the Health and Wellbeing Board
» The previous three meetings of the Integrated Care Group (February — April 2014)
have been dedicated to the development of Better Care Fund (BCF) proposals and
detailed project plans to support these.

» The group has strengthened governance arrangements around the BCF plan; the I¢
operational group has been reframed to oversee Better Care Fund projects. This gr
will be accountable to the Integrated Care Sub Group who will monitor progress

against target. The Integrated Care Sub Group will report progress to the Health and

Wellbeing Board.

= BCF plans include the following schemes around which the Sub group agenda will
framed going forward:
o Scheme 1: Integrated Health and Social Care Teams

Scheme 2: Discharge from Hospital

Scheme 3: Intermediate Care/Reablement

Scheme 4: Mental health support outside hospital

Scheme 5: Joint Commissioning

Scheme 6: Support for Family Carers

Scheme 7: Care Bill implementation

Scheme 8: Prevention/Falls

Scheme 9: End of life

Scheme 10: Equipment and Adaptations

Scheme 11: Dementia support

O O O O 0O O O O 0 O

pcal
oup

Page 207



Action and Priorities for the coming period
» The group will now focus on finalising of the Better Care Fund scheme project
plans, monitoring delivery, and addressing any issues arising from BCF
implementation; regular updates will be provided to the Health and Wellbeing
Board.

» The group is in the process of developing reablement metrics; the Health and
Wellbeing Board will be updated on progress.

» The group will develop an end of life care update paper which will go to the Health
and Wellbeing Board in June 2014.

Contact: Emily Plane, Project Officer, Strategic Delivery, BHR CCGs
Tel: 0208 822 3052; Email: Emily.Plane@onel.nhs.uk

Page 208




APPENDIX 2
Learning Disability Partnership Board

Chair: Glynis Rogers, Divisional Director Commissioning and Partnerships, London
Borough of Barking and Dagenham

Meeting Attendance

29 April 2014: 65% (13 out of 20)

18 March 2014: 60% (12 out of 20)

3 February 2014: 58% (10 of 17 attendees)

17 December 2013: 47% (8 of 17 attendees)
4 November 2013: 71% (12 of 17 attendees)
23 September 2013: 71% (12 of 17 attendees)
12 August 2013: 88% (15 of 18 attendees)

Items to be escalated to the Health & Wellbeing Board

(a) None

Action(s) since last report to the Board

(a) Two Learning Disability Partnership Board (LDPB) meetings have taken place since
the last report in January 2014.

(b) The Service User, Carer and Professionals and Provider Forums are meeting
regularly. The Forum representatives have an opportunity to give feedback and
raise any issues at every LDPB meeting.

(c) Standing items on the LDPB forward plan include Winterbourne View and Children
and Families Bill and Transitions.

(d) Topics that have been discussed recently include the housing, Learning Disability
Section 75 Agreement, the Behaviour That Challenges Plan, the Autism Plan and
Learning Disability Week.

Action and Priorities for the coming period

(a) At future meetings the following will be discussed: Market Position Statement
Update, ELF Project Update, Autism Plan, Supported Living, Transport Forum,
Children and Families Bill, Care Bill, Healthwatch Consultation on Personal
Budgets, Fulfilling Lives, Update on the Joint Assessment and Discharge Service,
Care City, Community Safety and Learning Disabilities.

Contact: Joanne Kitching, Health Integration Support Officer, London Borough of Barking
and Dagenham
Tel: 020 8227 3216 / E-mail: joanne.kitching@Ibbd.gov.uk

Page 209




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 210



APPENDIX 3
Mental Health sub-group

Chair: Gillian Mills, Integrated Care Director (Barking and Dagenham), NELFT

Items to be escalated to the Health & Wellbeing Board

(@) None to note.

Performance

Please note that no performance targets have been agreed as yet.

Meeting Attendance
16 April, 2014: 60% (9 of 15)

Action(s) since last report to the Health and Wellbeing Board

(@) The Terms of Reference and membership of the group were reviewed. The issue of
NHS England representation on the Group has been resolved. John Atherton will act
as the point of contact for the Group and organise attendance of relevant NHS England
expert colleagues.

(b) Sub-group discussion regarding voluntary sector and service user membership of the
group. Agreed to add ‘Engagement Strategy’ as a duty and responsibility to the Terms
of Reference.

(c) The Group made initial comments on a paper which had been circulated in respect of
the Mental Health Needs Assessment undertaken in September 2013. Agreement that
further work is required to undertake epidemiological assessment of mental health and
wellbeing of the B&D population. LBBD Public Health leading on commissioning a 4
month project. Interim and final report will be presented to the MH Sub-Group, and will
inform future service commissioning intentions and service improvement.

(d) The group considered the 25 areas noted within the DH document ‘Closing the Gap:
Priorities for essential change in mental health’ published in January 2015. Agreement
that service commissioners and providers should undertake benchmarking audit to
establish where organisations are against the recommendations.

Action and Priorities for the coming period

(@) On behalf of the Board, the sub-group agreed to take forward the recommendations of
the Health and Adult Services Select Committee’s scrutiny review on the impact of the
recession and welfare reforms on people’s mental wellbeing. An action plan is being
developed for review at the June sub group meeting and to provide a report to the July
Board meeting.

Contact:

Julie Allen, PA to Integrated Care Director (NELFT)
Tel: 0300 555 1201 ext 65067; E-mail: Julie.allen@nelft.nhs.uk

Page 211




APPENDIX 3

Page 212



AGENDA ITEM 16

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

17 JUNE 2014
Title: | Chair’s Report
Report of the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board
Open Report For Information
Wards Affected: NONE Key Decision: NO
Report Author: Contact Details:
Louise Hider, Health and Social Care Integration Tel: 020 8227 2861
Manager Email: louise.hider@lbbd.gov.uk

Sponsor:

Councillor Maureen Worby, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Summary:

Please see the Chair's Report attached at Appendix 1.

Recommendation(s)

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

a) Note the contents of the Chair's Report and comment on any item covered should
they wish to do so.

Page 213



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



APPENDIX 1
R e e e e T eI e R TR L R R RERED .. | Chairs Report)
: Welcome to our second statutory year as a Board!

In this edition of my Chair’s Report | discuss the Care Act receiving
Royal Assent and update the Board on the Better Care Fund and
the progress of Care City. | also congratulate the CCG on their
success in the Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund as well as
Matthew Hopkins on his appointment as Chief Executive at

| BHRUT. | would welcome Board Members to comment on any
item covered should they wish to do so.

Best wishes,
Cllir Maureen Worby, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

AleyJg

(Care Act \

The Care Bill went through its final stages of the parliamentary process and on
14 May 2014 it was given Royal Assent. We are now waiting for the consultation
on the draft regulations and guidance to begin.

For an overview of the Act please see Norman Lamb’s ministerial statement
which followed Royal Assent. As Members of the Board will remember, the
majority of the Care Act will come into force in April 2015 which is a very
challenging timetable for such major reform. The Board will be receiving a report
at the July meeting which summarises the Act, unpicks the detail in the
secondary legislation, and explains in depth the local approach to implementing
the Act’s provisions. As discussed at previous Health and Wellbeing Board
meetings, the Act also has provisions that have implications for partner
organisations, and this will also be discussed in the July report.

For the moment the Board are reminded that Anne Bristow has set up an adult
social care reform programme which has within it six workstreams to deliver the
various elements of the Care Act. The Programme Board has been meeting
since November 2013 and has now reached the point where the implementation
programme will ‘move up a gear’, particularly now that the regulations will be

\imminently published. )

J1oday s

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

: In the March Chair’s Report | discussed the bid that BHR CCGs put into the Prime
: Minister’'s Challenge Fund, supported by myself and the other Health and
: Wellbeing Board Chairs in Havering and Redbridge. | am delighted to report that
: the joint application to the Challenge Fund was successful and that BHR CCGs
have been awarded £5.6M to implement their plans, which focus on two strands
: of work:

e Improved Access - for patients through better access to appointments
within and outside of core hours, with a simpler point of entry. This will
include more urgent week day appointments between 6.30pm and 10pm,
with extra urgent appointments at the weekend — all in addition to normal
GP opening hours

e Complex Care - focussing on complex patients with increased need for
specialist skills. Local GPs will support people with complex health
problems with a dedicated team of clinicians including a GP, practice nurse
and consultant.

| will look forward to the Board receiving updates on the progress of these
: important changes to primary care services over the coming months.

*
lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

Page 215 @Dﬂge"m"‘




llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

New Chief Executive at BHRUT

. In the last Chair's Report | discussed the new

E appointment of Steve Russell as the Improvement
: Director at BHRUT as well as Dr Maureen Dalziel's
: appointment as interim Chair.

: 1 would now like to welcome Matthew Hopkins as the new
: Chief Executive at BHRUT following his appointment in
April 2014. Prior to this, Matthew was the Chief Executive
E of Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust for
: three years and has also worked at a number of other
: London teaching hospitals. | hope that the Board joins
E me in wishing Matthew success in this challenging role.

Board Members can follow Matthew on Twitter @M_J_Hopkins.

(Carers’ Strategy

The Borough'’s current Carers’ Strategy is due to draw to a close in 2015 having
been in existence since it was adopted in 2011. It is felt that the current
Strategy is out of date as it doesn’t take into account developments such as
those relating to the Care Bill, Better Care and progress towards improved
integration between health and social care. We also know that carers have a
significant impact upon demand for health and social care, notably upon
emergency admissions, and are integral to helping people to remain healthy and
independent for as long as possible. Supporting the health and wellbeing of
carers is therefore essential and should also be reflected in our Borough-wide
strategy.

We have therefore sought to engage with an expert partner — Carers UK —
develop and refresh our Carers’ Strategy. Carers UK have achieved positive
outcomes in other areas of the country and will be undertaking engagement with
carers, voluntary organisations and staff, as well as other stakeholders to review
and renew the Strategy. They will also be drawing upon national best practice
and outcomes to determine local priorities and needs, and will look at the
engagement and effectiveness of current services in order to make
recommendations of ways in which commissioners in the Borough can make
best use of their resources for the benefit of carers in Barking and Dagenham. |
will look forward to following the refresh of the Strategy over the next few
\_months and receiving updates to the Board in due course. )

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
*

CCG Board Appointments

E | wanted to alert Board Members to the results of the CCG Governing Body
election which was held recently. From 1 April 2014, the following Clinical
: Directors will form the Governing Body:

Dr Arun Sharma

: Dr Ravaili Goriparthi
Dr Ramneek Hara

: Dr Jagan John

: Dr Gurkirit Kalkat

: Dr Chandra Mohan
Dr Waseem Mohi

Dr Mohi and Dr John will remain as the Clinical Director representatives at the
: Health and Wellbeing Board. For more information about the Governing Body,
E please contact Anne-Marie Keliris, Company Secretary by emailing

*, AnneMarie.Keliris@onel.nhs.uk

e tsErasrasrssEEssEsEEsEEsEEssEESEEssEssEEsEEssEssEEsEs Rage.216. . .ccviiirievnr e naae .

O
-y
a3
=
i
A
(D

:
O
—-



mapping Health and Wellbeing Board priorities \

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board may be interested in a new
interactive map highlighting the priorities of all Health and Wellbeing Boards
across England. By selecting a theme, for example smoking or healthy living,
the map highlights all areas citing it as one of their health and wellbeing
priorities.

i s==e|  YOU CanN also select a single area
on the map and view a summary
of the local priorities, access links
EWET%EEL["“;";L; T ; to the local Health and Wellbeing

smoking and obesity and increasing physical activity, and interventions in Strategy, VleW data reports

pregnancy and early years.
ks “  produced through LG Inform and

Health and welling i yourarca (LG o) LG Inform Plus highlighting

Health and wellbeing, a comparison by ward (LG inform Plus)

Healh Prafils (Pubkc Health Englanc) measures of health and
wellbeing for the area and also
see the latest Health Profile for
the area produced by Public

Health England.

The interactive map can be found
S Missiae st By Visiting:

http://www.local.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing-boards/-
Q)urnal content/56/10180/6111055/ARTICLE J

.

5'"Better Care Fund Update

: | wanted to ensure that | gave Members of the Board an update on our Better
Care Fund Plan, particularly following recent media coverage. Following positive
: feedback from NHS England we have developed a detailed stakeholder
engagement plan and detailed implementation plans for each of the 11 schemes
: within our Better Care Fund plan with work commencing to deliver each of the

: schemes from June. Oversight of progress is maintained through the Integrated
Care sub-group, with monthly updates provided. We have identified the likely

: impact upon the hospital trust and the required reductions in emergency

: admissions and have worked closely with the hospital to ensure alignment with

: both their improvement plan and the steps to implement the new Joint
Assessment and Discharge Service. We are linked into NHS England, the Local
: Government Association and London Councils to ensure that we can make ready
: use of emerging best practice and guidance in our delivery of the required

: changes to services.

Regular updates will be brought to the Board over the coming months, including a

> report to the Board in September. K

" Current Status of Care City

The Care City programme is continuing to gather momentum and to date has
attracted over £2.5 million worth of investment. This includes a £1.8million NELFT
contribution for the purchase of an interim show home for care city.

The search for a new interim site has resumed following news that we were not able
to secure the initial preferred option. However, this turn of events has presented us
with an opportunity to increase our ambition - to seek a space which will also
support us to accommodate our growing number of researchers.

We are currently exploring a number of Barking sites. We continue to work towards

developing the Care City Business Plan by July which will determine the next phase

of the programme. A paper detailing the proposed governance of Care City will also
Lbe presented to Cabinet and the Health and Weliggirg1 Board in July.

J

v10c {unr i

.
-y
Q)
=
i
A
(D

:
O
=



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



AGENDA ITEM 17

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
17 JUNE 2014

Title: | Forward Plan

Report of the Chief Executive

Open For Comment

Wards Affected: NONE Key Decision: NO

Report Authors: Contact Details:

Tina Robinson, Telephone: 020 8227 3285
Democratic Services E-mail: tina.robinson@lbbd.gov.uk
Sponsor:

Clir Worby, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Summary:
Attached at Appendix 1 is the Forward Plan for the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Forward Plan lists all known business items for meetings scheduled for the 2014/15
municipal year and is an important document for not only planning the business of the
Board, but also ensuring that we publish the key decisions (within at least 28 days notice
of the meeting) in order that local people know what discussions and decisions will be
taken at future Health and Wellbeing Board meetings.

Recommendation(s)
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

a) Make suggestions for business items so that decisions can be listed publicly in the
Council’'s Forward Plan with at least 28 days notice of the meeting;

b) To consider whether the proposed report leads are appropriate;

c) To consider whether the Board requires some items (and if so which) to be
considered in the first instance by a Sub-Group of the Board.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 220



¥10¢ aunr Qg :®}eg uonealignd

uonip3 102 AINr - 14vHA

NV'1d A4VMAO4
dyvod ONIFgT11dM Pue H11v3H

SN

weyuabeqybunjieg

jo ybnolog uopuo-

Page 221




‘apeuw 8 0} anp SI UOISIDaP aY} UBYM djep ay} e
(s1921440 10 s1aqUIB|\ [ENPIAIPUI O} suoIsioap Aay Jo Buiye) ay) ajebsjap jou ssop weyuabeq pue Bupeg) Apoq Bujew-uoisiosp ay} e
‘apew aq 0} SI UOISIOapP 3y} YoIym Jo Joadsal ul Jajjew ay} e

:Buipnjoul ‘paysijgnd s 3l Usym ajge|ieAe SI Se UOIJEWIOJUI YONW Se Sapnjoul Uejd pJjemio ay} ‘uoisioap yoes 0} uolje|al U]
ue|d piemio ayj} Ul papn|oul uoneuLIou|

‘g|qissod se peaye Jej se Apoq Buiyew-uolsiosp ay) Aq paiapisuod aq 0} anp ale jey] ‘ suoisioaq Ay, 1snl
JOU ‘S8nss| UMOUY [[e S8pNnjoul )i Jey} 0S Juswnoop siy} Jo #doos ay} papusixe sey ) Juswulanob uado 0} JUSWHWWOD S |Iouno) 8y} jo Jed sy

‘(spiem
alow Jo om} Uuo aq 03 Ajdy1| sI Joedwl ay}) aiaym juensajal buiaq Ajuo 10adse siy) 0} siajal uole|siba| ay}) pJem alow Jo auo uo Joedwi juesyiubls
e aney 0] A|@y|| sI Jey} uoisioap Aue 0] saje|al )l Jey} 0S uoniuyap SIy} papuslxa osje sey weyuabeq pue Bupueg ‘anoge (i) 0} uoneal uj

‘(uoisioaq Aay e Jjosy si 1bpng ayj Jo Buipas ayy) 126png s 1ouno) ay} ul 10) papiroad
Apealje jou si jey} alow 1o 000‘'00Z3 o sbuines 1o Buipuads si jueouiubis, jo uoniuyep sweyuabeq pue Buyeg ‘anoqge (i) 0} uonelal uj

Ajlunwiwod ayj uo Joays jueoliubis e aney jeyy asoyyl (i)
sBuines 10 Buipuads juediubis, aAj0AUl JeY) 8soy | ()
(uonnyisuo) s j1IPUNOY By} Ul |Ie}ap alow ul paule|dxa si siy}) ylomawely Aoljod pue Aleyebpnq s |1IoUno) ayj wioy ey} asoy | (1)

'Se paulap ale suolisioap ASY| ‘apew aq 0} aie suolsioap
ay} jey) ajep ay) alojaq sAep gz paysiignd ag o} palinbai s ‘ue|d pJemio- 8y} SB UMOUY JUSWNO0op 8y 'SUOIoUN) 8AIN0SXS aABY Jey) salpoq
/ suosiad ; seapIWWwo Jay)o 1o 1auige) ayl Agq uaye) ag 0} ale jey) ,suolsioaq Aey, Buljielsp uswnoop e ysiignd 0} aAey S[IouNod ‘me| Ag

suoisi1o9q Aay

'L Xipuaddy ul pajsi| s pieog Buiaq|iopn

pue yjeaH ayj jo diysiaquiaw [|n} 8y} Z10Z suonenbay (puelbug) (uonewiopu| 0} $s820y pue sbunasyy) (sjuswabuelly aAljNdax3) saljioyiny
[E007 Y} YUM 80UepIodde U] ‘0=049%081=PlddXdSeSue|4isibuwn Aob weyuabep-buieq Acbulapow//.diy je a}isgam s [Iouno?) ay}

UO pamalA 8q ued pue (Iouno) [|ny) Alquassy 8y} Jo (Apog Buijew-uolsioap aANdaxa ulew ay}) Jduige) s,j1ouno) ay) Ag apew ale saljialoe
[1IoUN0Y JBY]0 Jo Joadsal ul suoisioap Aay “pleog Buiaq|iap pue yjesH ay) Aq sapew ale siajjew paje|al-yjeay Jo 10adsal ul suoisioap Aoy

:9)ou Aiojeuejdxy

NV1d QVMAO4 3HL

Page 222



GLoz Arenuged 9| uonIpa G10Z YoJey
GL0z Aenuer g| uonipa 610z Arenigae
102 JoqWaAON 0L uonIpa 10z Jequeoaqg
10g J1equieldag 67 uonipa 10z 19740300
¥10g isnbny || uonipa {10z Jequiejdes
102 aunr 0¢ uonipe 10z Aine

102 AN 61 uonipa {10z aunr

ajep uoneoljqnd uonip3

:pouad uonesiignd Aep-gz Aioinjels ayl yjm aosuepiodoe
ur ‘Jeah [1ouno) GLOZ / L0z 2yl Buunp sajep Buimojjo) 8y} a1ojaq 10 uo paysiignd aq |Im ueld plemio s pleog Buiaqapn pue yjesH ayl

"Ul pajsalajul ale noA ey} Buiyesw pue aaIWLwWod ay) }09|9s pue sallobajen)dse awoH20(3al)N AOh weyuabep
-bunjieq Aobulapouw//:dny o) ob siaded epuabe ay} mala 0} pue sbui@aw [1I0UN0Y Inoge s|ie}ap Jo4 -Bunssw ay) aiojeq sAep Buiyiom Jes|o
3N} }se9) Je payslignd aq Ajjewuou im 21gnd sy} 0} uado sbuieaw |1IDUN0Y JBaYjo pue salpoq Buiyew-uolsioap ay} Joj spodal pue sepuabe ay |

n°AoB pgqi@uosuiqol-eul jlews ‘G8ze /ZZ8 020 duoydalal) Ng. 0LINY

‘xass3 ‘weyuabeq ‘asjua) JIAID ‘I9oIYO SSOIAISS DlleIooWa(] ‘UOSUIGOY BuUl| JOBIUOD PINOYS NOA palsi| SJuswnoop ayj Jo Aue malA 0} 8|
PINOM NOA §| “Wa) Y} UO UOIJEWIOUI JBUYLN) SWOS 81| P|NOM NOA JI JOBJUOD 0} 18210 Ulew 8y} Jo s|iejap saAIb ue|d ay) ul Aua yoeg -oignd
8y} 01 a|ge|ieAe ale uolisioaq Aay| yoes 0} uolje|al Ul 0} pallajal Sjuswnoop ayj ‘@insojosip JIsy} Uo uonolsal 1o uoniqiyold Aue 0} 108lgng

suoisioap Aay] Y3Im uonoauuod ui AJolqng

Page 223



"Wwia)l Jey) Joy Josuods 8y} SI OUM Jaquisjy pieog JO pue Jaolyo pes| 8y} Jo s|ielap 8y} saAlb # uwnjo)

‘Aym (s)uoseal ayj ‘0s JI ‘pue ajeAld ul paisapisuod
aq ‘ped ul 1o sjoym ul ‘Aew Ji Jaylaym 1o Bunsaw ay) jo Jed uado ayj ul paispISuod 8 0} pajoadxa sI anss| 8y} Jay}dym sSMoys ¢ uwnjo)

0]
saje[al anssi ay} 1eys ybnolog ayj ul (s)plem ay} sisi| osje Z uwnjo) ‘adA} [ewiou Ul umoys si 81} 8y} swia)l 1aylo ||e Joj - adAy pjoq ul umoys
SI 9|11} 8y} swa)l uoisioap Asy, 104 ‘ybnos Buiaq uolsioap 8y} JO ainjeu sy} pue Japew 1oalgns 1o podal ay} Jo 811} 8y} 1IN0 S18s Z uwnjo)

" YN"ACB PqQI@UOSMEP UEJE 10 €7 /228 020 Uo uosme( uely Bunjoejuod Aq 10 =13 A8699=P|D ¢ Xdse sbunas|\iSIialn Aob weyuabep
-buyieq-Aobuispowj/-dny o) buiob Aq Jayys ‘Bunesw jey) 1oy epuabe ayj uo papnjoul si

wia)l 8y} jeyy buneaw ayj Jo sAep / UIYIM 3o8yd pjnoys ‘palspisSuod aq 0} pajnpayds sI wall ay} yoiym je buiesw ay} puslje 0} Saysim ays/ay
JI Ajjeoadsa ‘wiay Jenaijed e ul }salsjul ue yum auoAue jey) ‘alojeiay) ‘pajsabbns s} "pake|ap 1o palisjep aq ‘suoseal Jo AlalieA e Jo) ‘Aew
ue|d pJemio4 ay} U0 UMOYS W)l Ue ‘JOASMOH "} Bupje) aq |im oym pue uaye} aq [|IM UoISIoap ay} uaym ajep pajoalosd sy} smoys | uwnjo)

a|qe) ay} 0} Aay|

"(NN"ACB"PAqI@SSSRILIOD :|lews ‘8H€Z /228 020 :duoyds|a)) N/ 0LINY XossT

‘weyuabeq ‘aiua) JINY ‘1abeuel) S82IAISS dljeIo0owWa(] ‘UOSME( UE|Y 0} apew aq p|noys suoljejuasaldal yons Auy -o1ignd ayj o} uado aq
p|noys uoisioap Jejnoiued e Aym jnoge [1Iouno) ay} 0} apew aq Aew suoljejuasalday ‘) Buisojosip ul }salaiul olignd sy} sybiamino uoljew.olul
ay) Buipjoyyum ui 3saisyul o1ignd ayj jeyy pue (papusawe Se) Z/61 10V JUSWUIBA0L) |20 8y} 0} YZ| |NPayds JO | Jed Japun uoljew.oul
1dwaxe ulejuo? |Im Bunzeaw ay} 1oy spodal pue epusbe ay) asnesaq ajeAlld ul pjay aq Aew ue|d piemio siy} ul pajsl| sbujeaw ay} jo Jed jey)
210z suone|nbay (puebug) (uonewloju| 0} sS829y pue sbunaspy) (sjuswabuelly aAIN28XT) SallIOYINY |BO0T SY) Jopun 821}0U |[ewlo} SI SIY ]

"uoljew.Joyul jeuosiad J0 SAISUSS AJ|eIDJaWWOD ‘[eluapluod ‘a|dwexa 1o} ‘SUlejuod Jey) palapisuod aq 0} ssauisng awos aq Ajgeyasul
M 818y} ‘puaje 0} suoljesiuebio eipaw pue oljgnd ay} o} uado aq [|Im ssauisng s pieog Bulag|epn pue yiesH ey} jo Ajiolew ayy ISIIYAA

uonew.oju| 3dwaxg 1o |euapiuo)

Page 224



SpIe/\ (I :PO34Y Ajoauiq splepy e

(In'nob paqg|@siabou siuf|b) ‘sasioloxa Buiddew Juspuadapul pue ylomawel AWM YA
(21282 1228 020 12L1) JUSWISSASSY J|9S wsiny ay} ul pauapl sjuswanocidwi dn syoid yoiym Abajelis ‘Kepsan]
sdiysiaupned wisiiNy 8y} JO UoIlpa paysaljal ay} anoidde pue mainal 0} payse SI pJeog ay | :pieog
pue AJunwwo? ‘1ojoaliq Bulaq|iom
[euolisiniq ‘sieboy sIuA|D uado yiomaweld : Abajesys wisiny pue yjjeaH
8|qeol|ddy JON :pajosyy Ajoaliq spiepy e
"suoljepusawwodal ay} Jo
uonjejuswaldwi syoel; jeyl wodal Ajyuow-xis puoaas ay} aq |im Jodal siy] Ajeso)
aJed sajagelp J0 MalAal S} BuiMo||0) SuoilepuswWwosal s,)SSYH ay} Buaaisp 1oy AN YA
(n"A0B pqq|®@ 3|09 Mayew) a|qisuodsal Apog ayj aq pjnom pieog sawwelsbolid yjesH d1|gnd ay} jey} paaibe ‘Kepsan
(259¢ 2228 020 121) SeM }l ‘€10z dunr {0 U0 suoljepuswiwodal ay} 0} asuodsal [eiul ue Bulab Jayy :pieog
UyesH o1gnd Bulagilam
JO Joyoauig ‘910D Maypnen uado suolepuswwWo9day ay} Buuaaiieq uo ajepdn :Aunniog sajaqgelq pue yjjeaH
spJep IV :Pojoayy Aposulq spiepy e
‘Juassy
|[eAoy uanib si )1 92uo uoie|siba| ay} Jo suoisinold }@aw 0} ybnosog ay} Jo ssaulpeal V1262
(n"n0b pgqg|@siiiow-aan.q) pue suoljeslidwi |B20| 8y} SI8pISU0 jey} suodal Jo salas e ul pliy} sy} aq ||Im ‘Kepsan]
(6¥722 2228 020 ‘191) Hodai siy] "yood ajnjels sy} ojul ||ig a1eD 8y} jo abessed ayj Buimol|o} si pieog ay L :pleog
ale) [e1d0S }npy “Joyalig Bulaqjiam
[euoIsSINI(Q ‘SLUIOP\ @onug uado }omawel : Joy aied syl pue yjjeaH
(eyennd
s ped/ |e uoIsIoa( 4O ainjeN

Joyine uodal / 1921J0 peaT]
pue sosuodg

Jl uoseal pue)
ajeAld J uadp

1ape yoalgng

aje(q pajoaloiad
/19)e} uoisioaQ

Page 225



SPIEAN |1V (P3108YY Ajoaiq Spiepy e

vi'L6C
7102 Y2Je GZ J0 yeyy Buimojjoy ajepdn yunoy ayj a4 ||im Hodal ‘Kepsan
(In°syu’jpuo@Asleies) auer) sIy| "pieog aled abin ps-9909 8y} woly sajepdn Jeinbas Buiniedal sI pieog ay | :pieog
Kianjeq o1bsiens Bulaqg|iom
10 J0)08u1q ‘A9jeieD) suer uado alepdn pieog ate) juabin pue yjesaH
SPIEeN\ |1V ‘PoJ0RYY Ajjoalig splepy e
(o
n'AoB paq|@iueulysiy eusaw) Y 8y} VAWN YA
(9812 1,228 020 I2L) JO suoisinoid ayy Bunuswsjdwi jo swia) ul weyuabeq pue Bupeg 1o} Buisue sanssi ‘Kepsan]
Buiptenbajeg pue JueAsjal pue uone|sibal ay} jo abessed ay} uo ajepdn ue aAledal ||IM pJeoqg ay | :pieog
Buluoissiwwo) Jo Joyoalqg Bulaqg|iom
[BUOISIAIQ ‘lUBUIYSIY BUSS|\ uado YIoMawel : Joy saljiwed pue ualp|iy) ayl pue yjjesH
SpIeA |1V (Pejoayy Ajjoaliq splepy e
"dnoub siy} 1o} passalppe aq ued saljjenbaul yjeay moy v1°262
(3n°Aob°pgq|®@a]00 Maypew) pue uoisinoid aoinlas ul sdeb ssnosip |Im pJeog 8y "HoYoo e Sk siapuayo BunoA ‘Kepsan]
(259¢ 2228 020 121) Jo} sabusjjeya pue spasu yjeay ay} sauljino jey} yodal e aaldal ||IM pieoqg ay | :pieog
yjjesH aljand Bulaqjiam
JO J0joalIq ‘9]0 Maynen uado siapuayQ bunoA pue yyesH pue yjjesH
SpIeA |1V (Pejoayy Ajjoalig splepy e
‘uoIssnosip
1o} yolepy Gz uo pieog ayj 0} pajuasald Ajjeuiblo aiem mainal ay} jo sbuipuly ay |
‘Buiag|iem pue yjeay [ejusw ,SUSpISaI UO UOISSa9al ay} Jo Joedwi ay} pajebiisanul
M3IABI BY ] "‘MaIAaL AUlNIOS S,89)ILUIWIOY) J08[8S SB2IAISS }NPY pue y)esH V1262
3y} JO suoljepuswwodal pue sbuipuly sy} 0} asuodsal ul paonpoud aq ||Im ydiym ‘Kepsan ]
(In°syu-ypu@s|iw-uel||ib) ue|d UOI0y Ue UO Ssjuswwod aAlb pue aaiaoal |im pieog Buiaq|apn pue yjesH ayl :pieog
1473N ‘Joyoauig Buraqjiam
aie) pajelbajul ‘SN uelo uadQ (uejd uonoy) Aulniog uoiIssaoay ay) Jo Joedw| pue yjjesH

Page 226



SPIBAN IIV :P3109Y Ajoaiq spiepy e

‘Gl/¥10¢ Ojul uoisiosp vi'L6C
(3n°Aob°pgq|®@a]00 Maypew) 92Jn0sal a|qeus 0} pue pJemio} Buiob asn sy} wiojul 0} Jules| suossa| Buipnjoul ‘Kepsan ]
(LG9¢ /228 020 ‘191) 1/€10Z Ul Juels yyesH oljgnd ay} jo Joedwil pue asn ayj juasald ||im Hodal ay | ‘pieog
yjjesH aljand Bulaqjiam
JO Jojoauig ‘910D Maynen uado Aunwwo) : malney yieaH 2d1gnd pue yjjeaH
SPIEAA |1V :PojoRyY A}oalig splepy e
suoljoe asayj Jo sisumo sjeldoidde jsow sy} aplosp
pue sjuswanoidwi pue sabueyo Aressadou Ayipuapl os Buiop ul pue JUsWSSasSy
spas| Buipasjisealg ay} Wolj SUoljoe sy} Je 00| 0} payse aq ||IM pieoqg ay ]
'¥1.0¢ Ae|\ ul podal 14 WA T4
(n"A0B pqQ|®@ 9|09 Mayew) paje|dwod ay} paAiedal yjleaH dlignd ‘juswanoidwi 1o sease A8y ay} pue ybnolog ‘Kepsan ]
(269¢ 2228 020 121) 3y} UIYIM SSOIAISS JUaLIND Je PaY00| JUswssassy spasN buipasyisealg ay | :pieog
UyesH o1gnd Bulagiiam
JO Jojoaliq ‘9]0 Maynen uado Aunwwo) : Aemyjed Buipasyisealg ayy 0} syjuswanoidw| pue yjjeaH
spJep IV :pejoayy Aposulq spiepy e
vi'L6C
(3n°A0B'pqq|@a|0d Maypew) ‘¥1/€1L0T J0 ‘Kepsan
(L99€ /228 020 ‘I21) Hoday [enuuy [dued MaIAIBAQ Uyeaq PIIYD 8y} SSNIsSIp pue aAIdal ||Im pleog 8y L ‘pieogq
UyesH o1gnd Bulagiiam
JO J0joalIq ‘9]0 Maynen uado Hoday |enuuy [aued MalAIBAQ yiead PIyD pue yjjesH
spJep IV :pejoayy Aposulg spiepy e
‘pJeog a8yl Aq paJapisuod aq 0} SUollepuUSWWOo9al Jo Jaquinu e asodoud [jim podal
S,INdO 'sdeb 1oxiew pue sadlales Jualind Buliojdxa pue siapjoyayels Aay yum
UoI}e}NSUO09 ‘eljuawap o aousjenald ay} uo uoijewJojul [esibojoiwapids Buipiroid V1262
(3n°Aob°pgq|®@a]02 Maypew) apnjoul sanoalqo Aey ay ] "ybnoioq ay} 1o} JUSLISSSSSY SPaaN eluswaq e ‘Kepsan]
(259¢ 2228 020 121) 9)9|dw o9 0} yyeaH a1ignd Aq pauoissiluwod aJam Juswabeuel o1ignd Jo 8010 ayL :pieog
yjjesH aliqnd Buraqjiam
JO J0joalIq ‘9]0 Maynen uado JuUsWISSasSY SPasN enuswaq pue yjjeaH

Page 227



SPIBA IIV :P3109Y Ajoauiq spiepy

‘Juawdojanap pue Buiag|iam ‘yyesy s,uaipjiyo

v1'6°6
(3n°'syu‘jpUO@aeMINg Jou0D) loj suoneoijdwi aney jey ‘aj Apes ul Bunelsado seousnyul jo abuel ‘Aepsan)
apIm e ajebiisanul |[Im ydiym Apnis 841 8y} Jo swie ay} Ino 3as ||Im Jodal ay | :pieog
(eyeubisa() 4200 Buraqjiam
3|geIuN022Y ‘@)ing Jou0) uado Aunwwo) : Apnis HOYod yuiq N Mau - Apnis a4 pue yjjesH
SpJeAA |IY (Pojoayy Ajjoalig splepy e
‘sdajs xau asoy} Janijep 0} dnoib-gng
ale) pajesbaju| ay} Aq paonpoid uejd uoijoe ue JapISUOD pue SAISdal |[IM pJeog 166
(In"A0b paqi@us|iwpIAep) ay) ‘epuabe aied ajl| Jo pua ay} pJemio} e} 0} sdajs }xau pue Juswajels uoljisod e ‘Kepsan
yym pajusasald sem pleog sy} yoiym Je 410z Areniga4 | | Jo Bunssw ayy Buimoljo4 :pieog
Jabeuepy Aianeg Bulaq|iom
aJe) pajelbaju| ‘ug|IN pireq uado SUOI}OY Uo ssalboud :a1eD ajq jo pug pue yjjeaH
SpJep IV :pejoagy Apoauig spiepy e
‘#10Z yoJep\ ul pseog ayj o} sjesodoud AjD ase) |eniul ay} jo uoiejuasalid jse)
ay} Buimojjo} AnD a1e) Joy suejd sy} uo ajepdn ue yum pajussald aq |im pieog ay |
‘ybnoloq ayj ui sqol ajeald pue ‘Juswisaiul Joelje ‘uonelausbal ayeinwiys
[ yoaloid AuD a1ed ay) ‘aled [e1o0s pue yyeay o} uoljelbajul Buliq
SE ||]aM Sy "Uopuo }se3 YuoN ul Buijesado sasudisius wnipaw pue ||lews V1162
(3n°Aob°pgq|@Janijo-uslay) pue suolN}ISUI SlILBPEJE ‘10}03S 31ed |BIo0S ‘SHN 8y} usamiaq uoielbajul ‘Kepsan)
(1988 ¥2/ 8020 121) pue uofjeloge||od Jajealb a)ey|ioey ||Im Jey} SAleniul [euoiBal e si Ay aled ‘pieog
Buipsenbajeg Bulaq|iom
yNpy ‘JaAIO us|eH uadp Aunwwo) : ayepdn Ay aie) pue yjjesH
spJep IV :Pejoayy Aposulq spiepy e
vi'L6C
(n°Ao0B°pqQq|@a]02 Maypew) ‘102 10} (WYNSI) Juswssassy spasp 216a)el)S Julor ay} Jo ysaljal ‘Kepsan]
(259¢ 2228 020 121) 3y} wouy Buisue suonepuawwodal d1bajel)s Aoy aaibe 0} payse aq ||Im pleog siyl :pieog
yjjesH aliqnd Buraqjiam
JO J0joalIq ‘9]0 Maynen uado }JoMawel : JUswssassy spaapN d1bajes3s juior pue yjjeaH

Page 228



(Jaquwiaw pieoq bBunoa-uou) (puejbug SHN) 22ueINSSY JO peaH ‘Uouayly uyor

(9921104 191\) Jepuewiwo) ybnolog ‘Buim3 malpuy juepusiuiadng Jaiyd

(3sni] SHN s|endsoH Ausianiun abpuqgpay pue buaney Buppeqg) Jojoaliq [edipay wuaiu ‘ssabing uaydals
(3snu] uonepuno4 SHN uopuoT }se3J yuopN) Juswdojanaq [euoljesiuebliQ 1@ S82IN0Say UBWNKH JO J0}081IQ SAIINISXT ‘OJUN\ UIHEe
(dnolg Buiuoissiwwo) [esiul|) weyuabeq pue Buiyieg) 19210 9|gejunoddy ‘eying Jouo)

(dnoug Buluoissiwwo) |eaiulH weyuabeq pue Bupjieg) Jojoaliq [eaiul) ‘uyor uebep uqg

(gamsH aus jo sieyn Ainda) dnousy Buluoissiwwo) [ediulj) weyuabeq pue Bupeg jo sieyd ‘1Yo waasepn 1q
weyuabeq pue bupjeg ysyemylesH jo Jsiey) ‘||olie) saduel

UllesH d11qnd Jo 1030a1iq ‘8|00 Mayne

S92IAIBG S ,Ualp|Iy) Joj} Jojoalq ajelodio) ‘Jsuusp usjeH

$92IAIBS AJunwiwo) pue }npy Joy} 1030311 ajelodio) ‘Mojslig auuy

(Alqwassy |enuuy Ag pajuiodde aq 03) sio|1ouN0) A991 v

:pieog Buiaq|lopn pue yjeaH jo diysiaquiajy
I XIAN3ddV

Page 229



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 230



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 11 February 2014 and 25 March 2014
	Minutes , 25/03/2014 Health and Wellbeing Board

	4 The Health & Wellbeing Board as a Committee of the Council
	5 Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham Annual Report 2013/14
	Appendix -  Healthwatch Barking and Dagenham Annual Report

	6 BHRUT  Improvement Programme
	Appendix 1 - Improvement Plan Summary
	Appendix  2

	7 Joint Assessment and Discharge Service
	8 Addressing Variation in Primary Care Performance
	Appendix 1 - addressing variation in primary care may 2014

	9 Mental Health Tariff
	10 Annual Health Protection Profile
	11 Transforming Services, Changing Lives in East London
	12 Developing the Health and Wellbeing Board
	13 Waiver of Contract Rules: Public Health Chlamydia Testing Contract Extension
	14 Urgent Action: Implementation of Matters Scheduled for Consideration by the Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 March 2014
	Urgent Action: (Schedule of Decisions) Appendix 1

	15 Sub-Groups Reports
	Appendix 1 - Integrated Care Group 24.02.14 & 24.03.14 & 28.04.14
	Appendix 2 -  June 2014 Learning Disability Partnership Board report
	Appendix 3 - Mental Health Sub-Group report June 2014

	16 Chair's Report
	Chair's Report - Appendix 1

	17 Forward Plan
	Forward Plan Draft July 2014 Issue


